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Corporate Information
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Results Highlight
BT

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of our Group for the T #F|BEAEB N BEEE M BRFERNELE AR
last four' financial years, is set out below: BEERBENRHE :

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR EHEHFEAEER

LOSS
For the year ended December 31,
BENABLEE
2020 2021 2022 2023
2020 20214F 20226F 2023
(RMB in (RMB in (RMB in (RMB in
thousand) thousand) thousand) thousand)
(ARETT) (AR®TI) (AR¥TT) (AR¥FR)
Revenue WA 2,327,008 3598251 4,532,920 4,867,026
Gross profit E7H 404,673 537,538 779,547 618716
Profit/(loss) for the year FRRME(EE) 13974 (172,864) (564,219) (64,863)
Non-IFRS Measure': FEBIRR I iR ERIET 2
Adjusted net profit? ERkSE Nl 221316 259,232 364,048 162,225
Notes: FfsE -
H Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange  |. AABIHIRA2023F 108 12BEBRFTERET ©

on October 12, 2023.

2. Equals profit/(loss) for the year plus changes in the carrying amount of financial 2. SRERNFTIE/ (BRI EMBEEEETHEMTA
instruments issued to investors, share-based payments and listing expenses. HREEZS URORERNNAEL EHHX -

6 SHIYUE DAOTIAN GROUP CO., LTD 2023 Annual Report



CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION

LE SR 3 O

For the year ended December 31,

BZNA3IBLEE

Results Highlight
RERE

2020 2021 2022 2023
20204 202148 20224 20235
(RMB in (RMB in (RMB in (RMB in
thousand) thousand) thousand) thousand)
(ARET) (AREBTRT) (AREFT) (AR¥TR)
Current assets MEEE 823935 1,737,342 2,058,147 3,567,238
Non-current assets JEMENEE 311,647 646,810 1,004,405 1,167,573
Total assets BEHE 1,135,582 2,384,152 3,062,552 4,734,811
Current liabilities mEAE 465,654 251,697 744,856 1,285,472
Non-current liabilities JEMBNBE 387,402 1,913,867 2,424,068 65,829
Total liabilities BERHE 853,056 2,165,564 3,168924 1,351,301
Net current assets MEEEFE 358,281 1,485,645 1,313,291 2,281,766
Net assets/(liabilities) BEEFE(AEFEH) 282,526 218,588 (106,372) 3,383,510
SUMMARY OF KEY FINANCIAL METRICS R IS isiE st
2020 2021 2022 2023
Summary of Key Financial Metrics RN KR RAS 20204F 2021 6F 20224 202345
Revenue growth (%) Wi & (%) N/A 54.6 26.0 74
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 174 14.9 17.2 12.7
Net profit (%) FEFE (%) 0.6 (4.8) (124) (1.3)
Adjusted net profit' margin (%) AR AT R (%) (FEBIR
(non-IFRS measure) IR mEEAGE) 9.5 72 8.0 33
Inventory turnover days FEREERE 100 100 116 127
Trade receivables turmover days B 5 R R B K& I3 20 28 24
Trade payables turnover days Z 5 TR R R & 22 16 14 13
Gearing ratio (%) BRBELE%) 75.1 90.8 103.5 28.5

Adjusted net profit is defined as net profit for the year adjusted by adding back
share-based payments, changes in the carrying value of financial instruments issued

to investors and listing expenses.

RRABRGNERSANFEEBINE AR SEROR
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Chairman’s Statement
EERIE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Shiyue Daotian, | would like to present the annual results of the

Group for the year ended December 31, 2023.

In 2023, affected by multiple factors such as climate change, natural disasters
and local conflicts, the complexity and uncertainty of the international market
environment escalated. Under the general keynote of seeking progress while
maintaining stability, the domestic economy began to unleash the consumption
momentum, heading towards a progressive resurgence and upswing. However,
Northeast China was ravaged by typhoons, exacerbating the anticipated decline
in rice production. The grain production and processing industry was also

grappling with mounting cost pressures.

In 2023, Shiyue Daotian recorded a total revenue of RMB4,867.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 7.4% compared with the same
period in 2022; a gross profit of RMB618.7 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 20.6% over the previous year. In 2023, the adjusted net profit of
the Group decreased from RMB364.0 million in the previous year to RMBI162.2
million, representing a decrease of approximately 55.4%. Both revenue and

profits fell short of expectations.

We swiftly adapted our stance in response to the ever-changing market
environment, persistently cultivate our categories in existence and expanded
the multi-category product portfolio. We also paid close attention to the
overall industry trends to adjust our business arrangement, gave full play to
our own characteristics and advantages, enhanced our brand effect and brand

competitiveness, and met the diverse consumer needs.

Multi-channel coverage has always served as an pivotal driving force for Shiyue
Daotian in upholding its brand competitiveness and attaining sustainable
development. In 2023, the Group continued to deepen its multi-channel
operational model, exerting utmost efforts to drive integrated online and offline

development.

Furthermore, in 2023, we reinforced our collaborative efforts with emerging
channels to form a matrix of e-commerce channels integrated with social
media platforms and tailored to consumer preferences, with focus on efficient
conversion of traffic through multiple measures while actively pursuing

breakthroughs in business expansion.
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As a leading and fast-growing pantry staple food company in China, Shiyue
Daotian has also proactively responded to the national modern agricultural
policy, concentrating on the primary aspects including farmer planting,
procurement, order-oriented production, processing, warehousing, logistics,
sales, brand experience, repeat purchase and services, etc, so as to promote
the integrated construction of the entire supply chain while comprehensively
improving the stability of our industrial system, which ultimately contributes to

rural revitalization and development.

In retrospect, the consumer market has not only embraced with rejuvenation
in the face of fluctuations but also forged ahead amidst uncertainties in the
past year. No matter what changes it faces, Shiyue Daotian will adhere to its
unwavering commitment to its mission and is committed to providing consumers
with quality, healthy and fresh food products, while fostering the perpetual

growth of enterprise through a long-termism.

Last but not the least, on behalf of Shiyue Daotian, | would like to express
my heartfelt gratitude to all employees for their dedication throughout the
preceding year. Meanwhile, | also would like share our appreciation to our all
customers, shareholders, partners and people from all walks of society for the
continuous support for and trust in the Group. In the future, the Group will
continue to move forward with prudent and determined mindset oriented by
the industrialization of agriculture and the enhancement of additional value in
agricultural products, aiming to create societal value through superior products
and services, while delivering more considerable benefits and long-term returns

to shareholders.

WANG Bing
Chairman

March 28, 2024
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BEEENWED N

MACRO AND INDUSTRY ENVIRONMENT

In 2023, China's economic recovery was at a critical stage where the economic
development had experienced a turnaround. However, it still faced the impact
of insufficient effective demand, prudent social expectations, and declining
consumer confidence, leading to further transformed consumption habits of the
consumers to pay more attention to products cost performance and purchase

convenience.

Based on package specification, rice, whole grain, bean and seed products
can be further divided into pre-packaged products and bulk products. Pre-
packaged products have become more popular among consumers, mainly
due to their portability and better preservation of quality, freshness and taste.
As Chinese consumers have become more conscious of food quality, more
consumers prefer to purchase pre-packaged rice, whole grain, bean and seed
products, boosting a much higher growth rate in the pre-packaged market.
According to the independent industry report of Frost & Sullivan, in terms of
revenue, the market size of the pre-packaged rice, whole grain, bean and seed
industry increased from RMBI50.5 billion in 2018 to RMB208.6 billion in 2022,
representing a compound annual growth rate (“CAGR") of 8.5% from 2018 to
2022, and is expected to further reach RMB324.9 billion by 2027, with a CAGR
of 9.3% from 2022 to 2027.

10  SHIYUE DAOTIAN GROUP CO, LTD 2023 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECT

By adhering to the core principle of “being committed to providing Chinese
consumers with quality, healthy and fresh food products” all along, the Group
has been dedicated to providing our customers with pre-packaged premium
rice, whole grain, bean, and dried food products. By maintaining multichannel
sales coverage, we are committed to providing customers with products of
diversified categories that are sourced from renowned grain production regions
in China, so as to establish a range of household brands for Chinese families.
We will further enrich our brand portfolio and develop differentiated marketing
strategies, further diversify our product offerings with differentiated price
ranges, packaging specifications and sales channels, and continue to broaden
and deepen our multichannel ecosystem while continuously strengthening our
channel management capabilities. We will pay constant and close attention to
the overall industry trends, adjust our business arrangement, give full play to our
own characteristics and advantages to expand new channels and businesses.
We will also continue to penetrate into selected production areas for rice,
whole grain, bean and other products, and to focus on building infrastructure
for procurement, production, inspection, storage and other core capabilities in

quality origins.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, we have been dedicated to providing our customers with pre-
packaged premium rice, whole grain, bean and dried food products, aiming to
capture consumer mindshare with high brand visibility and convenient purchase
experience. The Group has continued to cultivate its categories in existence,
expand its multi-category product portfolio, develop its sales network, strengthen
its multi-brand business model with respective proven record of success,
and consolidate its supply chain management capabilities to meet diversified
consumer needs and continuously strengthen the emotional connection of our

consumers with us.
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BEEENWED N

As of the current year, total revenue of the Group was RMB4,867.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 7.4% as compared with RMB4,532.9
million of the previous year. Gross profit of the Group decreased by 20.6% from
RMB779.5 million for the previous year to RMB618.7 million for this year, while
gross profit margin decreased from 17.2% for the previous year to 12.7% for
this year. Loss before income tax decreased by 89.5% from RMB558.3 million
for the previous year to RMB58.8 million for this year. The Group’s net loss
decreased by 88.5% from RMB564.2 million for the previous year to RMB64.9
million for this year, adjusted net profit decreased by 55.4% from RMB364.0
million for the previous year to RMB162.2 million for this year, and adjusted net

profit margin decreased from 8.0% for the previous year to 3.3% for this year.

OUR BRANDS AND PRODUCTS

We are one of the leading and rapidly growing pantry staple food companies in
China, enjoying a robust multichannel brand presence. We have been dedicated
to providing our consumers with premium pre-packaged rice, whole grain, bean,
and dried food products since our inception, and have successfully established and
been operating multiple well-recognized brands, mainly including Shiyue Daotian
(T ATEM), Firewood Courtyard (5 X AKFT) and Sunshine Family (f8Z AK).
We mainly supply rice products, whole grain, bean and other products, as well
as dried food and other products. Rice products mainly include pre-packaged
rice products of different varieties, such as Wuchang rice (F1% AK), Daoxiang
rice (FEEK), long grain rice (FRAIEAK) and Komachi rice (/| NETZK). Whole
grain and bean products mainly include pre-packaged mixed brown rice, millet
and red bean, and other products under this category primarily refer to seed
and corn products. Dried food products mainly include pre-packaged wood ear
mushrooms, snow fungus mushroom and lotus seeds, and other products under
this category mainly include by-products, such as bran, husk and fractioned rice.
Our revenue is mainly derived from the sales of rice products, whole grain and
bean products. The table below sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by

product category for the periods indicated:

12  SHIYUE DAOTIAN GROUP CO, LTD 2023 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWED

Year ended December 31,

BZNA3IBLEE

2023 2022
20235 20226

% of total % of total

RMB’000 revenue RMB'000 revenue

Product category EmE5 ARET T HBERA%E ARBFIT IHBKA%
Rice products KOKE 3,830,303 78.7 3,621,740 799
Whole grain, bean and other products e SRKEMER 601,500 12.4 523232 .5
Dried food and other products w B REMER 435,223 8.9 387,948 86
Total &&t 4,867,026 100.0 4,532,920 100.0

Our revenue generated from rice products increased by 5.8% from RMB3,621.7
million for the previous year to RMB3,830.3 million for this year, primarily
due to the increase in sale volume of rice products in the year. Our revenue
generated from whole grain, bean and other products increased by 15.0% from
RMB523.2 million for the previous year to RMB601.5 million, and its percentage
of our total revenue increased from 11.5% for the previous year to 12.4%. Our
revenue generated from dried food and other products increased by 12.2% from
RMB387.9 million for the previous year to RMB435.2 million for this year, and
its percentage of our total revenue increased from 8.6% for the previous year
to 8.9%, primarily due to our expansion of product portfolio and sales network
of the aforementioned categories which resulted in the increase of sales volume

and sales amount of these product categories.

AEREMORNKERABSRAR EFEHNARE
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OUR SALES NETWORK

The Group's customers include corporate customers and individual customers.
We started building our network from cooperating with online channels,
partnered with multiple e-commerce platforms with leading positions, wide
consumer outreach and high brand awareness in China and established
leadership under multiple categories in terms of market share. In line with
the developing landscape of the offline retail ecosystem, we have successfully
established an extensive presence across our grocery retail channels. Leveraging

our competitive advantages on online channels, we have further deepened our

sales channel penetration and established a multichannel sales network.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by sales channel for the

periods indicated:

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEER WA
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Year ended December 31,

BENA3IBLEE

2023 2022
2023F 20226F
% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB'000 revenue
Sales channel SHERE ARBT T R A% ARETIT (HBKA%
Online channels ERRE
— E-commerce platforms —BHFE 2,836,474 58.4 2,657,296 58.6
— Online self-operated stores —HEREEE 469,080 9.6 486,894 10.7
Grocery retail channels' MEZTERE 653,920 13.4 695954 15.4
Direct customers? HEERRP 627,970 12.9 452010 10.0
Distribution network FeE T p RS 279,582 5.7 240,766 53
Total &3t 4,867,026 100.0 4,532,920 100.0
Notes: P& -
Grocery retail channels mainly include NKAs and LKAs which provide our products | HETERETERREMLRBEBERARMERN
to end-consumers. NKA LKA e

2, Direct customers primarily consist of catering companies, agricultural products
companies, and other corporate and individual customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

This year, our revenue from online channels accounted for the majority of our
total revenue. This year, revenue generated from online channels increased by
5.1% from RMB3,144.2 million for the previous year to RMB3,305.6 million for
this year. Among which, our revenue from e-commerce platforms increased
by 6.7% from RMB2,657.3 million for the previous year to RMB2,836.5 million
for this year, which reflected the increase of sales volume resulting from our
continuous cultivation of categories in existence and expansion of multi-category
product portfolio. Revenue from online self-operated stores decreased by
3.7% from RMB486.9 million for the previous year to RMB469.1 million for
this year, primarily due to our sales performance not up to expectation during
the e-commerce festival in the fourth quarter of this year. Revenue generated
from grocery retail channels decreased by 6.0% from RMB696.0 million for the
previous year to RMB653.9 million for this year, which was due to the reduction
in cooperating with certain grocery retail customer. Revenue from direct
customers increased by 38.9% from RMB452.0 million for the previous year to
RMB628.0 million for this year, which reflected the Company's active efforts
in direct customer expansion, especially strengthening the cooperation with
catering companies. Revenue from distribution network increased by 16.19% from
RMB240.8 million for the previous year to RMB279.6 million for this year, which
was due to the increased exposure of the Company’s brand and increased
contact and cooperation with distributors, leading to an increase of sales volume

through distribution network channels.

OUR PRODUCTION

In order to offer premium products to our consumers, we procure raw materials
from renowned places of origin for grains. We have established long-term and
stable relationships with a wide range of suppliers across product categories.
Specifically, our core grain production areas include Shenyang Xinmin, Wuchang,
Songyuan, Tonghe, and Aohan. The rice originating from Wuchang, and millet
originating from Aohan, are China National Geographical Indication Products.
We also purchase raw materials for whole grain, bean and dried food products
from other renowned places of origin, including red beans from Daging,
Heilongjiang Province, mung beans from Inner Mongolia, and peanuts from Fuyu,

Jilin Province.
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We constantly optimize our production process and explore the development
of production technology and techniques to maintain the good taste and
preserve the nutritional value of our products, thus satisfying the preferences of
our consumers. Our production process is highly standardized and automated.
In addition, we have made substantial investment in purchasing advanced
production machinery and equipment. Our production team members work
closely to continuously maintain our production machinery and equipment to
meet our high production standards and improve our production efficiency. As
of December 31, 2023, we had established the following production bases in
proximity to the five core grain production areas in China, namely Shenyang
Xinmin production base, Wuchang production base, Songyuan production base,

Tonghe production base and Aohan production base.

FOOD SAFETY AND QUALITY CONTROL

Food safety and product quality are our top priority. We are committed
to offering safe and premium food to maintain consumer confidence in our
products and strengthen our brand recognition. We have implemented
stringent food safety and quality control standards and measures throughout our
operations, covering steps from procurement, production and storage to sales.
To achieve systematic quality management, our quality assurance team focuses
on implementing a group-level quality control plan through the implementation
and maintenance of our quality control system, and is responsible for quality
inspection of raw materials, semi-finished products and finished products, as well

as product shelf-life management.

OUR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The IT systems utilized by the Group cover various aspects of our operations,
including raw materials supply, production, operation and logistics. Our IT
team is responsible for developing and maintaining IT systems in line with our
business expansion and customizing them to meet our business needs. We have
developed and implemented a supply chain management system to integrate
resources along the supply chain and align value propositions with the aim of
decreasing our upfront costs. In addition, we use ERP system, TMS, warehousing
management system, CRM system, cloud office system and OA system to
complement each other to achieve a series of functions such as product

operation and data management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit

In 2023, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB4,867.0 million, representing
an increase of 74% as compared with RMB4,532.9 million in 2022, primarily
because (i) we continued to cultivate our categories in existence and expand the
multi-category product portfolio; and (ii) we paid constant and close attention
to the overall industry trends, adjusted our business arrangement, gave full play
to our own characteristics and advantages, strengthened the multi-brand strategy
with respective proven record of success, enhanced our brand effect and brand

competitiveness, and met the diverse consumer needs.

Gross profit of the Group in 2023 amounted to RMB618.7 million, representing
a decrease of RMBI160.8 million from RMB779.5 million in 2022. Gross profit
margin of the Group decreased from 17.2% in 2022 to 12.7% in 2023, mainly
due to the facts that: (i) the overall market environment changed and the
consumers'confidence decreased, thus our sales performance did not meet the
expectations; (i) affected by natural disasters, especially floods in Northeast
China, the prices of raw materials such as paddy rose, resulting in the increase of

product costs which in tum suppressed the Group’s profit margin.

Other Net Income

Other net income of the Group decreased from RMB27.4 million in 2022 to
RMB3.7 million in 2023, mainly due to a provision for an outstanding legal claim

in 2023.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

In 2023, selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased by 3.0% from
RMB314.8 million in 2022 to RMB324.1 million in 2023, primarily due to the

increase in sales volume and a slight increase in the Group’s promotion activities.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group decreased by 82.0% from RMB858.3
million in 2022 to RMBI54.5 million in 2023, mainly due to the fact that we
granted share awards of RMB691.0 million in 2022, which were not granted this

year, leading to less administrative expenses accordingly.
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Impairment Losses Charged on Trade and Other Receivables

Impairment losses charged on trade and other receivables of the Group changed
from RMB9.7 million in 2022 to reversal of impairment loss of RMB0.2 million in
2023, mainly as a result of the one-off write-off in relation to trade receivables
of a certain customer due to its business deterioration in 2022, and no such
event occurred in 2023. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Credit Risk” in

this annual report.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs increased by 456.4% from RMB3.9 million in 2022 to
RMB21.7 million in 2023, primarily due to the increase in the bank and other
loans so as to the increase of the interest expenses, and the foreign exchange

losses recognised.

Changes in the Carrying Amount of Financial Instruments Issued to Investors

Our changes in the carrying amount of financial instruments issued to investors
increased by 1.4% from RMBI78.6 million in 2022 to RMBI81.| million in 2023,
primarily due to the changes in the carrying amount of the financial instruments
granted to certain investors of our Series A, Series B and Series C financing. The
redemption rights have automatically expired upon the listing of the Company’s

Shares on the Stock Exchange.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group increased from RMB5.9 million in 2022 to

RMB6.1 million in 2023, primarily due to the increase in the taxable income.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Loss for the Period

As a result of the foregoing, net loss for the year of the Group decreased from
RMB564.2 million in 2022 to RMB64.9 million in 2023.

Non-IFRS Measure

To supplement the consolidated financial statements of the Group, which are
presented in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, the Group also use
adjusted net profit (non-IFRS measure) as additional financial measures, which
is not required by, or presented in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.
The Group believe that the non-IFRS measure provides useful information to
investors and others in understanding and evaluating our consolidated results of
operations in the same manner as they help the Group's management. However,
the Group's presentation of adjusted net profit (non-IFRS measure) may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies. The
use of such non-IFRS measures has limitations as an analytical tool, and investors
should not consider it in isolation from, or as a substitute for an analysis of,
the Group’s results of operations or financial condition as reported under IFRS

Accounting Standards.

The Group define adjusted net profit (non-IFRS measure) as net profit for the
years adjusted by adding back share-based payments, changes in the carrying
amount of financial instruments issued to investors and listing expenses. The
following table reconciles the adjusted net profit (non-IFRS measure) for the
periods presented to the most directly comparable financial measures calculated
and presented in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, which is net profit

or loss for the periods:
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEER WA

Year ended December 31,

BZENA3IBLEE

2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBETTT

Reconciliation of net profit to adjusted net profit S BRAC T B AR GRBIRR B s s 2

(non-IFRS measure) At 8)Hgnx
Loss for the year FAREE (64,863) (564,219)
Add: m
Changes in the carrying amount of financial MREEFTHECRTANKRREZS)

instruments issued to investors' 181,141 178,596
Share-based payments” LARR 17 72 2L R 8 -] 5K - 739,569
Listing expenses’ Bl 45,947 10,102
Adjusted net profit (non-IFRS measure) KREF R GEER I RS ERE =) 162,225 364,048
Notes: BeE

Changes in the carrying amount of financial instruments issued to investors were
primarily related to financial instruments granted to certain investors of our Series A,
Series B and Series C financing.

2. Share-based payments are non-cash in nature and are not expected to result in
future cash payments made by us, representing (i) share-based payments in relation
to share awards of RMB691.0 million in 2022, which represented the difference
between the fair value and price of the paid-in capital of Shiyue Zhongxin granted
to Mr. WANG and Ms. ZHAQ as a consideration for their services rendered; and (ii)
share-based payments of RMB48.6 million in relation to transfers of paid-in capital
from our certain senior management to investors of Series C financing in 2022,
representing a consideration higher than the fair value of the transferred paid-in
capital at the dates of share transfers.

3. Listing expenses primarily related to the initial public offering.

Adjusted net profit (non-IFRS measure) for the year of the Group decreased
by 55.4% from RMB364.0 million in the previous year to RMBI162.2 million this
year, while the adjusted net profit margin (non-IFRS measure) reduced from 8.0%
to 3.3%, mainly affected by natural disasters, especially floods in Northeast China
and the prices of raw materials such as paddy rose, resulting in the increase of

product costs which in tum suppressed the Group’s profit margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Inventories

Inventories of the Group increased by 16.9% from RMBI,372.7 million as of
December 31, 2022 to RMBI,604.8 million as of December 31, 2023. Inventory
turnover days of the Group increased from |16 days in 2022 to 127 days in
2023, mainly because we actively purchased more raw materials to meet our

growing sales and production needs.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables of the Group decreased from RMB399.1 million as of
December 31, 2022 to RMB242.8 million as of December 31, 2023. Turnover
days of trade receivables decreased from 28 days in 2022 to 24 days in 2023,
mainly because we strengthened the collection and management of trade
receivables in 2023, and some customers have changed their payment methods
from bank transfer to issuance of bills, resulting in a further decline in the trade

receivables.

Other receivables of the Group increased from RMBI149.4 million as of
December 31, 2022 to RMBI70.0 million as of December 31, 2023, primarily
due to the increase in value-added tax recoverable relating to our purchase of

raw materials.

Financial instruments issued to investors

As of December 31, 2022, financial instruments issued to investors amounted to
RMB2,380.2 million which decreased to nil as of December 31, 2023, primarily
because the redemption rights have automatically expired upon the listing of the

Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange.

EEEFWED

rE

REEMNTERBZE20202F2A3IBNARK1,3727
BETENICIBEEHZ2023F12A3IHMARE
16048 & - AEENFEEAE HEHE2002FEN
16 RIEE023FEM 127K - TERHREMBERE
BEZHRME - URRRMTEEROEE R EE

CEY T NEE

REBENE S EKRFIEHRBE2022F 12A3IBHAR
B399 BB LR EHZE2023F12A3I ANARE
2028BEIT o B ERFIBEERENE20226 E 28
FBADE2023FEH24K - T B RARKMIE2023F
MAETHESRUFENEDRNER @ SIBLEF
MFAFRHBTEEERAMAESZE - B8 EHEK
FIEE— ST -

REBEMEMBYWHIBREZ202F12A3IHHAR
1494 BT MEEHZE2023F 1283 BN AR
17008 870 + BRI B R A8 B 6 Al ik
Bl ER N -

BREERTHNERMIEA
HE2002F 128310  MEBEEZRTHSRMIAEA
R#238028B&L r HRPEEHZE2023F 1283188

T AR BEEED R AR R RO RE A PT LT
FABER -

+AEEEERGERAT FEms03 21



BEEENWED N

Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables of the Group decreased by 19.8% from RMBI71.6 million as of
December 31, 2022 to RMBI37.6 million as of December 31, 2023, primarily
because the Group accelerated the payments to suppliers in order to lock in
raw grains in view of the price increase of raw grains in the fourth quarter of
2023. Trade payables tumover days decreased from 14 days in 2022 to |3 days

in 2023, primarily due to the decrease in the balance of trade payables.

Other payables of the Group decreased by 20.9% from RMBI31.9 million
as of December 31, 2022 to RMBI04.3 million as of December 31, 2023,
mainly attributable to (i) the decrease in the payables for staff-related costs,
mainly representing bonus payables to staff, and (i) the decrease in payables
for construction and purchase of property, plant and equipment as a result of
settlement of relevant payables in accordance with relevant agreements. The
decrease mentioned above was offset by the provision made for a litigation to

some extent.

Contract Liabilities

Our contract liabilities were short-term receipts in advance from customers.
All of the contract liabilities are expected to be recognized as revenue within
one year. Contract liabilities of the Group decreased by 57.0% from RMB31.6
million as of December 31, 2022 to RMBI3.6 million as of December 31,
2023, mainly due to the fact that the end of 2022 is close to the Spring Festival
of the following year, leading to customers’ higher demand for products for
the purpose of Spring Festival sales, and thereby the increase in short-term
prepayments by customers. As the end of 2023 is far away from the Spring
Festival of the following year, receipts in advance at the end of 2023 declined as

compared with that at the end of 2022.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group increased from RMBI120.4 million as
of December 31, 2022 to RMBI,427.2 million as of December 31, 2023. The
increase was mainly due to proceeds from the initial public offering and new

bank loans.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Net Current Assets

Net current assets of the Group increased by 73.7% from RMBI,313.3 million
as of December 31, 2022 to RMB2,281.8 million as of December 31, 2023,

primarily due to the increase of the cash and cash equivalents.

Bank and Other Loans

Bank and other loans of the Group increased from RMB394.9 million as of
December 31, 2022 to RMBI,01 1.1 million as of December 31, 2023, primarily

because the Group increased bank borrowings to meet the business needs.

Gearing Ratio

As of December 31, 2023, gearing ratio of the Group (total liabilities/total assets)
reached 28.5%, which was lower than gearing ratio of 103.5% as of December
31,2022, mainly due to the the proceeds from the initial public offering and the

expiration of the redemption rights upon the listing of the Company's shares.

Financial Risks

We have adopted risk management program focused on minimizing potential
adverse effects of the unpredictability of financial markets as we are exposed
to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk,

currency risk and fair value measurement risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. As of December 31,
2023, our Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables. Our
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and
bills receivables is limited because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit standing, for which our Group is considered to
have low credit risk. Our Group does not provide any guarantees which would

expose our Group to credit risk.
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Liquidity Risk

The treasury function is centrally managed by our Group, which includes the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of funds to cover
expected cash demands. Our Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions and investors to meet its liquidity requirements

in the short and long term.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Our
Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing borrowings
issued at variable rates and at fixed rates, which expose our Group to cash flow

interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk, respectively.

Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily from cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily USD and HK$.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In March 2023, certain companies of the Group were named defendants on
a lawsuit in respect of disputes on trademarks infringement, and the Group's
bank deposits of RMB30.0 million has been frozen by the court for this lawsuit.
As at March 28, 2024, the lawsuit is still under review by the court. Based on
assessment from the Directors of the Company and legal advices, the Group

has made a provision of RMB20.0 million in respect of this claim.

On 2 April 2024, the Group received the first instance court judgement, which
was against the Group and pursuant to which the Group shall pay to the
counterparty in the amount of RMBI16.2 million. The Group has filed an appeal,
and as at the issuance date of the annual report, the lawsuit is pending review

before the court.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had capital commitments of approximately
RMB97.5 million (as of December 31, 2022: RMBI15.2 million), mainly used for

purchase of buildings, machinery and equipments.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group’s capital expenditure
amounted to approximately RMB257.5 million (for the year ended December
31, 2022: RMB354.3 million), mainly used for payments for purchase of property,

plant and equipment and land-use-rights.

PLEDGED ASSETS

As of December 31, 2023, the aggregate carrying value of the property, plant
and equipments and land-use-rights pledged for the Group's bank loans is
RMB434.3 million (as of December 31, 2022: RMB243.6 million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL

The Group did not have any significant investments held, or any material
acquisition or disposal of any relevant subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

during the Reporting Period.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

Save for the "“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” disclosed in the Prospectus, the
Group did not have any existing plan for acquiring other material investments or

capital assets during the Reporting Period and as of the Latest Practicable Date.
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EX EEKSAREEAEERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Bing (E££), aged 48, is the Co-founder, an executive Director, the

Chairman of the Board and the General Manager of the Company.

Mr. Wang founded the Company in May 2018 and was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and a Director of the Company in August 2020. He
was appointed as the General Manager of the Company in December 2022.
Mr. Wang has nearly 20 years of experience in the pantry staple food industry.
Mr. Wang entered into the pantry staple food industry in June 2005 when
he was responsible for grain procurement at Shenyang Xinchang, serving as
a procurement manager from June 2005 to September 2011, an operation
director from October 201 | to December 2018 and the chairman of the board
since December 2018. In January 2013, he founded Beijing Heyulongsheng Trade
Co, ltd. ERBEWERE SHEMR A F]), which was de-registered in August
2021, and served as its manager from January 2013 to August 2021. Mr. Wang
has also been a supervisor of Wuchang Caigiao since April 2015. Mr. Wang has
also served as an executive director of Shiyue Jinfeng since July 2020. Mr. Wang
is the spouse of Ms. Zhao, the brother-in-law of Ms. Zhao Shulan and the uncle

of Mr. Shu Minghe.

Mr. Wang graduated from Shenyang Chemical Industrial School in rubber
technology in Liaoning Province, the PRC, in July 1998. Mr. Wang is currently
studying at the Finance CEO Pioneer Program in Tsinghua University (/&2 K £2)
in Beijing, the PRC.

Ms. Zhao Wenjun (X&), aged 44, is the Co-founder, an executive Director,
Deputy General Manager and Chief Marketing Officer of the Company.

Ms. Zhao was appointed as a Director in August 2020 and the Deputy General
Manager and the Chief Marketing Officer in December 2022. She served as the
General Manger of the Company from May 2019 to December 2022. Ms. Zhao
has nearly 20 years of experience in the pantry staple food industry. Ms. Zhao
entered into the pantry staple food industry in June 2005 when she served as
a sales manager of Shenyang Xinchang from June 2005 to September 2011, a
marketing director from October 2011 to December 2018 and a director since
December 2018. She has also served as a supervisor of Shiyue Jinfeng since July
2020. Ms. Zhao is the spouse of Mr. Wang, the sister of Ms. Zhao Shulan and
the aunt of Mr. Shu Minghe.
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Biographical Details of Directors,Supervisors and Senior Management
EE  EERSAEEAEEE

Ms. Zhao graduated from Shenyang Chemical Industrial School in chemical trade

economics in Liaoning Province, the PRC, in July 2000.

Ms. Zhao Shulan (#HB), aged 46, is an executive Director. She was
appointed as a Director of the Company from the date of its establishment to
May 2019 and re-appointed as a Director of the Company from August 2020.
She has nearly 10 years of experience in the pantry staple food industry. In
January 2013, she joined Beijing Heyulongsheng Trade Co., Ltd. (At R ERE
BB 5B AT, which was de-registered in August 2021, and has served as
the executive director and general manager of Wuchang Caigiao since April
2015, the legal representative of Shenyang Xinchang from November 2017
to December 2018, a director of Shenyang Xinchang since November 2017.
She also served as a director and the general manager of Shiyue Daotian
(Wuchang City) Food Co., Ltd, formerly known as Shiyue Daotian (Wuchang
City) Plantation Co,, Ltd. (T AEHEEEM)EE BB AT, since June 2021, a
supervisor of Tonghe County Caigiao Rice Co,, Ltd. since September 2021, and
a director and the general manager of Wuchang City Qiuman Agriculture Co.,
Ltd. since September 2022. Ms. Zhao Shulan is the sister-in-law of Mr. Wang,
the sister of Ms. Zhao and the aunt of Mr. Shu Minghe.

Ms. Zhao Shulan graduated from School of Continuing Education of Harbin
Institute of Technology (*&FR/& L3 A2) in Heilongjiang Province, the PRC, in
April 2018. She was awarded as an Agricultural Products E-commerce Pioneer
by Department of Agricutture and Rural Affairs of Heilongjiang Province (F2#E
TEERERNEREMREMAT) and a Model Worker of the 37th session of
Harbin (WEETEE37/@ 45 ENEE) in 2019, and an Excellent Leader of Rural
Industry Development in Wuchang City (% M EFEREFTEA) in
2021. Ms. Zhao Shulan has also been elected as the representative of the |6th
People’'s Congress of Harbin from January 2022.

Mr. Shu Minghe (EFBAE), aged 34, is an executive Director. He was appointed
as a Director of the Company in August 2020, and has nearly |0 years of
experience in the pantry staple food industry. In January 2013, he joined Beijing
Heyulongsheng Trade Co., Ltd. (JL RBEWIERRE 5B A F]), which was de-
registered in August 2021, and served as a director and the general manager
of Shenyang Xinchang since December 2018, and an executive director and
the manager of Shiyue Daotian (Aohanqi) Agricultural Technology Co., Ltd.
since December 2020. In addition, he served as a director of Shiyue Daotian
Songyuan Agricultural Technology Co., Ltd. from April 2021 to May 2022. He
has also been serving as a director and the manager of Sukuaibang Shenyang
Supply Chain Technology Co., Ltd. since June 2021, and a director of Tonghe
County Caigiao Rice Co, Ltd. since September 2021. Mr. Shu Minghe is the
nephew of Mr. Wang, the nephew of Ms. Zhao and the nephew of Ms. Zhao
Shulan.
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EX EEKSAREEAEERE

Mr. Shu Minghe graduated from the Open University of China (BIZRFRUAE)
in Administrate Management in Beijing, the PRC, in July 2021.

Mr. Zou Hao (#2), aged 44, is an executive Director. He has joined our
Group since August 2022 and was appointed as a Director and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company in December 2022. Mr. Zou has nearly 20
years of experience in financing, investment, management and operation of
assets management companies and other matters relating to corporate finance
and investment. Before joining the Group, Mr. Zou served as an accountant
at KPMG Huazhen LLP (EFBEERE AN EEFT) from 2002 to 2005.
From 2005 to 2011, Mr. Zou successively served as an analyst at the Beijing
office of Investment Banking Department of Deutsche Bank AG, an associate
at BOC Intemational Asia Limited ({FEREIFRIEARBBR A E]) and an associate
at the Hong Kong office of Investment Banking Department of Deutsche Bank
AG. From March 2011 to February 2016, Mr. Zou consecutively held a series
of positions in ICBC International Holdings Limited (T iREIBRIFARER A
A)), including vice president and executive director. He worked as a managing
director of Zhongrong International Capital Management Limited (FF BRI &
KNEEBMRATA] from February 2016 to January 2017, and the chief executive
officer of Hwabao WP Asset Management (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. (EBEE
BIR(EA)BRAR]) from July 2017 to June 2019. From December 2019 to
March 2021, Mr. Zou served as the co-president, chief financial officer, board
secretary and a joint company secretary of Sichuan Languang Justbon Services
Group Co,, Ltd. (formerly listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2606) and delisted on August 19, 2021 due to unconditional mandatory
cash offer takeover). Subsequent to that, Mr. Zou served as the chief financial
officer of Shanghai Sunrise Equity Investment Fund Management Co.,, Ltd. (/&
EEREREESEEAR AT from September 2021 to August 2022,

Mr. Zou received his bachelor's degree in Economic Information Management
from Renmin University of China (FEIARAKE) in Beijing the PRC, in July
2002 and his MBA degree from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in Hong Kong in November 2008. Mr. Zou became a chartered
financial analyst charterholder of the CFA Institute since October 2017.
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Biographical Details of Directors,Supervisors and Senior Management
EX EERSREEBEAEREE

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chang Bin (H3H), aged 43, is a non-executive Director. He has been a
Director of the Company since August 2020. Mr. Chang served as a senior
consuttant of Deloitte Enterprise Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Beijing branch ({2
FEFR(EHBERAFILRDAF]) from October 2004 to September
2006, a principal of Capital Today China Growth (HK) Limited (%5 B & (E
) BBRAR]), from September 2006 to October 2013, and a vice president of
Beijing Jingdong Century Trading Co,, Ltd. Jt R R H 42 E ZHR A F]) from
November 2013 to May 2020. He is the founder and has been serving as the
managing partner of GenBridge Capital since December 2016.

Mr. Chang received his bachelor's degree in international trade from Peking
University (365 AE2) in Beijing, the PRC, in July 2002. He holds the fund
qualification from Asset Management Association of China (FBIEHIZEE®
) since July 2018.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shi Ketong (5252 #), aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in March 2023, effective from the Listing Date. Mr. Shi is
a senior partner of the Beijing office of Jincheng & Tongda Law Offices (&3
[FiEEZEMEAT) where he has been a full-time lawyer since 1994 and has
accumulated over 20 years of experience in providing legal services to clients on
PRC corporate investment, stock issuance and listing, mergers and acquisitions,
restructuring and liquidation. Prior to joining Jincheng & Tongda Law Offices,
he practised law at King & Capital Law Firm (F&BEEIEEFT) in Beijing from
2000 to 2001 and at Shandong Luzhong Law Offices (LLIERE RN ESHT).
Mr. Shi has also been a director of Beijing Legal Aid Foundation since August
2018.
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EX EEKSAREEAEERE

He has been serving as a director of Beijing Infrastructure Investment Co, Ltd.
AERMERKMEREBRAA]) since October 2023, an independent director
of Bohai Industrial Investment Fund (EIEEXEIREESERBRAR]) since
November 2016, an independent director of Aimer Co,, Ltd. (R HERHBRA
A]), a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603511) since
January 2020, and an independent director of Guotou Taikang Trust Co,, Ltd. (El
KREEFEBBRAF]) since December 2021, Mr. Shi served as a director of
Beijing Public Transport Holdings (Group) Ltd. (At AR BIE (G E)BR
2 A]) from February 2015 to September 2023, an independent non-executive
director of China Zhongwang Holdings Limited, the shares of which were
formerly listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1333) and were delisted on
April 13, 2023, from August 2008 to October 2021, an independent director
of UBS SDIC Fund Management Co,, Ltd. (B IRiRESEEBRAF]) from
April 2012 to April 2021, a director of Shandong Hongcheng Bond Financial
Leasing Co,, Ltd. (IR REFHEMERESHBRAF]) from January 2014 to
November 2018, an independent director of Whole Easy Internet Technology
Co, ltd. (RIEEEEIHRMN BT (previously known as Kunshan Jinli
Surface Material Application Technology Co., Ltd. (L% FI5K B k&R
BHZ# 17 B IR 2 7)), whose shares were formerly listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange and delisted on June 28, 2022 (stock code: 002464) from June
2015 to September 2019, an independent director of Chongging Broadcasting
Digital Medial Co. Ltd. (BEEBEHFEHEERNH AR D A]) from December
2015 to November 2019, and an independent director of Zhongrun Resources
Investment Incorporated Company (F/E&IRIZERHDBRAF]), a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000506) from September
2020 to December 2021.

Mr. Shi received a bachelor's degree in economic law from China University
of Political Science and Law (P EIBUEARE), China in 1992. He received the
Lawyer's Practise License from Department of Justice in Shandong (ILI & & Bli%
FE) in 1994.
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Biographical Details of Directors,Supervisors and Senior Management
EE  EERSAEEAEEE

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat (B37&3Z), aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in March 2023, effective from the Listing Date. Mr. Yeung
has approximately 30 years of experience in audit, financing and accounting
industries. Mr. Yeung currently is the president (2022-2023) and an executive
council member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-executive Director
Association. He worked at a major intemational accounting firm for over 10
years and then worked for various Hong Kong listed companies as the vice
president, the chief financial officer, the financial controller and/or the company
secretary. He is an independent non-executive director of Sitoy Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1023), ZO
Future Group (formerly known as Birmingham Sports Holdings Limited), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2309), ImmuneOnco
Biopharmaceuticals (Shanghai) Inc,, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code:1541) and Beijing Capital Grand Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1329).

Mr. Yeung served as an independent non-executive director of ANTA Sports
Products Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2020),
from February 2007 to June 2018, Boer Power Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:1685), from September 2010 to June
2020, Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited (formerly
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1296) and delisted on May 30, 2022)
from August 2017 to June 2022, and as an independent director of New Hope
Dairy Holdings Co., Ltd. (1% L3N BER AT, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002946), from December 2016 to May
2023.

Mr. Yeung holds a bachelor's degree in Business Administration from The
University of Hong Kong in 1993 and a master’s degree in Professional
Accounting with distinction from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
2004. He has been a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, respectively.

Mr. Lin Chen (#R/R), aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in March 2023, effective from the Listing Date. Mr. Lin has served as
director of CNCB (Hong Kong) Investment Limited since January 2022 and
China Merchants Land Asset Management Co., Limited (the manager of China
Merchants Commercial REIT, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1503) since December 2019. Mr. Lin has been the Chair of Finance,
Stelux Professor in Finance (since August 2013), and Associate Vice President

(since January 2023) of The University of Hong Kong.
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EX EEKSAREEAEERE

Mr. Lin obtained a bachelor's degree in Engineering from the South China
University of Technology (2532 T K&) in Guangdong, the PRC, in July 2000
and an MBA in May 2004, M.A. in August 2005 and Ph.D. in August 2006 from
University of Florida in Florida, the United States. He is an advisory member of
the Hong Kong Institute for Monetary and Financial Research of the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority since 2019, a member of the Hang Seng Index Advisory
Committee and a member of the Fintech Advisory Group of Hong Kong SFC
since 2021, a Member of the Academia Europaea since 2022, a Fellow of the
Academy of Social Sciences, UK since 2023, a non-official member of the Task
Force on Promoting Web3 Development of the Government of Hong Kong
since July 2023 and a member of the Central Bank Digital Currency Expert
Group of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority since October 2023. Mr. Lin also
served as a member of the Currency Board Sub-Committee of the Exchange

Fund Advisory Committee of Hong Kong from 2016 to 2022.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Mr. He Yang (fAl3¥), aged 40, has been a Supervisor since December 2022.
Mr. He joined our Group in September 2020, serving as the director of Human
Resources Department of the Company since then. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. He served as a Human Resources director of meat product and farming
department and a director of Human Resources Business Partner at COFCO
Joycome Foods Limited (formerly known as COFCO Meat Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1610) from August 2009 to
December 2017. He served as a manager of Human Resources Department and
assistant manager of consumer product department at COFCO Tunhe Tomato
Co, Ltd. (FIEHE A EAABPRAF]) from January 2018 to September 2020.

Mr. He received his bachelor's degree in Human Resources Management from
Northeast Normal University (FRILEDEEAZE) in Jiin Province, the PRC, in
September 2007 and his master's degree in Human Resources Management
from Remin University of China in Beijing, the PRC, in June 2009. He holds the
title of a senior human resources manager from Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security of the PRC (2 A RHEMEIH &IREED) in September
2014, an intermediate economist from Beijing Municipal Human Resources and
Social Security Bureau (3L AN &R ERER) in April 2015, and a
certified management accountant of Institute of Management Accountant of the

United States in September 2019.
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Mr. Li Xiang (Z=£), aged 34, has been a Supervisor of the Company since
December 2022. Mr. Li joined our Group in May 2020, serving as a supermarket
operation director since then. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Li worked in
Beijing Carrefour (Fangyuan Store) Commercial Co., Ltd. (At RRL&E‘EE%EE
FRARIFTEE) from August 2012 to November 2013. He worked in Beijing
Carrefour Commercial Co,, Ltd. Gt REKEEEEE AR AF]) from December
2013 to April 2015, and in Carrefour (China) Management Consulting Services
Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch (R&B(F R EEHARBERARILRS A
Al) from May 2015 to May 2017, a procurement manager in Beijing Jingdong
Century Trading Co., Ltd. from June 2017 to July 2019, and an operation
manager of e-commerce platform in Guangdong Beyond Intemet Technology
Co, Ltd. (BRARALEEHZH R A R]) from August 2019 to January 2020.

Mr. Li obtained his bachelor's degree in software engineering from Beijing
University of Chemical Technology North College (At 5/t TAEZ L5 &bt in
Beijing, the PRC, in July 2012.

Ms. Wang Zhijuan (E&18), aged 40, has been a Supervisor since December
2022. Ms. Wang served as an accountant at Beijing Shenglong Trade Co., Ltd.
CtRREMEBREEAT]) from June 2007 to November 2009 and an
accountant at Symfun Telecom Co., Ltd. Gt RAEANBERITFEERET
~al) from November 2009 to May 201 1. She worked at Guangdong Dayipin
Agriculture Technology Co.,, Ltd. Beijing Branch (BERA—MmEEEHIBRA
AL R DA F]) from October 2011 to November 2014. She also served as a
finance accountant at Beijing Magic Universe Network Co, Ltd. (3t F 182
REEHBRAE]) from December 2014 to January 2015, a finance manager
at Sanhe WODA Hydraulics Control System Ltd. (Z)AJKE &R BRIEH R4
B AT from March 2016 to December 2016, a finance manager at Beijing
Heyulongsheng Trade Co, Ltd. QtREHMERE S EMRAF]) from January
2017 to April 2021, an accountant manager from May 2021 to July 2021 and an
administrative director since August 2021 of Shiyue Daotian (Beijing) Technology
Development Co,, Ltd.

Ms. Wang received her bachelor's degree in economics from Southwest
University (FEESAZ) in Chongging, the PRC, in June 2007. She holds the title
of intermediate accountant from Beijing Human Resources and Social Security

Bureau since January 2016.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Bing (£ £%) is our General Manager. For the biographical details of

Mr. Wang, see “—Directors — Executive Directors”.

Ms. Zhao Wenjun (#3X %) is the Deputy General Manager and Chief
Marketing Officer of the Company. For the biographical details of Ms. Zhao, see “—

Directors — Executive Directors”.

Mr. Zou Hao (%) is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. For the

biographical details of Mr. Zou Hao, see "~ Directors — Executive Directors’.

Ms. Chen Hua (BREE), aged 46, is the board secretary since December 2022
and a joint company secretary of the Company. Ms. Chen is responsible
for corporate governance, information disclosure and investor relationship
management of our Group. She served as a director of Shenyang Xinchang
since December 2018 and the finance manager of Shiyue Daotian (Beijing)
Technology Development Co., Ltd. since April 2021. Prior to joining our Group,
Ms. Chen served as accountant at Beijing Shenglong Trade Co., Ltd. from August
2001 to June 2009, worked as the finance manager of Apollo Technology Trade
(Beijing) Co,, Ltd. (FIAEERIE L) BRAF]) from June 2012 to June 2017
and served as the finance manager of Beijing Junsheng Xinyue Trade Co, Ltd. (1t
REBRMIEE SHRAR) from September 2017 to May 2020.

Ms. Chen received a college diploma in marketing from Dalian Jiaotong
University (KEZRIBAER) (formerly known as Dalian Railway College (A%
#EEZP))in Liaoning Province, the PRC, in July 1999 and received her bachelor’s
diploma in accounting from Northeast Finance University (FIEETEEAER) in
Liaoning Province, the PRC, in 2004. She holds the title of an intermediate
accountant from Beijing Municipal Human Resources and social security bureau
in 2005, a tax agent from Beijing Certified Tax Agents Association (3t 7
TRISANHE) in 2016, and a certified management accountant from Institute of
Management Accountants of the United States in 2022.
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Biographical Details of Directors,Supervisors and Senior Management
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Chen Hua (FRZE) is the board secretary and a joint company secretary
of the Company. For the biographical details of Ms. Chen Hua, see “— Senior

Management”.

Ms. Oh Sim Yee (#Af&#l) is a joint company secretary of the Company. Ms.
Oh is an assistant manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited and has over ten years of experiences in corporate secretarial field. She
has been an associate member of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom since
2017. Besides, she holds a bachelor of Business degree in accounting from

Victoria University, Australia.

CHANGE IN BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lin Chen has become a member of the Central Bank Digital Currency
Expert Group (R1TEUHEMEEZ/ME) of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
since October 2023.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERBE

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for the period
from the Listing Date to December 31, 2023.

CORPORATE CULTURE

We have regarded “being committed to providing Chinese consumers with
quality, healthy and fresh food products” as our core values all along, and have
infiltrated this culture into our services to external customers and the training of
internal employees, aiming at “building a valuable and influential food brand in

China” by enhancing our service quality and operational efficiency.

We are committed to promoting standardization, quality and branding
throughout the pantry staple food industry. We aim to create sustainable
value and promote positive energy by demonstrating our commitment to our

employees, customers, partners and society.

For further information of the Company's corporate culture, please refer to the
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report published together with
this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

We are committed to achieving high standards of corporate governance which
is crucial to our development and safeguard the interests of our Shareholders.
The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as the basis of the Company's corporate governance practices since the

Listing Date.

During the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2023, the Company
has complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code, except for the deviation from code provision C.2.1, which
is further illustrated in the section headed “Chairman and General Manager”
below. The Board will continue to review and monitor the Corporate
Governance Code practices of the Company with an aim of maintaining a high

standard of corporate governance.
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THE BOARD

Composition of the Board

As of December 31, 2023 and the Latest Practicable Date, our Board consists of
nine Directors, comprising five executive Directors, one non-executive Director
and three independent non-executive Directors. All Directors are elected by the
general meeting for a term of three years which is renewable upon re-election.

The current members of the Board of the Company are listed as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Bing (Chairman of the Board and General Manager)
Ms. Zhao Wenjun

Ms. Zhao Shulan

Mr. Shu Minghe

Mr. Zou Hao

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chang Bin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shi Ketong
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat
Mr. Lin Chen

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed "Biographical
Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this report. Save
as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management” of this report, there are no financial, business, family,

or other material or relevant relationships among members of the Board.
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Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, oversees
the Company’s businesses, investment and strategic decisions, maintains the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems,

and monitors the performance of the Company.

The major powers and functions of the Board include, but are not limited to,
convening the general meetings, presenting reports to the general meetings,
implementing the resolutions passed at the general meetings, determining the
operational plans and investment plans of the Group, developing the annual
financial budgets and final accounts of the Group, establishing the fundamental
management systems of the Group, formulating profit distribution plans and
loss recovery plans of the Group, and exercising other powers and functions as
conferred by the Articles of Association. Our senior management is responsible
for the management of day-to-day operations of the Group, including but not
limited to implementing strategies and instructions determined by the Board,
organizing and coordinating the work among various departments and teams of

the Company.

Chairman of the Board and General Manager

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of Part Il of the Corporate Governance Code,
the roles of chairman and general manager should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. However, the Company does not have
a separate role of chairman and general manager and the responsibilities of
chairman and general manager are both undertaken by Mr. Wang. The Board
believes that having the same person assume the responsibilities of chairman and
general manager is conducive to ensuring consistent leadership within the Group
and making the Group’s overall strategic planning more effective and efficient.
In addition, since there are three independent non-executive Directors among
the nine Directors in total of the Board, there will be sufficient independent
voices in the Board to protect the interests of the Company and Shareholders
as a whole. The Board considers that the balance of power and authority for
the present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will enable the
Company to make and implement decisions promptly and effectively. The Board
will continue to review and monitor the corporate governance code practices
of the Company with an aim of maintaining a high standard of corporate

governance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code provision

A.2.l of the Corporate Governance Code, which include:

(@)  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

()  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company's compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix Cl| to the Listing Rules and disclosure in

the corporate governance report.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors are

independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years following his/her respective appointment
date unless it is terminated in accordance with their respective terms, and are

eligible to offer themselves for re-election upon expiry of term.
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Training and Professional Development

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their unceasing contribution

to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director of the Company has received a formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction training on his/her first appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director's responsibilities and obligations under

the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

To help the Directors develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, various
training and lectures would be arranged at regular intervals, and the Directors
would be provided with relevant laws, rules and regulations and amendments
to or latest versions of the Listing Rules to keep them informed of the latest
development. During the Reporting Period, all of the Directors have participated
in training courses or reading materials on corporate governance and related
topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provided relevant

records of training to the Company.

Directors

=
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REERERTANTARIEC 41K - MEES
BRESEFBENTEERR  UEREEHNLMB K
B KMBRAEEHETEHRENBEREBRNE
B o

BRFEEENEREZERIRIEHES - 2EK
EHIRRBE - RREEZEARAEBRLERS
o WD TR EMARRRBRATERE NAAEDN
EEREREE -

REDEFBRRMEMNBENHMBRIKEE - ARFH
ML s REAME - BE - EFTHERHEE
ROADI ~ BRI R ARG B LT AR ANERT B FARA - A
ERETHRENERE - RBSHA - 2PEFC2H
BEHIRIZHAERBEEE A REARENMBIAR
M REHEMBAMEE - WAADREHAREI
5% o

Type of Training (Note)
sEANEB (Hat)

Executive Directors
HITEF

Mr. Wang Bing
FRELE

Ms. Zhao Wenjun
WX E Lt
Ms. Zhao Shulan
Rt
Mr. Shu Minghe
FRAELL
Mr. Zou Hao
FREE
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Directors

E=

TEETARBRE

Type of Training (Note)
BB (Hat)

Non-executive Director
FHITEE

Mr. Chang Bin
XA

Independent non-executive Directors
BUIIFNTEF

Mr. Shi Ketong

SErRBRE

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat

BEERE

Mr. Lin Chen

MEELE

Notes:
a Training provided by law firm
b: Internal training and/or seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

c Reading study materials regarding Directors’ duties and responsibilities and/or the
latest corporate governance requirements

Directors and Supervisors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors since the Listing Date.
Having made specific enquiries with all Directors and Supervisors, each of them
has confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code from the Listing
Date to the end of the Reporting Period.
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Independent Views and Opinions

The Board has established relevant mechanisms to ensure that the Board obtains
independent views and opinions. According to the provisions of the Articles
of Association, there are three independent Directors on the Board where,
among the members, at least one third of them shall be independent Directors,
including at least one member who is an accounting professional. Apart from
the regular Board meetings, the Chairman holds a meeting with the independent

non-executive Directors, without the presence of other Directors once a year.

Our Articles of Association and the terms of reference of each Board
Committee are stipulated in written form to ensure that independent non-
executive Directors remain independent and feel free to express their
opinions, and that their opinions are systematically considered by the Board.
The executive Directors and the Chairman also communicate directly with the
independent non-executive Directors on a regular basis to obtain independent

views and opinions on a broad range of matters.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has complied with the aforesaid relevant
regulations, and the aforesaid mechanisms are effective to provide independent
views and opinions to the Board. The Board will review the implementation and

effectiveness of the aforesaid mechanisms annually.

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and Shareholders’ General

Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly, at least
four times a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals in accordance with
the Corporate Governance Code. Notices of no less than fourteen days are
given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity

to attend and discuss matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying Board documents are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee members at least three days
before the meetings to ensure that all Directors have full and timely access to
any information from senior management to enable them to make informed

decisions and discharge their duties and responsibilities.
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As the shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on October
12, 2023, the code provisions regarding the number of board meetings did
not apply to the Company during the year ended December 31, 2023, and
therefore no meeting was held during the Reporting Period. Commencing from
January |, 2024, the Company will fully comply with the requirements under
the code provision C5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix Cl to the Listing Rules by convening Board meetings at least four

times a year.

From the Listing Date to the Latest Practicable Date, the attendance records of
each Director at the Board meetings, committee meetings and general meetings

are set out as follows:

Name of Director Board

BEEpR =g

TRERHE

HRARFRMDR2023F 108 12BEBIFF LR - &
22023F 12A3IBLLFE -  FHEBHAESFE R
B ST ARSI T EARARE + HUR R B A R 2
T2 °c B2024F | 1B - ARRHEE@ETLES
AN ERCI FTEC R EE AT AR SFRIGIECS. &
WRT  BFEAAZLINAEZEEE o

RETEMESRRERATEY  SEENEEES
# o RESRIMBERAGMHFECHENAT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEEERE
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting

EREEE FMEEE RREEES [ E N

Executive Directors

HITEE

Mr. Wang Bing 212
ERELE

Ms. Zhao Wenjun 212
HXERL

Ms. Zhao Shulan 2/2
MBS+

Mr. Shu Minghe 212
FABERLE

Mr. Zou Hao 212
PREE

Non-executive Director

FHITEE

Mr. Chang Bin 212
BT

N/A [/1 I/ 0/0
N/A N/A N/A 0/0
N/A N/A N/A 0/0
N/A N/A N/A 0/0
N/A N/A N/A 0/0

171 N/A N/A 0/0
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEERRB

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEnE EEE® ERERET FMESEE REEET BRRAE
Independent non-executive Directors
BUHHTEE
Mr. Shi Ketong 212 I/1 [/1 [/ 0/0
SRBELE
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat 212 171 I/1 N/A 0/0
S ST
Mr. Lin Chen 212 N/A N/A 11 0/0
MEEE
Board Committees EEZEE

The Company has established three Board Committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
All Board Committees are established with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and are

available to the Shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of one non-executive Director, namely Mr.
Chang Bin, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shi
Ketong and Mr. Yeung Chi Tat. Mr. Yeung serves as the chairman of the Audit

Committee. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

0) Advise the Board on the appointment, re-appointment, replacement and
removal of external auditors, approve the remuneration and terms of
employment of external auditors, and address any issues relating to the

resignation or dismissal of external auditors;
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(i

(ii)

(iv)

V)

(V)

(vii)

Corporate Governance Report

Review and monitor whether the external auditors are independent
and objective and whether the audit procedures are effective according
to applicable standards; the Audit Committee should discuss with the
auditors about the nature, scope, methods and relevant declaration

responsibilities before the audit work begins;

Formulate and implement policies regarding the engagement of external

auditors to provide non-audit services;

Review and monitor the truthfulness, completeness and accuracy of the
Company's financial statements (including their disclosures), annual reports
and accounts and interim reports, and review the material opinions on

the relevant financial reporting contained in the statements and reports;

Examine the Company's financial policies, financial supervision and control,
internal audit system, risk management and internal control systems, and

provide opinions and suggestions for improvement;

Serve as the primary representative between the Company and the

external auditors to monitor their relationship; and

Matters as required by applicable laws, regulations, the Articles of
Association and the Hong Kong Listing Rules and other matters

authorized by the Board of the Company.

As the Company was listed on October 12, 2023, no Audit Committee meeting

was held during the Reporting Period.

Subsequent to December 31, 2023 and up to the date of this annual report, the

Audit Committee held one meeting to discuss and review the following matters:

the annual results announcement for the year ended December 31, 2023;

effectiveness and adequacy of risk management and internal control

systems for the year ended December 31, 2023;

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(i)

(vii)
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TRERBE

scope of audit work and reporting responsibilities of the external auditors;

whether the external auditors are independent and objective and the

audit procedures are effective according to applicable standards; and

appointment of the external auditors for the year ended December 31,
2024.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the 2023 annual results and annual report

of the Company, as well as the audited consolidated financial statements for

the year ended December 31, 2023 prepared in accordance with the IFRS

Accounting Standards.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director, namely Mr.

Wang, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shi Ketong

and Mr. Yeung Chi Tat. Mr. Shi serves as the chairman of the Remuneration

Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

0)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

46

Formulate remuneration plans or proposals based on the main duties,
scope, importance, time commitment of the positions of Directors and
senior management officers and other necessary factors such as the
remuneration level of relevant positions in society. Remuneration plans or
proposals mainly include, but are not limited to, performance evaluation
standards, procedures and primary evaluation systems, major plans and
systems for rewards and punishments, etc., and should include non-
monetary benefits, pension rights and compensation amounts (including

compensation for loss or termination of office or appointment);

Make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of

individual executive Directors and senior management officers;

Make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-

executive Directors;
Consider the remuneration paid by similar companies, the time

commitment and responsibilities as well as the employment conditions of

other positions within the Group;
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(vii)

(viii)
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Study the evaluation standards for Directors and senior management
officers and make recommendations to the Board, review the
performance of duties by the Company’s Directors (non-independent
non-executive Directors) and senior management officers and conduct

their annual performance appraisals;

Review and approve compensation payable to the executive Directors
and senior management officers for loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that such compensation is consistent with the
terms of the contract; if not consistent with the terms of the contract,

such compensation must be fair and reasonable and not excessive;

Review and approve the compensation arrangements involved in the
dismissal or removal of Directors due to misconduct to ensure that
such arrangements are consistent with the terms of the contract; if not
consistent with the terms of the contract, such compensation must be

reasonable and appropriate;

Ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in the

determination of his/her own remuneration;

Responsible for supervising the implementation of the Company’s
remuneration rules and review the relevant remuneration policies on a

regular basis; and

Review and/or approve matters related to share schemes as described in

Chapter 17 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

As the Company was listed on October 12, 2023, no Remuneration Committee

meeting was held during the Reporting Period.

Subsequent to December 31, 2023 and up to the date of this annual report,

the Remuneration Committee held one meeting to discuss and consider the

following matters:

recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
executive Directors, non-executive Director and senior management for

the year ended December 31, 2024; and

recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
independent non-executive Directors for the year ended December 31,
2024.

v

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, namely Mr.

Wang, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shi Ketong

and Mr. Lin Chen. Mr. Wang currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination

Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

0

(i

(i

(iv)

)

(V)

(vii)

(viil

(ix)

48

Evaluate and review the size and composition of the Board (including
skills, knowledge and experience) at least once a year based on the
Company's operating activities, asset size and equity structure, and make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to the Board in

line with the Company's strategies;

Formulate the Company's corporate governance policies and practices,

review their implementation, and make recommendations to the Board;

Study the selection criteria and procedures for Directors, general manager
and other senior management officers and make recommendations,
inspect and supervise the training and continuing professional

development plans for Directors and senior management officers;

Select qualified candidates for Directors, general manager and other

senior management officers;

Review and make recommendations on Director candidates and

candidates for general manager and other senior management officers;

Review the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

Make recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors (in
particular, the Chairman of the Board), general manager and other senior

management officers;

Formulate and maintain a policy on Board diversity, and conduct regular
reviews, and disclose such policy or the summary of such policy on Board

diversity in the annual report of the Company; and
Matters required by applicable laws and regulations, the Articles of

Association, the Listing Rules and other matters authorized by the Board

of the Company.
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The Nomination Committee shall study the selection criteria, selection
procedures and term of office of the Directors and senior management of
the Company in accordance with provisions of relevant laws, administrative
regulations, other regulatory documents, the Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association and taking into account the actual conditions of the Company,
formulate resolutions and submit them to the Board for consideration and

approval, and implement accordingly.

As the Company was listed on October 12, 2023, no Nomination Committee
meeting was held during the Reporting Period.

Subsequent to December 31, 2023 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee held one meeting to discuss and consider the following

matters:

. reviewed and confirmed the structure, size and composition of the Board
and the split between number of executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors remained appropriate for the Board to perform

its duties;

. reviewed and confirmed the Board members have a diverse mix of skills,

knowledge, experience and gender; and

. reviewed the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy”).

Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to our Board Diversity Policy, selection of Board candidates will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, industry experience, technical
capabilities, professional qualifications and skills, knowledge, length of service and
other related factors. We will also consider our own business model and special
needs. The ultimate selection of Director candidates will be based on merits of

the candidates and contribution that the candidates will bring to our Board.
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The Company attaches great importance to the importance and benefits of ARFREREZTEHEUZTENEEERERE
gender diversity on the members of the Board, and the Company's Board AAGMEZS L BRI BRESSEEHERMN
Diversity Policy ensures that the Board will have potential successors as a  EE#TEUTCEESSMBOMRIZ T -

substitute to sustain the existing gender diversity of the Board.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the Board AEMEEEZILEEK EFZRTEATAFEN
has set the following measurable objectives and reviewed such objectives from  B1ZE * WARRNZEEE @ UBEREBZHLER
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress towards — EIRiZE B IZMESE -

achieving those objectives:

(A)  at least one of the members of the Board is female; (A BL—REZERBEALTME

(B) at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be independent non-  (B) ZEAZH 2 —WMEFEESKEBABIIERNTE
executive Directors; S

(C)  at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained accounting (C) ZEA>—REFE@XNEBESLHIHEHMIEEE

or other professional qualifications/knowledge of environmental issues. % RIEMENAE

An analysis of the Board's current composition based on the measurable ETEEEMIRITHEKILAITEEZAEENHITOT ¢

objectives is set out below:

Gender Diversity

3 ES(4

Male: 7 Directors
St TRES
Female: 2 Directors
2 pEZ &=
Position

B

Executive Directors: 5 Directors
WITESE SEREE
Non-executive Director: | Director
FEHTEE - | ZES
Independent non-executive Directors: 3 Directors
BIYIFMITES EE- &=
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Professional Background and Experience
EXE SRR

Accounting and finance:

SETEMT -

Law:

P

Experience related to the Company's business:

EARRRRBGHHRER

Our Board currently consists of two female Directors and seven male Directors
with a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including but not limited to
overall management and strategic development, finance, accounting and risk
management. The Company currently has three independent non-executive
Directors with different industry backgrounds, including accounting, auditing,
economics, law, etc. In addition, our Board has a relatively wide range of ages
ranging from 34 years old to 55 years old. The Company is of the view that
the Board satisfies our Board Diversity Policy, and have achieved the above

measurable objectives.

Our Nomination Committee is responsible for the implementation of our Board
Diversity Policy, and will review our Board Diversity Policy from time to time to

ensure its continued effectiveness.

For information on the diversity of the Company’s employees, please refer to
the section headed “Human Resources and Remuneration Policy” of this annual

report.

Directors’ Responsibility in respect of the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated

financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to

continue as a going concem.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s

Report on pages 81 to 87.

TRERHE

3 Directors
RES
| Director
IREE
4 Directors

ABEER

BMESSERAMBLESZTRELRBESAR - &
FEHENMBEREES  BEETRNEEEIRE
BEEEE B g5 kEARERE - ARRHEE=H
BUIERITES - EETRTESS  BESH - #
ETORE  ERE o N EFENFREEMBLEE
e FREBEN T34 ESSHE c ARTIRE BEEE
ENAESSLIUEBEMNER - WEER LAl &t

EHE -

REZBERAAEFEZLCHRNER - §THR
HEERZ I CBEAEREFEAR -

BERARRBEIZUBERFLREAFHRIANERE
FrBHBOR | — & o
ESHHMBRRNER

BEERREREADNREET2023FENA3IBIEEES
I BIREROEMS -

EEUVTAEEAYARAHBL LRI ARSI EE
REEFE R EMEATEERFRBER

ARARBIUZEMAEBEVBRENBEETERAH
RESIBEFES7HB I ZEAIHENA -

+ ABAEERGERAT FEH503 O



Corporate Governance Report
TRERBE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditor of the
Company, KPMG, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year

ended December 31, 2023 is set out below:

Service Category

BB &

FEE2023F 1231 H IEFE R IRE X IEF R
BRARRIINEZBMESFSREAMEFNEN,
R EHMomEN DT

Charges paid/payable

BR %38 5 e ENER
(RMB)

(AR #*EsT)

Audit services

ZEURTS 4,000,000

IPO-related services

BRAFREITHEBERS 6,000,000

Non-audit services

AL ERTE

Tax compliance services, ESG and other consulting services

MEARRE « ESGME M AR 483,000

Total

#Et 10,483,000

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Chen Hua and Ms. Oh Sim Yee have been appointed as the Joint Company
Secretaries of the Company. Ms. Oh is an assistant manager of SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited. The biographical details of Ms.
Chen Hua and Ms. Oh Sim Yee are set out in the section headed "Biographical

Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this report.

Ms. Chen Hua is the primary contact person of Ms. Oh Sim Yee in the
Company, and cooperates and communicates with Ms. Oh Sim Yee on the

Company's corporate governance matters.
During the year ended December 31, 2023, Ms. Chen Hua and Ms. Oh Sim

Yee have undertaken not less than |5 hours of relevant professional training

respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

The Shareholder(s) severally or jointly holding 10% or more shares in the
Company shall have the right to request the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and shall submit such request to the Board in writing. The
Board shall, in accordance with provisions of the law, administrative regulations
and the Articles of Association, inform in writing to indicate whether the Board
has agreed or disagreed to convene such extraordinary general meeting within
|0 days upon receipt of the request. If the Board has agreed to hold such
extraordinary general meeting, it shall serve a notice of the general meeting
within 5 days after the Board has passed the board resolution. The relevant
Shareholders’ consent shall be sought in respect of any changes to the original
proposal contained in such notice. If the Board does not agree to hold such
extraordinary general meeting or fails to give any reply within 10 days upon
receipt of such request, the Shareholder(s) severally or jointly holding 10% or
more shares in the Company shall have the right to propose to the Supervisory
Committee to hold such extraordinary general meeting and shall propose to
the Supervisory Committee in writing. If the Supervisory Committee agrees to
hold such extraordinary general meeting, it shall serve a notice of such general
meeting within 5 days upon receipt of such request. The relevant Shareholders'
consent shall be sought in respect of any changes to the original proposal
contained in such notice. If the Supervisory Committee fails to give such
notice for convening general meeting within the period of time prescribed, it
shall be deemed not to convene and preside over such general meeting. The
Shareholder(s) severally or jointly holding 10% or more shares in the Company
for more than 90 consecutive days may proceed to convene and preside over

such general meeting by themselves.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

The Shareholder(s) severally or jointly holding 3% or more shares in the
Company may bring forward provisional proposals and submit the same in
writing to the convener at 2/F, Building A, Yisha Wenxin Plaza, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, People’'s Republic of China (marked for the attention of the
Board/Company Secretary), 10 days prior to the general meeting. The convener
shall give a supplementary notice of the general meeting and publicly announce
the content of such provisional proposals within two days upon receipt of such

proposals.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Board believes that effective communication with Shareholders is essential
for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the Group’s
business performance and strategies. The Group also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable

Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

The Company mainly communicates with  Shareholders and investors by
releasing the Company's financial reports (including interim and annual reports),
annual general meetings and other general meetings that may be convened, and
by publishing on the Company’'s website all disclosure materials submitted to the
Stock Exchange and corporate communications and other company publications.
The Company also holds conference calls after publishing annual, interim and
quarterly results to discuss issues of common concern with investors and

Shareholders.

General Meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an important channel for
communication between the Board and the Shareholders. The Chairman of the
Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, will attend the annual general meeting and other relevant

general meetings to respond to Shareholders’ questions.

Corporate Communications

Corporate communications would be provided to Shareholders in plain
language and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate Shareholders’
understanding. Shareholders have the right to choose the language (either
English or Chinese) or means of receipt of the corporate communications (in

hard copy or through electronic means).
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Corporate Website

The Company maintains a website at www.shiyuedaotian.com as a
communication platform with Shareholders and investors. The information on
the website of the Company is updated on a regular basis. Information released
by the Company on the website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
is also posted on the Company's website immediately thereafter. Shareholders
can also have an access to press releases and other information issued by the

Company from time to time from the Company's website.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the Board.

The contact details are as follows:

Address: 2/F, Building A, Yisha Wenxin Plaza, Chaoyang District, Beijing,
People’s Republic of China (marked for the attention of the Board/
Company Secretary)

Email: sydtdb@shiyueddaotian.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders' information may be

disclosed as required by law.

Dividend Policy

For details of the Company's dividend policy, please refer to the “Directors’

Report” of this annual report.
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Shareholder Communication Policy

The Company adopted a shareholder communication policy after listing, in order
to ensure that Shareholders and investors can obtain fair and comprehensible
information about the Company on an equal basis at any time and in due
course, so that Shareholders can exercise their rights in an informed manner,
and to strengthen the communication among Shareholders, investors and the
Company. The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the shareholder communication policy, and has considered that the shareholder
communication policy has been effectively implemented after taking into account

the above measures during the year ended December 31, 2023.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles of Association is available on the websites of the Company
(www.shiyuedaotian.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk). From
the Listing Date to the end of the Reporting Period, no amendments were

made to the Articles of Association.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has established a risk management and internal control system, which
is responsible for independently reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and intermal control system of the Company, and continuously
monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of its operation once a year. In
particular, the Board acknowledges its responsibilities for overseeing the risk
management and internal control system of the Group. The system aims to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
promote effective and efficient operations, reasonably ensure the reliability of
financial reports and comply with applicable laws and regulations and protect the
assets of the Company. The Board can only give reasonable but not absolute

assurance that there will be no material misrepresentation or loss.
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Main Characteristics of the Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Company has established a sound risk management and internal control
organization system which includes the Board, the Audit Committee, the
Supervisory Committee, the management of the Company, the internal control
department, the internal audit department, the legal department and other
departments. The various business units of the Group are the first line of defense
for risk management and internal control; the management of the Company,
the interal control department and the legal department are the second line
of defense; while the internal audit department, the Audit Committee and the
Supervisory Committee are the third line of defense. The Board serves as the
highest leading organ for risk management and internal control of the Company,
and is ultimately responsible for the construction and effective operation of
the overall risk management system. It is responsible for the establishment,
consummation and effective operation of the overall risk management system,
and is responsible for clarifying the assignment of responsibility as to senior

management or each business unit in the risk management system.

Implementation of Risk Management and Internal Control

Based on the requirements under the five elements of internal control,
including internal environment, risk assessment, control activities, information
and communication, and internal supervision, the Company conducts a
comprehensive assessment of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems every year, and optimizes and updates the risk control

mechanism.

After risk assessment, the Company’s major risks in 2023 mainly involve business
risks, financial risks and compliance risks, and we have formulated feasible
response plans based on the Company's development status and strategic

planning:

Business risks: The business risks the Group mainly faces include food safety
risks, production quality risks, reputation risks and sustainable development risks.
The Board regularly discusses and identifies the potential risks of the Company,
tracks and verifies the effectiveness of existing risk response strategies, and
adjusts risk response strategies in a timely manner to ensure that business risks

are controllable.
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Financial risks: The Company has formulated and implemented financial
management policies to control financial risks, such as tax risks, capital risks and
financial reporting risks. Secondly, the Board regularly monitors financial results
and key operating data to ensure that the Company's financial risks remain within
acceptable limits and in compliance with regulations. In addition, the Company
also requires major suppliers to sign integrity agreements, and employees in
high-risk business positions to sign integrity commitment letters, and conduct
random checks on the business execution of key employees from time to time.
The Company also conducts intemal control management and anti-corruption
compliance training for employees from time to time to standardize the risk

management behavior of all employees.

The Group continuously improves its reporting policies and systems,
publicly releases its dedicated email addresses for reporting, and emphasizes
the protection for whistleblowers, keeping the personal information of
whistleblowers and the materials provided by whistleblowers strictly confidential.
For clues received from reports, the audit department of the Group shall
independently conduct investigations to ensure that both process and results are
objective and fair. The audit department regularly reports its work results to the

Audit Committee of the Board.

Procedures for Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information as well as

Internal Control Measures

The Company attaches great importance to the handling and dissemination
of inside information and has implemented policies regarding the handling
and dissemination of inside information. Before inside information is properly
disclosed in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, at all times, only
relevant persons (i.e. Directors, senior management and relevant employees)
shall have access to inside information on a need-to-know basis. Directors,
senior management and relevant employees who possess inside information or
potential inside information must take reasonable steps to keep it confidential

and ensure that their recipients are aware of their confidentiality obligations.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control System

In 2023, we evaluated and checked the effectiveness of our risk management
and internal control systems through channels such as the management, business
units in the risk management system, audit team of the Group and external
legal counsel to improve risk response measures. Meanwhile, in order to ensure
the effective operation of the risk management system, the Audit Committee

conducted review and supervision over the risk management work.

In accordance with the work requirements of relevant regulatory agencies and
the Group, internal audit department of the Group focuses on the Group's
risks at operational, financial and compliance level, actively carries out internal
control work, achieves more comprehensive and accurate risk monitoring, and
discovers latent risks more quickly. The internal audit department regularly
reports the results of internal reviews to the Audit Committee and the
Board, and is responsible for following up and confirming that management
has implemented rectification measures, promoting the improvement of the
Company's management systems and processes, and supporting the realization

of the Company’s medium- and long-term strategic objectives.

The Group continuously improves its reporting policies and systemes,
publicly releases its dedicated email addresses for reporting, and emphasizes
the protection for whistleblowers, keeping the personal information of
whistleblowers and the materials provided by whistleblowers strictly confidential.
For clues received from reports, the audit department of the Group shall
independently conduct third-party investigations to ensure that both process and
results are objective and fair. The audit department regularly reports its work

results to the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Group’s management procedures for financial reporting and information
disclosure, etc. are in strict compliance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Board office strictly conforms to the Rules on the Information
Disclosure Management formulated by the Company to carry out information
reporting, reviewing and disclosure. Prior to disclosing relevant information to
the public, the Group will ensure that such information is kept confidential
properly and will perform the obligation to inform and supervise the insiders of

inside information as required.
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As of December 31, 2023, the Board has conducted a review of the risk
management and internal control work during the Reporting Period, covering
all important monitoring aspects, including financial monitoring, operational
monitoring and compliance monitoring, to ensure that the Company’s resources,
staff qualifications and experience, staff training courses and related resources for
accounting, internal audit and financial report functions are sufficient. There was
no deficiency in material risk control nor any weakness in material risk control,
and the risk management and internal control system of the Group is effective

and sufficient.
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The Board is pleased to present this Report of Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended

December 31, 2023.

LIST OF DIRECTORS

The list of Directors during the Reporting Period and as of the Latest Practicable

Date is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Bing (Chairman)
Ms. Zhao Wenjun

Ms. Zhao Shulan

Mr. Shu Minghe

Mr. Zou Hao

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chang Bin

Independent Non-executive Directors'

Mr. Shi Ketong
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat
Mr. Lin Chen

Note:

Mr. Shi Ketong, Mr. Yeung Chi Tat and Mr. Lin Chen have served as independent
non-executive Directors of the Company since the Listing Date.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical

Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this report.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

We are one of the leading and rapidly growing pantry staple food companies in
China, enjoying a robust multichannel brand presence. We have been dedicated
to providing our consumers with premium prepackaged rice, whole grain, bean,
and dried food products since our inception, and have successfully established
and been operating multiple well-recognized brands, mainly including Shiyue
Daotian (- AFEH), Firewood Courtyard (5€ X KFt) and Sunshine Family (&
Z AK). We mainly supply rice products, whole grain, bean and other products,
as well as dried food products and other products. Rice products mainly include
pre-packaged rice products of different varieties, such as Wuchang rice (T AK),
Daoxiang rice (TAEK), long grain rice (FRHFLE AK) and Komachi rice (/JNE]K).
Whole grain and bean products mainly include pre-packaged mixed brown rice,
millet and red bean. Other products under this category primarily refer to seed
and corn products. Dried food products mainly include pre-packaged wood ear
mushrooms, snow fungus mushroom and lotus seeds. Other products under this

category mainly include by-products, such as bran, husk and fractioned rice.

Please refer to the sections headed "“Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and “Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements” of this report for a true and fair review of
the Group's business and analysis using financial key performance indicators, a
description of the key risks and uncertainties faced by the Group and discussion

of potential future development of the Group's business.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers. The Company provides good working environment and effective
incentive mechanism for employees, continuously optimizes employee training
system, provides different career development paths for employees, guides
employees to grow together with the enterprise, and protects the rights and
interests of employees. The Group deeply understands the changing market
demand and maintains a close relationship with customers by strengthening
communication with customers. The Group actively and effectively strengthens
the business cooperation with suppliers to ensure the stability of the its business

operation through continuous communication.

62  SHIYUE DAOTIAN GROUP CO, LTD 2023 Annual Report

FTEXK

BMEPEREARRAERNFFIRRMEELZ
—  BEBANZRERETEN - BRLAK - &
PBROARBHEERHEENAEREAL HE 2
BREEER ERNBUTELZEARIRTHNM
o ERERETAEA  RAKREMREBZEAR © 3
TRRHEKER  ME  SRREMER  REE
REMER - KRERTIZ2EEIRAARNABE

KEM  MABKRAK - BEK - RAFAK - T
KE - MEMNEREMTERRARRMKEIRSM
1B 'mPRRANE  RmBTEMERETERE
KEm LEERTIEZEBREEBEAE - RENET
CZmBTHMERTIESER  BR - HAXEE

e

- d

BAREXGNTEERNERMBHRARRRIERE
TN - AEBEBRNHEIERABMAEEN - A
SEEBRRERNABALARSESRYE - &
BEMNWEIN  CEERMERAFHHBHRME

S =z f

T &R °
BES - EFRHEEENEE

AEEERES  BFPFAMEBRIERIFBR - ARF
RETRHERFOTEREME RO BBES - &
BILETHEERR  REIRETRABEZREEC
SIEETHARARARE  REETIMHRERESE °
AEBBBEEFINGERE  RAATHRELOTIETE
K BEPREGBRRENETHE - ARERBR
BER  BEBRARLINEEHERNEBSIERE
BREBEERT -



SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's performance by business segment for the year is set

out in the note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The Group'’s operating results for the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page 88 of

this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are

set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

Based on the Group's overall operating performance for the year, and taking
into account the Group's earnings, overall financial condition, and capital
expenditures, etc, the Board will recommend the distribution of a final dividend
("Final Dividend") of RMB0.031 per Share (tax inclusive, with total Final
Dividend being approximately RMB33,112,747.65) as of the end of the year at
the Company's upcoming annual general meeting (the "AGM"), which accounts
for approximately 20.4% of the Group’s adjusted net profit for the year ended
December 31, 2023. The proposed Final Dividend will be declared in RMB and
paid in Hong Kong dollars to the holders of our H Shares (“H Shareholders”).
The Final Dividend paid in HK$ will be converted from RMB to HK$ based on
the average exchange rate of RMB against HK$ of the five business days prior
to the AGM of the Company released by the People’s Bank of China, and
the Final Dividend paid to the holders of our Domestic Shares will be paid in
RMB. The proposed Final Dividend is subject to approval at the AGM before

implementation and is expected to be paid on or around July 19, 2024.
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In accordance with the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China and its implementation rules (the “EIT Law”), non-resident enterprises
shall pay enterprise income tax on income derived from China, and the
applicable tax rate is 10.0%. To this end, any H Shares registered in the name
of non-individual Shareholders, including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other
nominees, trustees or other organizations and groups will be treated as being
held by non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined in the EIT Law), and
the Company will distribute the Final Dividend to such non-resident enterprise

shareholders after withholding such 10.0% enterprise income tax.

When the Company distributes the 2023 Final Dividend to the individual
Shareholders, such dividend will be subject to the withholding of individual
income tax at a rate of 10% or 20%. However, if otherwise provided by tax
laws, relevant tax treaties or notices, the tax will be withheld in accordance with

the relevant requirements and tax levy and administration requirements.

The Company will not be liable for any claim or dispute over the withholding
mechanism arising from any delay in, or inaccurate determination of the status of
the Shareholders. The Board is not aware of any Shareholders who have waived

or agreed to waive any dividend.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have adopted a general annual dividend policy after listing, which is to
declare and pay a dividend of no less than 20% of our distributable net profit
every year in the future. Any declaration and payment of dividends will depend
on our actual and expected operating results, cash flows and financial condition,
overall business conditions and business strategies, expected working capital
requirements and future expansion plans, statutory, regulatory and other

contractual restrictions, and other factors which we consider relevant.

The decisions to declare and pay any dividends are subject to the approval by
the Board and are conditional upon the final approval from Shareholders. No
dividend shall be declared or payable except out of our profits and reserves
lawfully available for distribution. Any future net profit that we make will have to
be first applied to make up for our historically accumulated losses, subsequent
to which we will be obliged to allocate 10% of the net profit to our statutory
surplus reserve until such reserve has reached more than 50% of our registered

capital.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to Shareholders

by reason of their holding of the Company's Shares.

DONATION

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group made charitable or
other donations of approximately RMB903 thousand. For further details, please

refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are carried out primarily in the PRC, while the Shares
of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange. The businesses operated by
us are subject to the laws of relevant jurisdictions in the PRC, Hong Kong and
other related areas. During the year ended December 31, 2023 and as of the
Latest Practicable Date, we have complied with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group in the applicable jurisdictions. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any material non-compliance with

such laws and regulations.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SECURITIES

H Shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on October 12,
2023. From the Listing Date to December 31, 2023, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

On October 12, 2023, the Company’'s H Shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange, and the net proceeds from the Global Offering were approximately
HK$716.4 million after deducting underwriting commissions and other related
expenses. From the Listing Date to December 31, 2023, the use of proceeds

from the Global Offering and the planned schedule of the Company are as
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follows:
Utilized net  Unutilized net
Net proceeds  proceeds as of proceeds up to/
Approximate from the ~ December 31, as of December  Expected timeline for
% of total net  Global Offering 2023 31,2023 utilization of the balance
Intended Use proceeds  (HK$ million)  (HK$ million)  (HK$ million)  of the net proceeds
EE/
REBZBE  BEBF
12A318 Lk 12A318 1
EFERE 2HBE EHEAN  HARBAN
BFEH  FEREFE FENEFE FEREFE  FNBAENERER
RERZ #iwEsk (EE%n) (BE%R) (BE8%R) RELEAKRE

Enhancing our cooperation with suppliers and strengthening our

procurement capability 35% 250.74 0.00 25074 By the end of 2025

ERHERNATE  WNRRMNRELD PR025E KA

Expanding our production capacity, upgrading existing production lines,

broadening the geographic coverage of our warehousing and logistics, and

providing funds for production activities related to our business expansion 30% 21492 0.00 21492 By the end of 2025

EfER  RAESIR  BINARNREELE PR2025E KA
NRERPEHERRENIERDRIES

Expanding our channel coverage and establishing our sales ecosystem 10% 71.64 0.00 7164 By the end of 2025

MARMNEEREL BRI E L RER PR2025E KA

Enhancing our brand equity 10% 71.64 0.00 7164 By the end of 2025

RIARMOmED 6 PR025E KA

Constructing our digital middle platform system 5% 3582 0.00 3582 By the end of 2025

ERAMNBF T aRAR P02 E KA

Working capital and general corporate purposes 10% 71.64 0.10 7154 By the end of 2025

BEASR—REERR 2005 KA

Total

A% 100% 71640 0.0 71630
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From the Listing Date to December 31, 2023, the Group has used
approximately HK$0.10 million of the proceeds in accordance with the
proposed uses set out in the Prospectus, accounting for 0.01% of all funds
raised, and the remaining unutilized proceeds amounted to approximately
HK$716.30 million. From the Listing Date to the Latest Practicable Date, the
Group has used approximately HK$20.44 million of the proceeds in accordance
with the proposed uses set out in the Prospectus, accounting for 2.85% of all
funds raised, of which HK$19.93 million are used to enhance cooperation with
suppliers and strengthen our purchasing capabilities, HK$0.41 million are used
to promote existing production lines, and HK$0.10 million are used for general
corporate purpose. Due to the change in the overall market environment and
the decline in consumer confidence, after careful consideration, the Company
has suspended some of the investment originally planned for the fourth
quarter of 2023, which will be carried out in 2024 in succession. The balance
of proceeds from the listing will continue to be used in accordance with the

proposed purposes and planned time aforementioned.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details regarding the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note

| 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of changes in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2023 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of December 31, 2023, the distributable reserves of the Group amounted to
RMB37.27 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Company and the
Group during the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in note || to the

consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at December 31,

2023 are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ISSUED DEBENTURE

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group did not issue any

debenture.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, revenue from the Group's top five customers
accounted for approximately 60% of the Group's total revenue, while revenue
from the largest customer accounted for approximately 24% of the Group's

total revenue.

During the Reporting Period, the amount of purchases from the Group's top five
suppliers accounted for approximately |3% of the Group's total purchases, while
the amount of purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 3%

of the Group's total purchases.

During the Reporting Period, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of
the Directors or their associates or any Shareholders (who owned or to the
knowledge of Directors had owned more than 5% of our issued share capital)

has any interest in any of our top five suppliers and top five customers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has maintained directors’ liability insurance to protect the
Directors of the Company against any potential losses arising from his/her
actual or alleged misconduct. During the year and up to the Latest Practicable
Date, permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was
and is being in force for the benefit of the Directors of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into certain continuing connected transactions and
has proceeded with the same after listing. The transactions were entered into on
normal commercial terms and are exempt from the reporting, announcement,
shareholders’ approval and annual review requirements under Chapter [4A of
the Listing Rules. For details of the above fully exempt continuing connected
transactions, please refer to “Fully Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions”

in the chapter “Continuing Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus.

From the Listing Date to the year ended December 31, 2023 and up to the
Latest Practicable Date, we did not enter into any connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions being disclosable in accordance with Rules
[4A49 and 14A71 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended December 31, 2023, there is
no any related party transaction or continuing related party transaction set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements which constitutes a
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction that was required to
be disclosed under the Listing Rules. In respect of the connected transactions
and the continuing connected transactions, the Group has complied with the

disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with each Director and
Supervisor, the tenure of whom is three years from the date of appointment of
each Director and Supervisor, and may be terminable in accordance with the

relevant terms of each service contract.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into
any director or supervisor service contract with any member of the Group
(other than contracts expiring within one year or determinable by the relevant
employer within one year without the payment of compensation other than

statutory compensation).
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REMUNERATIONS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The remuneration received by Directors, Supervisors and members of senior
management consists of salary, allowances, pension scheme contributions,
discretionary bonuses and other benefits in kind. Independent non-executive
Directors receive compensation according to their duties (including serving
as members or chairmen of the Board Committees). The remuneration of
the Company’s Directors is determined based on the remuneration plan for
Directors, positions held and relevant contracts signed between the Company

and the Directors.

Details of remunerations of Directors, senior management and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively. Details of the remuneration of senior management by

band for the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out as follows:

EE EEROHEEEFHRIBERSHMN
235

B EFEREAETEEBREBRINFMAFE - 2
Bt RAREFEIHMSR - RBEAREMEYRN - 18
VHFATEERBERG (BRETEEEZEENKE
HEFESHH - ARBEFOHMREE S H M
R FRENBEEARFEEERITWARER

BE -

B SRCEENAASETIALNTHFES
BIE A A F I G SRRM TS LMY - SAEIEERE
REZE203F A3 B IEFEREREDHOEHIS R
m

Range Number of individuals
nF AE
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 2

500,001 7 7T 2 1,000,000/ 70

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000 7T
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
3,500,001 % 7L 24,000,000 7T

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration and there
were no remunerations paid by the Group to any of the Directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or

as compensation for loss of office.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT

From the Listing Date to December 31, 2023, the Group did not participate
in, directly or indirectly, any material transactions, arrangements and contracts
in which any of the Directors or the Supervisors or his/her connected entities
had a material interest, and related to the businesses of the Company and were

subsisting during or by the end of the year.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors had any interest in any
business, which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with our

business, which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at December 31, 2023, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, the interests
and short positions of the Directors, the Supervisors and chief executives of the
Company in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) which were (i)
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(i) recorded in the register kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code are as follows:
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,

EX ESERESTRAEBRAQARGHE

SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN THE SHARES OF THE #@mR K&
COMPANY

Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage of shareholding in
shareholding in the total issued
Number of the relevant class share capital of
Name of the Directors, Shares of Shares as at  the Company as at
Supervisors and chief executives Nature of interest interested  Class of Shares December 31,2023  December 31, 2023
M20235 128318
M0BFNRAIAR  REQFAZHEH

Ex B2 BEERD REBROERN  TREPHOFRY

RBETHASRSR BEMHE REBE  REER BERENED L HNEDL

Mr. Wang Bing®® Beneficial owner 219,723,650 (L) Domestic Shares 27.06% 2057%

FREH BHEEFA WA

Interest in controlled corporation 490,648,310 (L) ~ Domestic Shares 60.44% 45.93%
NSRRI MEK

Ms. Zhao Wenjun®® Interest of spouse and interest in -~ 710,371,960 (L) ~ Domestic Shares 87.50% 66.50%

controlled corporation

AR L0 ERERRRZEEE NEK

Mr. Shu Minghet Interest in controlled corporation 386,036,760 (L) ~ Domestic Shares 47.55% 36.14%

FHELLE REEEE R NEK

Ms. Zhao Shulan Beneficial owner 12,883340 (L)  Domestic Shares 1.59% 1.21%

Fibil e BREBA W&

Notes: k=3

(1) The Letter "L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. ()  FEILRKKRZATRBROOIETE -

) Mr. Wang Bing and Ms. Zhao Wenjun respectively hold 70% and 30% of the ) I;@%E&ﬁigﬁi%ﬁﬂ’ﬂ £ LK) 70% K 30% A%
equity interest in Shiyue Jinfeng, and Shiyue Jinfeng is the general partner of each - HE+ARAEATAEEMEERRTARENY
of Shiyue Daotian Enterprise Management and Shiyue Zhongxin. Mr. Wang Bing BEBA *Eﬂf?%%ﬁ&ﬂﬂ%ﬂ‘%w CEEEERBXE
and Ms. Zhao Wenjun are deemed to be interested in the 386,036,760 Shares and LEWRBR T ARACRER L+ ARED B
104,611,550 Shares held by each of Shiyue Daotian Enterprise Management and 5 1)386,036,7600% ]2 104,611 5500 B {n R A= -
Shiyue Zhongxin under the SFO.

3) Ms. Zhao Wenjun is the spouse of Mr. Wang Bing. Therefore, each of Mr. Wang B3) HBXBEXLIREIELAENERSB REIZIHFLRBER
Bing and Ms. Zhao Wenjun is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by each B F RSk R E R WA BT P A AR
other under the SFO. R ER -

() Mr. Shu Minghe directly holds approximately 4.37% of the partnership interest i~ (4)  &FABEAR T ARECXERHEREN4137%0
Shiyue Daotian Enterprise Management and holds 100% of the interest in Shenyang PR . WA &G B S 158 100% 48 - TiEG&E
Shengxin, which in turn holds approximately 39.31% of the partnership interest R+ ARBHMEBERIFELNI31%E B - Bt -
in Shiyue Daotian Enterprise Management. As such, Mr. Shu Minghe, directly FRBAEERERBRAZESEEHERNTABHE
and indirectly through Shenyang Shengxin, holds approximately 43.68% of the ¥ERFANA68%aBEm - REBEEFRLPEK
partnership interest in Shiyue Daotian Enterprise Management. Mr. Shu Minghe ol ﬁﬁﬂgﬁiﬁi?ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁé+ﬂ*E’Eﬂﬂé%%@ﬁﬁ%ﬁm
is deemed to be interested in the 386,036,760 Shares held by Shiyue Daotian 386,036, 760M R R AR o
Enterprise Management under the SFO.
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RIGHTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS TO ACQUIRE EEREEBEROJEEZTNER

SHARES OR DEBENTURES

RBIE2023F12A318 - ERTAAES - BESk
BESERNRBIARNISHHO FLIRBEALRDTR
MEREN TR MERHERN - MEENETEE
RZEEF  BEARBIREF MK EQRLEELT
UL ERHBEES AR RN 8mHFLRE
A E A A BB EZEER -

As of December 31 2023, none of the Directors or Supervisors or their
respective spouses or children under the age of 18 was granted any rights
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares or debentures of the
Company, nor exercised any such rights. The Company or any of its subsidiaries
did not make any arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire such rights from any other
body corporate.

PENSION SCHEME BIKREETE

Details of the pension scheme are set out in note 6(b) to the consolidated — BEIRIRSFTEIFHIBEN A S B HmEM E6(b) °

financial statements.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

FERRREDTRD RAEBERDNVERRKXR

R2023%F 12 A31 B - RARAIREEF MR G
BBHAFENBRMARE - UTAL(ERAE
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would be = ~ EEE s &= THA BBRIN R AR A7 ki85
et AR ESORE

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons (not being the Directors,

Supervisors or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short

required to be recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage of shareholding in

shareholding in the total issued

Number of the relevant class share capital of

Shares of Shares as at  the Company as at

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest interested Class of Shares December 31,2023 December 31, 2023
R2023%F

12A318  R2023F12A318

REBRG REXRZHEH

FRESN ERINSRE  TRETHERY

RREA BEtE RO%E  ROER NAEDHL HEDL

Shiyue Jinfeng® Interest in controlled corporation  490,648310 (L) ~ Domestic Shares 60.4% 4593%

awika i NI 5 NEK
Shiyue Daotian Enterprise Management Beneficial owner 386,036,760 (L)  Domestic Shares 47.55% 36.14%

TABMERER

BREFAA

WA
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Approximate
percentage of

shareholding in

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

the total issued

Number of the relevant class share capital of
Shares of Shares as at ~ the Company as at
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest interested Class of Shares December 31,2023 December 31, 2023
R2023%
12A318  R2023%128318
REERG REQFZHPOH
FERERN ERINSRE  TREPHERY
RREH BEME ROEE  ROER HEDL KEA
Shiyue Zhongxin Beneficial owner 104611550 (L)  Domestic Shares 12.89% 9.79%
TARE BEEHBA RER
Shenyang Hongsheng® Interest in controlled corporation 104,611,550 (L)~ Domestic Shares 12.89% 9.79%
RGO REEEB S NEK
Shenyang Shengxin® Interest in controlled corporation 386,036,760 (L) ~ Domestic Shares 47.55% 36.14%
BEREEY NS AL B WA
Generation Sigma HK Investment Limited®  Beneficial owner 88,710970 (L)  H Shares 34.61% 8.31%
Generation Sigma HK Investment Limited® ~ Ez#EH A Hik
Generation Sigma Investment Ltd.” Interest in controlled corporation 88710970 (L)  H Shares 34.61% 8.31%
Generation Sigma Investment Ltd.® R BN R Hii
GenBridge Capital Fund |, LP.®) Interest in controlled corporation 88,710970 (L)  H Shares 34.61% 8.31%
GenBridge Capital Fund I, LP.® REREEE R Hik
GenBridge Capital Fund | GP, Ltd.®) Interest in controlled corporation 88710970 (L)  H Shares 34.61% 831%
GenBridge Capital Fund | GP, Ltd.® R BN R HR%
GenBridge Capital Partners, Ltd.” Interest in controlled corporation 88,710970 (L)  H Shares 34.61% 8.31%
GenBridge Capital Partners, Ltd.” REREEE R Hik
Ms. LI Mao Chun®® Interest in controlled corporation 88710970 (L)  H Shares 34.61% 831%
LI Mao ChunZ+0® REZEENES HR%
Mr. CHEUK Hiu Kwong® Interest of spouse 88,710970 (L)  H Shares 34.61% 8.31%
CHEUK Hiu Kwong2t £© [t 3 Hi%
HSG Growth VI Holdco Y, Ltd? Beneficial owner 14378720 (L)  H Shares 561% 1.35%
HSG Growth VI Holdco Y, Ltd? ESHAA HAx
HongShan Capital Growth Fund VI, LP.? Interest in controlled corporation 14378720 (L)~ H Shares 561% 1.35%
HongShan Capital Growth Fund VI, LP.?  RAZIFEEE R Hik
HSG Growth VI Management, LP.?) Interest in controlled corporation 14378720 (L)  H Shares 561% 1.35%
HSG Growth VI Management, LP."? R B R Hii
HSG Holding Limited” Interest in controlled corporation 14378720 (L) ~ H Shares 561% 1.35%
HSG Holding Limited” REREEE R HR%
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Approximate
percentage of

shareholding in

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

the total issued

Number of the relevant class share capital of
Shares of Shares as at  the Company as at
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest interested Class of Shares December 31,2023 December 31, 2023
20235
12A318  R2023%128318
REBERG REQFZHPOH
BERERN ERINSRE  TREPHERY
RREH BEME ROEE  ROER HEDL KA
SNP China Enterprises Limited” Interest in controlled corporation 14378720 (L)  H Shares 561% 1.35%
SNP China Enterprises Limited® REEEE H R Hi%
Shen Nanpeng”) Interest in controlled corporation 14,378,720 (L)~ H Shares 561% 1.35%
TLEIE" REBEENES HAR
Shenzhen Sequoia Hanchen Equity Beneficial owner 14378720 (L)  H Shares 561% 1.35%
Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership)®
R BREEREARLE EREBA HAR
(BRAH)O
Shenzhen Sequoia Yuechen Investment Interest in controlled corporation 14378720 (L)  H Shares 561% 1.35%
Partnership (Limited Partnership)®
R B RREAB LR REBEENES HAR
(BRAH)O
Shenzhen Sequoia Yuchen Investment Interest in controlled corporation 14378720 (L)  H Shares 561% 1.35%
Partnership (Limited Partnership)®
RYMAYERBEREARLE REBEENES HAR
(BRAH)O
Shenzhen Sequoia An Tai Equity Investment  Interest in controlled corporation 14378720 (L)~ H Shares 561% 1.35%
Partnership (Limited Partnership)®
RN R HFRERE B LE REBEENES HAR
(BRAH)O
Shenzhen Sequoia Huan Yu Investment Interest in controlled corporation 14378720 (L)  H Shares 561% 1.35%
Management Co,, Ltd®
AT BFREFABRAT® REBEENES HAR
Zhou Kui® Interest in controlled corporation 14378720 (L)  H Shares 561% 1.35%
[EE® RREEB S HR
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The Letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Shiyue Jinfeng is the general partner of each of Shiyue Daotian Enterprise
Management and Shiyue Zhongxin, respectively. Shiyue Jinfeng is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Shiyue Daotian Enterprise Management and Shiyue
Zhongxin respectively under the SFO.

Shenyang Hongsheng holds approximately 90% of the partnership interest in Shiyue
Zhongxin. Shenyang Hongsheng is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Shiyue Zhongxin under the SFO.

Shenyang Shengxin holds approximately 39.31% of the partnership interest in Shiyue
Daotian Enterprise Management. Shenyang Shengxin is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Shiyue Daotian Enterprise Management under the SFO.

Generation Sigma HK Investment Limited is wholly owned by Generation Sigma
Investment Ltd,, in which GenBridge Capital Fund |, LP. holds 80.71% interests. The
general partner of GenBridge Capital Fund |, LP. is GenBridge Capital Fund | GP,
Ltd., which is 50% owned by GenBridge Capital Partners, Ltd. GenBridge Capital
Partners, Ltd. is wholly owned by Ms. Li Mao Chun. Generation Sigma Investment
Ltd., GenBridge Capital Fund I, LP, GenBridge Capital Fund | GP, Ltd, GenBridge
Capital Partners, Ltd. and Ms. LI Mao Chun are deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Generation Sigma HK Investment Limited under the SFO.

Mr. CHEUK Hiu Kwong is the spouse of Ms. LI Mao Chun. CHEUK Hiu Kwong
is deemed to be interested in the same shares in which Ms. LI Mao Chun is
interested under the SFO.

HSG Growth VI Holdco Y, Ltd. is wholly owned by HongShan Capital Growth
Fund VI, LP. which is in turn wholly owned by HSG Growth VI Management, L.P.
HSG Growth VI Management, L.P. is wholly owned by HSG Holding Limited, which
is in turn wholly owned by SNP China Enterprises Limited. SNP China Enterprises
Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Shen Nanpeng. HongShan Capital Growth Fund
VI, LP., HSG Growth VI Management, L.P., HSG Holding Limited, SNP China
Enterprises Limited and Mr. Shen Nanpeng are deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by HSG Growth VI Holdco Y, Ltd. under the SFO.
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(8) Shenzhen Sequoia Hanchen Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(RN BRBERESBEEERER)) is 99.99% owned by Shenzhen
Sequoia Yuechen Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (RIIATIZIR R
BEBDEBRER)), which is 60.60% owned by Shenzhen Sequoia Yuchen
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (RYIAIIZIERIEEA B EEEBRA
%)). Shenzhen Sequoia An Tai Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(RYAE L RRIERE S B REERER)) is the general partner of each of
Shenzhen Sequoia Hanchen Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(RIAEHRREREESBEEERER)), Shenzhen Sequoia Yuechen
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (RYIALIZARIRIEE & B ZEBR
A%)) and Shenzhen Sequoia Yuchen Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)
CRIAIZ BRI E SRR (BRER)), while Shenzhen Sequoia An Tai Equity
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (RYIAI 2 L RIBINE A B EE
RE& %)) is wholly owned by Shenzhen Sequoia Huan Yu Investment Management
Co, Ltd. CRYIMALZEFIREA M AR A F). Shenzhen Sequoia Huan Yu
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (RYIITTALIZAE T E AR R A) is wholly
owned by Zhou Kui. Shenzhen Sequoia Yuechen Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (RINAIEZHRIRE A B BE(BERAR)), Shenzhen Sequoia
Yuchen Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (RIIAZERIZE A #E1
X (BMRER)), Shenzhen Sequoia An Tai Equity Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (RYIALIZ L RIRIEREEBBEBRER)), Shenzhen Sequoia
Huan Yu Investment Management Co. Ltd. (FYITAIIZIEFIREFZRNER A
A]) and Mr. Zhou Kui are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Shenzhen
Sequoia Hanchen Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (ZRYIAT1Z 8
RIEIRE SR EE(BRAR)) under the SFO.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the Reporting Period, (i) no contract of significance was entered into
by, and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the
Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries; and (ii) there is no contract of
significance in relation to provision of services by the Controlling Shareholder or

any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during
the year ended December 31, 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
and the laws of the PRC which oblige the Company to offer new Shares to

existing Shareholders on their shareholding proportions.

(8)
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules requires that there must be an open market
in the securities for which listing is sought, and that a sufficient public float of
an issuer'’s listed securities shall be maintained. This normally means that at least
25% of the issuer's total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public. Pursuant to Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange may,
subject to certain conditions and at its discretion, accept a lower percentage
of between 5% to 25% in the case of issuers with an expected market

capitalization at the time of listing of over HK$10 billion.

We have applied to the Stock Exchange to exercise its discretion to grant a
waiver under Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules at the time of listing, and the
Stock Exchange has granted a waiver to strictly comply with the minimum public
float requirements under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, resulting in the
minimum percentage of public float being 15.7% of the total issued share capital

of the Company from time to time.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
aforementioned minimum public float required by the Stock Exchange since the

Listing Date and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

There was no contract concemning the management or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company which was

entered into or existed during the year ended December 31, 2023.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

We believe that environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) issues are critical
to our long-term, sustainable development. We focus on the fields of economy,
employees, environment and social responsibility, and are committed to steadily
advancing the construction of the ESG governance system, improving ESG
practice and performance, and contributing to the community and social well-

being through various ESG measures.
For details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance, please refer

to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report published together with

this report.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has always followed the “people-oriented” employment
philosophy, giving full respect to human nature for the purpose of talents
cultivation while satisfying the development needs of the Company. The
Company adheres to the employment strategy of combining internal training and
external introduction, and continues to implement the “Management Trainee
Program”. The Company cultivates all-round talents with operators’ mindset,
and uses corporate culture to guide the sense of mission and belonging of
the talents. In terms of salary, the Company has gradually improved its salary
system. On the basis of ensuring internal fairmess, it appropriately favors key
positions and core employees to maintain the market competitiveness of the
salary for outstanding talents. The Company attempts to flexibly use a variety
of salary structures and models to meet the needs of employee management
and motivation in different scenarios, such as implementing piece-rate wages
and performance incentives for front-line employees at production line. The
Company attempts to implement a performance-linked salary incentive model
for some offline sales personnel to encourage employees to eamn higher incomes
on the condition of completing performance targets. The Company handles and
pays various social insurance and housing provident funds in accordance with
relevant national laws, regulations and local policy documents, and withholds and

pays personal income tax of employees.

We focus on employee training to enhance the skills and overall performance
of employees. We provide induction training for new recruits about our culture,
business and industry to help them adapt to their positions. We also provide
customized in-house training courses for employees to enhance their practical
skills, and provide management skills training programs, such as leadership

training for cadres in key positions.

As of December 31, 2023, we had 1,930 full-time employees, most of whom

were located in Shenyang, Wuchang and Beijing.

Among the Group's full-time employees (including senior management
members), male account for approximately 47.7% and female account for
approximately 52.3%. The Group recognizes the benefits of having a diversified
team. All employees of the Group enjoy equal employment, training and career
development opportunities. The Company is also committed to creating an
environment and culture friendly to female employees. The Company expects
to maintain reasonable gender diversity at the employee level. The Company
is not aware of any factors or circumstances that would make achieving gender
diversity among all employees, including senior management, more challenging or

less relevant.
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For details of the Group’s employees, please refer to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report published together with this report.

SHARE SCHEME

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company and its major
subsidiaries did not have any share scheme.

AUDITORS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, KPMG assumed the office of the
Company's reporting accountant and independent auditor. The financial
statements contained in this annual report have been audited by KPMG. There
has been no change in the Company's auditor since the Listing Date and there
has been no change in any of the past three years.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company made several investments after the end of the Reporting Period,
including the comerstone investment in Migao Group Holdings Limited (“Migao”)
with details as below, and the purchase of certain wealth management products
with the aggregate balance of RMB491.8 million as at the Latest Practicable
Date. The above transactions did not constitute notifiable transactions under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

On March 1, 2024, Shenyang Xinchang, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as an investor entered into a cornerstone investment agreement
(the "Cornerstone Investment Agreement”) with Migao (as issuer), GF Capital
(Hong Kong) Limited, GF Securities (Hong Kong) Brokerage Limited and CMB
International Capital Limited, pursuant to which Shenyang Xinchang agreed
to subscribe for the investor shares of Migao (the “Investor Shares”) at the
offer price under and as part of Migao's intemational offering. The aggregate
subscription amount for the Investor Shares paid by Shenyang Xinchang under
the Comerstone Investment Agreement was USD20.9 million. The shares of
Migao were listed on the Stock Exchange on March 21, 2024.

By Order of the Board
Shiyue Daotian Group Co., Ltd.
Mr. Wang Bing

Chairman and Executive Director

Beijing, PRC, March 28, 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the shareholders of Shiyue Daotian Group Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shiyue Daotian Group
Co,, Ltd. (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
88 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes, comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory

information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2023
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together
with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the People’s Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BE R

Key audit matters (Continued)
HRETER(E)

Revenue recognition

s 25 7 52

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(t).

FRRIEE B RE M AT 20 P A2 BR -
The Key Audit Matter
BREAEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ZBEEETPRIAEHEN

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised
revenue from sale of goods, including rice products, whole grain, bean
and other products, and dried food and other products amounting to
RMB4,867 million.

BHE2003F12A318LEFE - ESEERNEREERABRTE
KKER HE SHERHOER ZEMEMESR 58
ERARME4867TAETT ©

The Group generates sales through a variety of sales channels, including
online channels, grocery retail channels, sales to direct customers, and
sales through distribution network. The sales involve a large volume of
transactions with different types of customers having different trading
terms, which may affect the timing and amount of revenue recognition.
Revenue is recognised when the control of the underlying products has

been transferred to the customers.

EEEABRZRHEERBETHE H BRERRE METE
RiE  HEEZFPHEURDHREHEE - HESRKRERS

TRBEENEFBETRNRZSEK - EAEEFERAERN
RBREMESRE - WAEHRRERNENRER AT PREER -

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the Group,
and there is an inherent risk that revenue may be recognised in the

incorrect period or manipulated to achieve targeted or expected levels.

BRSMARREESAREAEE  BRARAREREMNEE
REBIER 2 — - TR RER £5 3R B R W SR S AR 1R ML DA
ZI BB FAHAKENEF AR
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Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue from sale of

goods included the following:
BMFEEIEMHEERANETEF 2

» assessing the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
key internal controls over revenue recognition;

« HEMAREREIEAMENEEORE  BRMETHR

* inspecting the Group's agreements with customers, on a sample
basis, to understand key terms of sales transactions, including the
terms of delivery and sale returns, and evaluate if the Group'’s

revenue recognition policies were in accordance with the

requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

- HMEESERTPERITNOHR  UTHRHEEXFINIER
K BEINMEEREER LG ESENRARER
BREENABRTEEANNENR

* comparing revenue recognised during the year, on a sample basis,
to underlying documentation, which included goods delivery
records or settlement statements indicating the customers’

acknowledgement of the acceptance of goods sold;
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Independent Auditor’s Report |
BIYRHEMRE o

Key audit matters (Continued)

HRETERER)
The Key Audit Matter (Continued) How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)
MRETBRE) ZBEEETPROAEE(E)

» obtaining confirmations from customers, on a sample basis, to
confirm the amount of sales recognised during the reporting
period, and the outstanding trade receivable balances at the end of

the reporting period;

- HBEEREFPHRE  URRRSHACDHERBHHERN
BEHRRKGEBENE S RUGRIARE

* assessing, on a sample basis, whether revenue transactions before
and after the end of the reporting period had been recognised
in the appropriate financial year by comparing those selected
transactions with underlying documentation, which included goods

delivery records or settlement statements;

o IR AT RS B4 %m%%
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* selecting sales journal entries during the financial year that met
certain risk based criteria and comparing details of these journals

with the relevant underlying documentation;

- BEAMBFEANARERBRBENHEE D& - W&
7> 8 AR B BLARRBE ST A SUAFHEIT LB

* performing background searches on new customers of the Group
during the reporting period, on a sample basis, and assessing the

existence and identity of those customers; and

c Eﬁiﬁmﬁﬁﬁl%%gﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ
ZEBEFNEEME D

* identifying significant sales returns from sales ledger after the end of
the reporting period and by making enquiries of management and

inspecting relevant underlying documentation.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BE R

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concemn.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate

with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought

to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Yu Wai Sum.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
|0 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEEBEREMEEBAR

for the year ended 3| December 2023 (Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB"))

T BE203E 12831 B ERARK AREDIIT)
2023 2022
20234 20226
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Mzt AR®T T ARBFIT
Revenue &= 4 4,867,026 4,532,920
Cost of sales SHEMA (4,248,310) (3,753,373)
Gross profit EF 618,716 779,547
Other net income H W A S5 5 3,713 27,403
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RACSHR (324,063) (314,833)
Administrative expenses TBFAX (154,489) (858,250)
Impairment losses reversed/(charged) on trade & 5 & E A EUGRIERE
and other receivables EERER () 213 (9,698)
Profit/(loss) from operations EERE S (ER) 144,090 (375.831)
Finance costs IR TP 6(a) (21,720) (3909)
Changes in the carrying amount of financial MIREEZETH SR T ERAEZ S
instruments issued to investors 2 (181,141) (178,596)
Loss before taxation B A EE 6 (58,771) (558,336)
Income tax Fris i 7 (6,092) (5,883)
Loss and total comprehensive income for the ZAATERBREEFEAEER
year attributable to equity shareholders of ZHEWRALE
the Company (64.863) (564219)
Loss per share sRER
Basic and diluted (RMB) ERREE(ARET) 10 (0.08) (0.60)

The notes on pages 95 to 179 form part of these financial statements. Details  ZB95SEEF I79B MM EBR AT BEHETN—HH -
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the 7N £F & K| 8 1 F& ] & &) I& 3R K 2 /) AR B 5F R T 5
profit for the year are set out in Note 26(c). 26(c) °
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position |
e AR R o5

¥
‘rf
at 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB) ' {
N\

#2023F 12 A31 B ARKEZIR)

2023 2022
20235 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HiaF AR®T T ARETTT
Non-current assets kRBEE

Property, plant and equipment M - BB MH Il 957,868 862,560
Right-of-use assets EREEE 12 189,215 129559
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 14 20,490 [2:293
1,167,573 1,004,405

Current assets REBEE
Inventories =8 15 1,604,828 1,372,671
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E MR IE 16 505,192 565,116
Restricted deposits PR R 17 30,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 7 1,427,218 120,360
3,567,238 2,058,147

Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H M FERTFIE 18 241,861 303,548
Contract liabilities aRAE 19 13,571 31,564
Bank and other loans SRITREMER 20 1,011,071 BIZHOWUS
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 12,899 8957
Income tax payable FERTFTASHL 23 6,070 5,882
1,285,472 744,856
Net current assets REBEEFEE 2,281,766 13013291
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTHAERE 3,449,339 2,317,696
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e BN R

at 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB)
R2023F 12831 AUAARKFIR)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HiaF AR¥T T ARETTT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE ) 19,467 11,049
Financial instruments issued to investors AREEEITHEM T A 21 - 2,380,161
Deferred income EEWA 24 46,362 32,858
65,829 2,424,068
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE/(8fF) 38 3,383,510 (106,372)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERREE 26
Paid-in capital/share capital EWER IR 106,815 99,445
Reserves i 3,276,695 (205,817)
TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICITS) MR (E4) 3,383,510 (106,372)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2024.

Wang Bing
FE
Director

EE

The notes on pages 95 to 179 form part of these financial statement
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

mEEmE R

for the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB)
BZ203F 2 A3IALFR(AARRIIR)

Retained profits/

Capital Other  Statutory (accumulated
Paid-in capital reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
RERR
ERER BARE  AMEE  AERE (BHER) @t
RMB000 ~ RMB0O0O0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO RMB00O  RMBOOO
ARBTL ARETT ARBTT ARETE ARETT ARETR
(Note 26(b)) ~ (Note 26(d))  (Note 26(e)) (Note 26(f))
(Fiit2ew) (Hiatae@) (Miat2ee)) (Hit2ee)
At | January 2022 R2002EIAIA 92484 1418087  (1,33593) 16711 27238 218588
Changes in equity for 2022: WNFERE)
Loss and total comprehensive income FNEERZERALR
for the year = - = = (564219)  (564219)
Capital contributions (Notes 26(a) and (b)) tH& (FitaE26(a) (b)) 696! 21,449 - = - 28410
Transfer of paid-in capital among the equity &R MBHERER
shareholders (Note 25(b)) (FizE25()) - E (72377) - - (72377)
Share-based payments (Note 25(a)) PARR D RETER AR
GEISE) - 690986 - = - 690986
Dividends to shareholders (Note 26(c)) mARFIR AR S (i 26(c)) - - . - (200,000)  (200,000)
Deemed distribution (Note 26(c)) RIEDR(ME26(c)) = = 07o0) = = (207,760)
At 31 December 2022 R202%F12A31R 99445 2130522 (1,616069) 16711 (736981)  (106372)
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REREREER

for the year ended 3| December 2023 (Expressed in RMB)

HE203FNA3ALFE(AARESR)

Paid-in capital/ Capital Other Statutory Accumulated
share capital reserve reserve reserve losses Total
B8Ex/
B EARE  HHRE  AERE ZitER a3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARSI ARMTR ARMTRT ARMTR ARBTT ARMTRL
(Note 26(b)) ~ (Note 26(d))  (Note 26(€))  (Note 26(f)
(Hitaep)  (Hit2e)  (Hiitaee)  (Hi26(0)
At | January 2023 #03%F 1518 99,445 2,130,522 (1,616,069) 16711 (736,981) (106,372
Changes in equity for 2023; WBFERRE -
Loss and total comprehensive income for the ENEEREARALE
year - - - - (64,863) (64,863)
Capttal contributions (Note 26(b) L& (MiEF26(0)) 2030 279,960 - - - 2819%
Issuance of shares by initial public offering, net of ~ EBERAREERITR - MR
share issuance expenses (Note 26(b)) ETR (FFE26() 5,340 706,113 - - - TIAR
Recognition of redemption liabilities for the EREENER SR
preferential rights (Note 21) - - (285,714) - - (285,714)
Conversion into a joint stock company with B ARHBRAR(H260))
limited liability (Note 26(b)) - (1,717,998) 1,335,941 (16711) 398,768 -
Expiration of the redemption rights upon the RAFRE kRS
listing of the Company's shares (Note 21) (BitEl) - - 2847016 - - 2847016
Appropriation to reserves HRERHE - - - 4142 (4142) -
At 31 December 2023 R2023%E 128318 106,815 1,398,597 2,281,174 4142 (407,218) 3383510

The notes on pages 95 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows )
MEBRERELX o)

for the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB)

ey
BE203F12A3ALFEAARRSIR) g
2023 2022
20235 20226
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Mt AR¥TT AREBFTT
Operating activities REER
Loss before taxation BRELRIETE (58,771) (558,336)
Adjustments for: AT RIBFE -
Depreciation e 6(c) 86,705 49710
Share-based payments ARG (7 BERE 3R 6(b) - 739,569
Changes in the carrying amount of financial MREEETHEMIA
instruments issued to investors BRHEEZD 181,141 178,596
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BERRED
equipment [E R F R 5 1,537 888
Impairment losses (reversed)/charged on trade B 5 Kk B At fEUGKIE R EE 1B
and other receivables (@), T (213) 9,698
Finance costs ISR AR 6(a) 21,720 3,909
Investment income FERA 5 (4,218) (8,035)
Changes in working capital: HEEEY
Increase in restricted deposits PR T RIE A0 (30,000) =
Increase in inventories FEIEM (232,157) (322,888)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 K EMENFIA
other receivables B () 61,261 (29,943)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 KEMERFIA
other payables CRA), /18 (45,351) 107,647
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities ERBECHD), N (17,993) 12,984
Increase deferred income RTS8 N 13,504 L
Cash (used in)/generated from operation & (A Fr8RE (22,835) 184,038
Income tax paid BEASFTEH 23(a) (5,904) (6815)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating  4Z& EEI(FTH) FrBRE&FHE
activities (28,739) 177223
Investing activities BEEE
Payments for purchase of property, plant and ~ FEE¥IZ - B R&EA K
equipment and land-use-rights b FAREATR (257,544) (354,271)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through ~ HEE LAR R BEFT 2 B HEEHETA
profit or loss (“FVPL") BaemEE (632,621) (1,560,000)
Redemption of financial assets at FVPL B R BEE B HEBEA
BEmeREE 625,819 1,590,000
Net proceeds/(payments) from disposal of HEWE - BE KREFTER
property, plant and equipment 1B,/ (30358 317 (105)
Investment income received B IR E A 4,218 8,035
Net cash used in investing activities REZEFTARES TR (259,811) (316,341)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

for the year ended 3| December 2023 (Expressed in RMB)

7' BE2023F 12 A3 HIEFE(AARKST)
2023 2022
20235 20226
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Kzt AR¥T T ARETT
Financing activities AEEE
Gross proceeds from the issuance of shares by BB E X AFRFEBRITRG IS
initial public offering FIBHREE 26 752,727 =
Proceeds from the capital contributions, net of  H&FTSFRIAE + FBRR HEA
transaction costs 26 285,292 28410
Issuance costs of the proposed issuance of BEBITHIREEITRA
new shares 26 (31,064) @2215)
Dividends paid to shareholders AR LS 17(b) - (200,000)
Proceeds from bank and other loans RITREMEKETSRIE 17(b) 1,100,010 417418
Repayment of bank and other loans RITREMEFUERK 17(b) (484,498) (72.930)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERNEEHENASES 17(b) (12,795) (7,928)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ERHEERESHFEE S 17(b) (1,522) (609)
Finance costs paid [EADEUR TP 17(b) (9,136) (2,883)
Net changes in guarantee deposits EREESEHFHE - 2,000
Net cash generated from financing activities METBHABRESFHE 1,599,014 151,263
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEYEMNTEE 1,310,464 12,145
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FHRERBREZEY
the year 120,360 108,215
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes EXSHNZE (3,606) =
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the FERAERRESEEY
year 1,427,218 120,360
The notes on pages 95 to 179 form part of these financial statements. FIRBISHES I179B 2 ZEM T RAM KRR 2 —

B -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shiyue Daotian Group Co, Ltd. (T ATEHEBRM AR AR (the
“"Company"), formerly known as Shiyue Daotian Agricultural Technology
Co., Ltd. (T ATEH R EBIHH AR A F) or Shiyue Daotian Food
Group Co., Ltd. (T AEARMERRL AR 2R, was established in
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
on 3 May 2018 as a limited liability company. On 6 January 2023, the
Company converted into a joint stock limited liability company and on 28
February 2023 the Company changed its name to Shiyue Daotian Group
ey, [Lital

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of pantry staple food (the “Listing
Business”) in the PRC.

The Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 12 October
2023.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)  Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB"). These financial statements also
comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Material accounting policies adopted

by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new or amended standards that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. The Group has adopted all
applicable new and amended accounting standards except for any
amendments that are not yet effective for the accounting period

beginning on | January 2023.

B HRAR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSI

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BEBIERS -

2

96

SREMRARKT)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is the historical cost basis, except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— Financial assets measured at FVPL (see Note 2(e)); and

= Series A-I investor’s right to subscribe for additional

registered capital (see Note 2(f)).

The Company and the Group has its functional currency in RMB

and the consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
Accounting Standards requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS
Accounting Standards that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are

discussed in Note 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combination not under common
control using the acquisition method when control is transferred to
the Group (see Note 2(d)). The consideration transferred in the
acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable
net assets acquired. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred,

except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent consideration that
meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity,
then it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within
equity. Otherwise, other contingent consideration is remeasured at
fair value at each reporting date and subsequent changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or

loss.

Business combinations of entities under common control are
accounted for using the principle of merger accounting, under
which, the consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement items of the acquired entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs from the date
when the acquired entities or businesses first come under the

control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the acquired entities or businesses are combined
using the existing book values from the controlling party’s
perspective. The differences between the cost of acquisition (fair
value of consideration paid) and the amounts at which the assets
and liabilities are recorded (net of any reserves of the acquired
entities) have been recognised directly in equity as other reserve.

Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

B HRAR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRGNS SRENAAREL)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% SR 7= B =

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

= (RERERA

SHENAARET)
2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

98

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control commences until the

date on which control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income
and expenses (except for foreign currency transaction gains
or losses) arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group's equity interests in a subsidiary that do not

result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it derecognises the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former

subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment in

a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(i)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity securities,
other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,

are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments measured at FVPL for
which transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on

their classification.

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into one

of the following measurement categories:

= amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Expected credit losses, interest income
calculated using the effective interest method (see Note
2(t)(iii)), foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is

recognised in profit or loss.

B HRAR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

2 EXEFEREE)

(e)

HEEEREESERE
AEBNEHEBRAZEFREBR(RMH
BAA BMEARARGZELENRER
MBI -

ERRRABHARENAERAGHBE
HERBEZ AERRILER - ZER
BT RAREBEMNEEEERHKAT
B HERARBESABRENRERIN
ERXGRABENERHER - REREH
BIBREDEIIRMAT -

KRERELUIIIRE

AEEFANFREREDERUTE
B|hlz—:

- BERAN(RBEZRETSEER
mEARERFNENRINARESR
mE) BHEEEE fRAER
M A EO M B BMA L2
(i) ~ HNEBREHFT AR o KRiE
ERRNEA K ERIBREFAR

¢
=

BX

+AEEEERGERAT FE@s203 99



Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSI

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BEBIERS -

2

100

SREMRARKT)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(©)

Other investments in debt and equity securities (Continued)

Investments other than equity investments (Continued)

- Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") (recycling), if the
contractual cash flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Expected credit losses, interest income (calculated using
the effective interest method) and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss and computed in
the same manner as if the financial asset was measured at
amortised cost. The difference between the fair value and
the amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive
income (“OCI"). When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in OCl is recycled from equity to

profit or loss.

- FVPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes
in the fair value of the investment (including interest) are

recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL, unless the
equity investment is not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in OCI. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer's perspective. If such election is made for a particular
investment, at the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve is transferred to retained eamings and not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or

FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income (see Note

2(0(M)-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

®

(g)

Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with changes therein recognised in profit

or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (see Note

20)(i)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and borrowing

costs (see Note 2(v)).

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items

(major components).

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and

equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual values,
if any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful

lives, and is generally recognised in profit or loss.

B HRAR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

2 EXEFEREE)

(U]

(8)

TEAEEEERGERAR FEHE2023

PTEEMITA
MESRIAZYVNARABENE - B
& - AARBEE @ HEHABR -

E - BMERRE
ME - BERZETIRKARZETE R
EA Rt EEETIAR (R HEE230) i) °

BEYME  BENMREEBORANRIEN
Bt BERSTIHA - FRERBRER AR
W18 B P R SR P B X AR 89 1) 2 i &t
(AR REZB LN EERTEERRE
ERAR(RMEE2(V)) °

WMR—IEWME  BEMRENEEISE
BETRNERASS - ABEEREBNE
B(EZEMEKED)FIER -

BREWE  BELREEEBOEMKER
BERTDRIBERDHER -

ME - BERREREOTER TG
AERER - EHRE G RSKEE
BIR  WESRZEMBEEKRAGE - YA
BEEBRETESR -

101



Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% SR 7= B =

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

102

(h)

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods
are as follows:

— Plant and buildings 10 — 20 years
— Machinery and other equipment 3 — 10 years
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed

at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
Note 2(i)(ii)). Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well
as interest expense capitalised during the periods of construction
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and
equipment when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the assets for their intended use are completed. No depreciation
is provided for in respect of construction in progress until it is

completed and ready for its intended use.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. This is the case if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic

benefits from that use.

() As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not to
separate non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a

single lease component for all leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a short lease term of |2 months or less,
and leases of low-value items. When the Group enters into
a lease in respect of a low-value item, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. If
not capitalised, the associated lease payments are recognised

in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is recognised using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability, and are charged to profit

or loss as incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Notes 2(g) and 2(i)(ii)).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced

to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a lease
modification, which means a change in the scope of a
lease or the consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract, if such modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease. In this case, the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are rent
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions set out in
paragraph 46B of IFRS |6 Leases. In such cases, the Group
has taken advantage of the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as negative variable
lease payments in profit or loss in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the rent concessions

occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as
the present value of contractual payments that are due to

be settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property in ‘right-of-use assets'
and presents lease liabilities separately in the statement of

financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) on financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents and trade and

other receivables).

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value are not

subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Generally, credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls between the contractual and

expected amounts.

The expected cash shortfalls of trade and other receivables
are discounted using effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof if the effect is

material.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is

exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic

conditions.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BERERIN  2REMAARET)

EREHBEE)
EEBEREEREE)
(i) EITAEEEERE)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (i)

() Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

FERHEREER(E)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

BHEEERSRAUATELGTE:

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

result from default events that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the instrument is less

than 12 months); and

lifetime ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected lives of the

items to which the ECL model applies.

= |2-month ECLs: these are the portion of ECLs that =

RMEABMEEER : RS
BHEIR 128 A AN RE=RH
EHEa/ R 2EA  AIRE
AR ATREELNENS
HEYNEREEER &

EHBEHEERR - HERE
HEEBBELNIAE RN
SRAMANREENENSE
el B FAHEE -

AEENER2HAEMEREERY
SR EBEER  HETHNI2E
ABMEEEBEBRFENERRIN

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured
at |2-months ECLs:

financial instruments that are determined to have low

credit risk at the reporting date; and

other financial instruments (including loan commitments
issued) for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased significantly since initial

recognition.
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Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 EXRSHBEAE)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) () FEEFBEREERME(SE)
() Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued) () ZATAEFEEEE)
Significant increases in credit risk 1= B/m b A g LA
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial FETSRTENEERRE A
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition TR LARE B AR A A &E@Ii

and when measuring ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit

assessment, that includes forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset

has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to

actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is | year past due.

The Group considers a financial instrument to have low
credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the

globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument's credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their

carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

§ (BEAZHEN SREURARKT)
2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 EXRSHBEE)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) () FEBEREERE(SE)
() Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued) () =BITAEEEER(ZE)
Credit-impaired financial assets EERESHEE

REBEEH  AEESHAESRE

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a

financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial

asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the

following observable events:

= significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or being past

due;

— the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group
on terms that the Group would not consider

otherwise; or

— it is probable that the debtor will enter into

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off
to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts

subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in

profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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FEBBEREEREE)
(i) RtHFRBEERE

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (i)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its non-financial assets (other than inventories
and other contract costs) to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then

the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash

inflows of other assets or cash-generating units (“CGU'’s).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater
of its value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time

value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable

amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are
allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in

the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the resulting carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% SR 7= B =

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

SREMRARKT)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

G) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

A right to recover returned goods is recognised for the
right to recover products from customers sold with a right

of return. It is measured in accordance with Note 2(t)(i).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
() Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(i)  Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil
a contract with a customer which are not capitalised as

inventories (see Note 2(j)(i)).

The Group takes advantage of practical expedient in
paragraph 94 of the IFRS I5 and recognises the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract as an expense if the
amortisation of the asset that the Group otherwise would

have recognised is one year or less.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance resources that
will be used to provide goods or services in the future; and
are expected to be recovered. Otherwise, costs of fulfilling
a contract, which are not capitalised as inventory, property,
plant and equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as

incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation of
capitalised contract costs is charged to profit or loss when
the revenue to which the asset relates is recognised (see
Note 2(t)).

(k)  Contract liabilities
A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see Note 2(t)). A contract liability is also recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In
such latter cases, a corresponding receivable is also recognised (see

Note 2(1))
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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SREMRARKT)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

V)

(m)

(n)

(©)

Trade and other receivables
A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration and only the passage of time is

required before payment of that consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction price.

Receivables are subsequently stated at amortised cost (see Note

20)0)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs (see Note 2(i)(i)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised costs unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at

invoice amounts.

Refund liabilities arising from rights of returns are recognised in

accordance with Note 2(t)(i).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequently, these borrowings are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest

expense is recognised in accordance with Note 2(v).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(p) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be

estimated reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are expensed as the related service is

provided.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises costs for a

restructuring.

Share-based payments

The share-based payment arrangement of the Group
includes share awards and transfers of paid-in capital among
the equity shareholders as set out in Note 25 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

T (BEURW - 2EELAARSR)
2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 EXRSHBEE)
(p)  Employee benefits (Continued) (p) EETAGE)

(i) Share-based payments (Continued) (iii) HRBRGBREBIAFH(E)

114

Share awards

The fair value of the share awards granted to the employees is
measured at the grant date, which represents the difference
between the subscription price paid by the employees
and the fair value of the paid-in capital of the Company
shareholder at grant date. Where the share awards are
settled by the Company's shareholders, the share-based
payment transaction is equity-settled from the perspective of
the Group. Where there are no vesting conditions that the
employees are required to meet, the fair value of the share
awards is recognised as share-based payment expenses at
the grant date, with a corresponding increase in a capital

reserve within equity.

Transfers of paid-in capital among the equity shareholders

Where the employees transfer the Company’s paid-in capital
without preferential rights to the new investors as paid-in
capital with preferential rights as arranged by the Company
in its capital raising transactions, and the considerations
received by the employees with reference to the fair value
of paid-in capital with preferential rights, which exceeds the
fair value of the equity instruments transferred, the Group

recognised such excess as share-based payment expenses.

Share-based payment expenses for employees of the
Group’s subsidiaries are recognised as contributions to
subsidiaries under interests in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

Redemption liabilities

A contract that contains an obligation for the Company to
purchase its own equity instruments for cash or another financial
asset gives rise to a financial liability even if the Company's
obligation to purchase is conditional on the counterparty exercising
its right to redeem. The redemption liability is initially measured
at the present value of the redemption amount and subsequently
measured at amortised cost with interest expense being included
in change in the carrying amounts of financial instruments issued to

investors.

The then carrying amount of the redemption liability is reclassified
to equity upon a termination of the counterparty’s redemption

right.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to
a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or
@@

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or receivable
on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustments
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of
the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects any
uncertainty related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. Current tax

also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are

met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

2
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SREMRARKT)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

= temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible

temporary differences;

= temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future;

= taxable temporary differences arising on the initial

recognition of goodwill; and

= those related to the income taxes arising from tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar
Two model rules published by the Organisation for

Economic Co-operation and Development.

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities and right-of-use

assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined
based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences.
If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to
recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits,
adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are
considered, based on the business plans for individual subsidiaries
in the Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are

reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria

are met.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

©)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Generally provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

liability.

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying
products or services are sold, based on historical warranty data
and a weighting of possible outcomes against their associated

probabilities.

A provision for onerous contract is measured at the present value
of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract, which
is determined based on the incremental costs of fulfilling the
obligation under that contract and an allocation of other costs
directly related to fulfilling that contract. Before a provision is
established, the Group recognises any impairment loss on the

assets associated with that contract (see Note 2(i)(ii)).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic

benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised for the

reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the provision.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

®

Revenue and other income
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods or the provision of services in the ordinary

course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

() Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the products. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other goods, then the
amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate proportion
of the total transaction price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods promised under the contract on a

relative stand-alone selling price basis.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty

with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Group offers certain customers for the sale of goods
with rights of return and retrospective volume rebates
when their purchases reach an agreed threshold. Such
rights of return and volume rebates give rise to variable

consideration.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t)  Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Sale of goods (Continued)

The Group uses an expected value approach to estimate
variable consideration based on the Group's current and
future performance expectations and all information that is
reasonably available. This estimated amount is included in
the transaction price to the extent it is highly probable that
a significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognised will
not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is resolved. At the time of sale of goods,
the Group recognises revenue after taking into account
adjustment to transaction price arising from returns and
rebates as mentioned above. A refund liability is recognised
for the expected returns and rebates, and is included in
other payables. A right to recover returned goods (included
in inventories) and corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales are also recognised for the right to recover products
from customers. This right to recover returned goods is
measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory
less any expected costs to recover goods (including potential

decreases in the value of the retumed goods).

Service income

Service income is recognised when the services are
rendered. When the Group acts in the capacity of an agent
rather than as the principal in a transaction, the revenue is
recognised when the related agent services are rendered at
the net amount of commission received or to be received

by the Group.
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SREMRARKT)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t)  Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ii)

(iv)

()

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. The “effective interest rate” is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. In calculating interest income,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired).
However, for financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer
credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income

reverts to the gross basis.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as other income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are recognised as deferred income in the statement
of financial position and are subsequently recognised in

profit or loss over the useful life of the asset.
Dividends
Dividend income from equity investments is recognised

when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is

established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u)

W)

Translation of foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective
functional currencies of group companies at the foreign exchange

rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate
at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency

differences are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing

costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.
Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related

to the Group if that person:

0] has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group's parent.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

2 EXEFEREE)

(u)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

TS (BEBIRW SBERAARER)
2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 EXRSHBEE)
(w) Related parties (Continued) (w) EBEER (&)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) fHfFE THEMIFEH  AIREEEE
conditions applies: rEEERHH -

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBRASERR-—SEN
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and KERR(ANEERE - WE
fellow subsidiary is related to the others). REIRFZME R EEAEH

B)

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy, —EAEBRS—EBERNBLEA
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a Al A & E( T = it
member of a group of which the other entity is a RERRIMNEEE TKE QT
member). KBS ARG ERSE) o

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MEEBHRERAE=FHE
party. B o

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy, —EEBARE=FTEENEE
other entity is an associate of the third entity. ThFE  MBE—EBRAZFE=H

ERMEBERF -

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) ZEBRREHBANTASEE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity B AEEBAKERNESD
related to the Group. BEER R B AIFTE -

(Vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (i) ZEEXQ)EMHENNALE
person identified in (a). il St R

(viiy A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vii) %(a)()ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ”ﬂﬁ/\iﬁgﬁ%ﬁ
over the entity or is a member of the key management BERTEN  ARZEE(K
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). ZEBEARFEERAS -

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZERESHEHATE RE A —
part, provides key management personnel services to MXE AR AAREENIAEH
the Group or to the Group's parent. AEREFEEREKER

7 o

Close members of the family of a person are those family EALTHOERKEKE RTERAER

members who may be expected to influence, or be FHERBETRINAIRETERZ

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity. ATHREZATHENREKE -
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(x)  Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these

criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 27 contains information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to fair value of financial instruments. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of share-based payments with employees
by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at
which they are granted. Estimating fair value requires determining the
most appropriate valuation model for a grant of equity instruments, which
is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. The determination
of the fair value of the share-based payments is affected by the significant
assumptions such as the underlying equity value, the expected volatility
of share price and risk free interest rate. Details of share-based payments

are contained in Note 25.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BEBIERS -

SREMRARKT)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

@

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sales of
pantry staple food. All of the revenue of the Group is recognised
at a point in time. Further details regarding the Group's principal

activities are disclosed in Note 4(b).

Disaggregation of revenue by primary products is disclosed in Note

40)(0)-

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group's
customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group's revenue in the respective years are as follows. Details of
concentrations of credit risk of the Group are set out in Note
27(a).

4

Wz & 2 B &

(@)

2%
AEENFEXBRAEERHEREER
Rn o ANE B A AT Has b 0 35 13 5 R 26
R BRAAEEEEEBHE—PFE
R FE4(b) ©

BEBE RS DSR40 () FE -

EHZE2023F R202F 12831 HILEE - K
SENEFPAEFERFERBAEER
HIONK AR - AEENEERRSE
R F R E273) ©

2023 2022

20234 20224F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBFIT

Company A ANEIA 1,182,199 1,217,145
Company B AFIB 810,707 822710

The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
I21 of IFRS |5 and does not disclose the remaining performance
obligation as all of the Group’s sale contracts have an original

expected duration of less than one year.

SHIYUE DAOTIAN GROUP CO,, LTD 2023 Annual Report

AEBENBEBRMBRELDE I55E
RIBRFEREBBRIENTTE  LERE
RBBHOER  BIRRAEERBEHE
BHNREHERH IRV —F -



Notes to the Financial Statements

il REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by products. In a manner

consistent with the way in which information is reported internally

to the Group's most senior executive management for the

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the

Group has presented the following three reportable segments. No

operating segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments.

Rice products: this segment mainly produces pre-packaged

rice products of different varieties.

Whole grain, bean and other products: this segment mainly
produces pre-packaged mixed brown rice, millet, red bean

and sesame.

Dried food and other products: this segment mainly
produces pre-packaged wood ear mushrooms, snow fungus
mushroom and lotus seeds, as well as by-products, such as

bran, husk and fractioned rice.

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's senior
executive management monitors the results attributable to

each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.
The measure used for reporting segment result is gross
profit. No inter-segment sales have occurred for the years
ended 3| December 2023 and 2022. Assistance provided

by one segment to another is not measured.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BERER SEBERAARET)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 4
(b)  Segment reporting (Continued) (b)

Wk o EBEmE (E)
DEBME ()
() ZDEBREHE)

() Segment results (Continued)

The Group'’s other operating income and expenses, such
as other net income, selling and distribution expenses,
administrative expenses and impairment losses, and assets
and liabilities are not measured under individual segments.
Accordingly, neither information on segment assets and
liabilities nor information concerning capital expenditure,

interest income and interest expenses is presented.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as

provided to the Group’s most senior executive management

AEBEMEMLLWA R (INE
B AFE - HERKHMAX ~ 1T
BRAXREER)AREENRAE
I FFRAE R D B E - Hit - &
EIBHENHEERARNER
MEZINEHEAFT - MEWA
RMBFAXHER -

HZE2023F K2022F 12 A3 B IEFE
B BEBEEREIEMFEHDBRIRM

M AEESSHBNTEEER
HMEBAEETRE D BOER

for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of

segment performance for the years ended 3| December

2023 and 2022 is set out below. AT o
2023
20235
Whole
grain, bean Dried food
and other and other
Rice products products products Total
ME 58 %8
KKER KEMER REMER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTE AR®ETR AR®T:R
Revenue from external customers and 2R B IMNERE P My Mias J P $R
reportable segment revenue =P G 3,830,303 601,500 435223 4,867,026
Reportable segment gross profit AHEDEER 440,920 140,534 37,262 618716
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BERIZRN  ¢HEELAARET)
4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 4 WHEkIBHEEE)
(b)  Segment reporting (Continued) (b) PEWHEE)
(i) Segment results (Continued) (i) ZDEBFEE)
2022
20226
Whole
grain, bean Dried food
and other and other
Rice products products products Total
M 58 721
AKER REMER IEGER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AREFT ARBTT
Revenue from external customers and 2R B IMNERR P By lies J P $R
reportable segment revenue E0 il 3,621,740 523232 387,948 4532920
Reportable segment gross profit A REDEBEF 600,824 126,383 52,340 779,547

(i) Geographic information

(i) HWEZH

The Group does not have material assets or operation

outside the PRC. All of the Group's revenue is generated

from its customers in the PRC. Hence, no segment analysis

based on geographical location of the customers and assets

is presented.

AEELERPERINEREAE
ERER - AEENKE2HKE
HRHPBENEE - At - AT\
EREFPREEMBUENS S

#r o
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BERER SEBERAARET)

5  OTHER NET INCOME 5 HtKRARSE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Interest income R BUA 4,565 2,037
Net income from sales of raw materials HERMERW AT 2,508 2959
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE « KERRENBIEFE
equipment (1,537) (888)
Investment income BEUWA 4218 8,035
Government grants BT Bh 13,959 |5967
Provision for an outstanding legal claim FHERREERR (20,000) =
3,713 27,403
6  LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6 ERBiAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRELATEE DR T SIBRSH
(@)  Finance costs (a) BIEERRAR
2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Interest on bank and other loans SRITREMEFFE 9,790 3,300
Interest on lease liabilities HESEFE 1,522 609
Foreign exchange losses bE 5 E51R 10,408 =
21,720 3,909

No borrowing costs have been capitalised for each of the years

ended 3| December 2023 and 2022.
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B HRAR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) BB FIEER(E)

Staff costs* (b) BIRA*
2023 2022
2023F 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT
Salaries, wages and other benefits 4  TEREMER] 251,170 265,338

Contributions to defined contribution FEHFERKRET B

retirement schemes 20,731 16,331
Share-based payment expenses (Note 25) LARR A7 73 ZE R B9 - R B 32 (B a25) - 739,569
271,901 1,021,238

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit scheme managed by
the local government authorities, whereby these subsidiaries are
required to contribute to the schemes for the years ended 3|
December 2023 and 2022. Employees of these subsidiaries are
entitled to retirement benefits, calculated based on a percentage of
the average salaries level in the PRC, from the above-mentioned

retirement scheme at their normal retirement age.

The Group has no further obligation for payment of other
retirement benefits beyond the above contributions. Contributions
to the scheme vest immediately, there is no forfeited contributions
that may be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of

contribution.

HE2023FR20202F 12A31HILEE © &
SEME R R A E 8 2 8 A 75 BUF 58P
BEMNATHFTRNENGE - B - Z
EWBARIAMZETEIMHR - ZEWE
ARINEBBEREEERRFRLE Lt
RAGTEIFRZARFPBEFEHIEKESE
BRIKTEF o

B Lt ftsrsh - AEESEE - FINHE
R RIB R B A o B 3% 7T 81 #0 R AN e
BB A TFEAIRAKERAREERE
EFOKFRORULEEK -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BERER SEBERAARET)

6  LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 6 BRBiAIEEE)
(c) Other items (c) HfEE
2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT NE

Cost of inventories* (Note 15) FERA(HIEES) 4248310 3,753,373
Depreciation* (Notes |1 and 12) e (PaE 1 & 12)
— owned property, plant and equipment —BAME - BELRE 69,794 38,504
— right-of-use assets —(FAEEE 16,911 [1,206
Rental expenses” HERxZ" 2,057 2491
Auditors’ remuneration Gl 4,000 =
Listing expenses il 53 45,947 10,102
: Cost of inventories includes RMB142.0 million relating to staff costs, # HZE2023F12A31HIESE - ARSI
depreciation expenses and rental expenses for the year ended 3| K HERXREERXNEFEERARAA
December 2023 (2022: RMBI102.7 million), which is also included in R¥ 142088 L(2002F : AR 10278
the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in Note &T)  ZEBRENDRIETA EREHE6(b)
6(b) for each of these types of expenses. zﬁﬁ%%}fﬁﬁwﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ% BEERENATEE
7 INCOME TAX 7 Fi@%
(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and () HmeBEmRkEMZEABRARFHMAES
other comprehensive income represents: 5 :
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AL e

Current taxation BNERTL 1A 6,092 5,883
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B HRAR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

1T FBHE)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at (b) HEMEXHESHRAMUBEBARRITENSY
applicable tax rates: R :
2023 2022
20235 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Loss before taxation FrA% AT E 1R (58,771) (558,336)
Expected tax on loss before taxation, WA ADR N TRERTIIE - AR
calculated at the rates applicable to profits AERER R NEE ARG E
in the tax jurisdictions concerned (Note (i) (F5EG)) (14,693) (139,584)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT R B 2 OB I e 2 (BT 3 Giiy)
(Note (ii)) 46,674 232,865
Effect of PRC tax concession (Note (iii)) H B U B R ) = (B (i) (45,789) (99,347)
Tax effect of utilisation of prior years' unused B A SLAIARERNBEFERER
tax losses previously not recognised HIEEENEGETE (134) -
Tax effect of unused tax losses and deductible  RFERHIARB) AR IEEIE &
temporary differences not recognised AR R E R AT G R 20,034 11,949
Income tax FRiGHE 6,092 5883
Notes: FE
()  The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are subject ()  RPBERZHAEENERAREE2023
to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% for the years ended 31 FR2NFI12A3IBIEFE © BIR25%H)
December 2023 and 2022. BRSPS R AT ©

(if) Tax effect of non-deductible expenses mainly represent the changes (ii) AT B 2 E"]ﬁﬁ%%?g#ﬁ%ﬁ Ti%
in the carrying amount of financial instruments issued to investors, BENSRIANKREEZS  BHAE
share-based payments expenses exceeding the deductible amount ST AR R /5 ZE B A 1 TR B S A R B
and certain other costs and expenses, which all are not deductible THMKAARFER @ MRS BEMEETUK
in accordance with relevant tax regulations in the PRC. ERZFRBHTRIR ©

(i) In accordance with relevant tax regulations in the PRC, the Group'’s iy MEBETFEEBREER  ARENRER

business in primary processing of agricultural products is eligible for

income tax exemption.

TINT¥EB A ERERCHMAEE
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2 (REURTM . SEEGAARER)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EEME
Details of emoluments of directors and supervisors are as follows: EEREFENHFeABERHINNT :
2023
2023%
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances and Discretionary scheme
fees benefits in kind bonuses contributions Total

A
Eshe REUEAN BRRA  RAIGTEHK st
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000  RMB000
AR®TR ARMTR  ARMTR = AR®TR AR%TR

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Wang Bing IEGE - 1019 80 58 1,157
Ms. Zhao Wenjun EXEXL - 640 50 38 728
Ms. Zhao Shulan i e - 666 - 19 685
Mr. Shu Minghe ABLE - 354 27 29 410
Mr. Zou Hao BREE - 2,465 960 63 3,488
Mr. Shen Nanpeng el vt

(resigned on 3 March 2023) (R20235F3A3BEHE) - - - - -
Mr. Yu Feng E#BEE

(resigned on 3 March 2023) (7N203F3A3AEHT) - - - - -
_________________________________________________________ - 5,144 117 207 6,468
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Chang Bin BREE - - - - -
Mr. Mohamed Albadr Mohamed Albadrft

(appointed on 17 January 2023 and (202351 A I7BEZR T

resigned on 3 March 2023) R2023F3A3BEHE) - - - - -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RERIE - 2EERAARET)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 8 EEMEE)
2023
2023
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances and Discretionary scheme
fees benefits in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 28
EZHe REUEA MIETEAL  RIKGHEMER @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥TRE AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR
Independent non-executive directors BIYEHITES
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat hEERE
(appointed on 12 October 2023) (FR2023F 108 12REZR(E) 79 - - - 79
Mr. Shi Ketong LRBEE
(appointed on |2 October 2023) (R023F 107 12HEZE) 79 - - - 79
Mr. Lin Chen MREE
(appointed on 12 October 2023) (R03F 108 12BEZE) 79 - - - 79
237 - - - 237
Supervisors EE
Ms. Zhao Shujuan HRiER L
(resigned on 6 January 2023) (R20235F | 6B &) - - - - -
Mr. He Yang %4 - 905 300 63 1,268
Mr. Li Xiang e ks - 507 250 6l 818
Ms. Wang Zhijuan FEEat - 292 144 27 463
- 1,704 694 151 2,549
237 6,848 1811 358 9,254
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(BEBIERS -

8

134

SREMRARKT)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

8 EEM=(#H)

2022
202025
Salaries, Retirement Share-based
Directors'  allowances and  Discretionary scheme payments
fees  benefits in kind bonuses  contributions Subtotal Note (i) Total
DARRAR &
Ex FHo =2M EIREHE HRAOMR
we  REWEN  BBED 5N at MIEE() st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000  RMB000 RMB'000
ARRTT ARETT ARRTL ARNTT ARNRTT AR%®TT ARMTE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Wang Bing FEEE = 1011 6,500 50 7561 547319 554,880
Ms. Zhao Wenjun HWXELL - 607 3,000 6 3613 143,667 147,280
Ms. Zhao Shulan izl oG = 666 1,500 19 2,185 20243 22428
Mr. Shu Minghe EAELE = 354 2,300 29 2,683 18219 20902
Mr. Zou Hao (appointed on B2 F 4 (0025
20 December 2022) 12A0REZAE) = 814 960 10 1,784 = 1784
Mr. Shen Nanpeng el oy = - - = - = =
Mr. Yu Feng et St = = = = = = =
= 3452 14,260 [14 17826 729,448 747274
Non-executive director FHTES
HriSe sl PR e e s e =
Supervisors Ex
Ms. Zhao Shujuan HRiAR L = 360 850 = 1210 5061 6271
Mr. He Yang (appointed on 7 e 4 (PN20225
20 December 2022) 12A0REZE) - 859 300 58 1217 B 1217
M. Li Xiang (appointed on FEEE (P0G
20 December 2022) 12A0REZHE) - 42 250 48 720 = 720
Ms. Wang Zhijuan (appointed FEfERT(R002E
on 20 December 2022) 12208 BZ) - 256 150 py) 428 - 48
e e e R e Sl See
= 5349 15810 242 21401 734509 755910
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

-t
(BERIZRN  ¢HEELAARET) kY
8  DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 8 EEMEE)
Notes: BT
0) These represent the estimated value of share awards granted to the 0) ERTESREENRNEES B ERNES
directors or supervisors or transfers of paid-in capital from directors or ERHRRATHMIZEEMBLE QR BENME
supervisors to other investors above fair value. The value of these share- FHE o ZEUARMD AR KA BE RN
based payments is measured according to the Group's accounting policies 20) (i FTEAEB ARG AERNN R HET
for share-based payment transactions as set out in Note 2(p)(iii). The details BURETE - 2 BB BN HRE -

of these benefits in kind are disclosed in Note 25.

(i)  These directors’ emoluments disclosed above included compensations for iy EXBRENZSEETMEERRERZEREA
services rendered by them as key management personnel prior to their RIEFAREFZETEABFIRHARBOEM
appointments as directors of the Company.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no director or HZE2023F K202 12A3IBLEEE - HEE
supervisor has waived for agreed to waive any emoluments and no EREEREXRERETANE - EXAKE
amounts were paid or payable by the Group to the directors and the WESNHENEEREERIE - FRRSIH
supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as MMAREE KA REE 126 REN S BEER&E
compensation for loss of any office in connection with the management EEAKE AR EEEHBUMEE -

of the affairs of any member of the Group.

9  INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 EBEHFMAL
The number of directors, supervisor and other employees included in the HZE2023FR2002FNAIALEFE A&
five highest paid individuals for the years ended 31 December 2023 and SEFMALTHHNES EEREMEENAH
2022 are set forth below: Byl
2023 2022
20235 20226
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
Directors E 2 4
Supervisor E= I =
Other employees HitEE 2
5 5
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T2 (RERREN - SEELAARER)

9  INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 9 BHReHFMAL(£)

The emoluments of the directors and supervisor are disclosed in Note 8. EEREZNHMARMESRIERE - HBRREH
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining highest paid A TR F RSN T

individuals, are as follows:

2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT AEESor

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e  REREWREN 1,674 342
Discretionary bonuses B TEAL 229 881
Share-based payments (Note 25) VAR A7 2 ZE R 89 A< 3k (Hf43E25) - 5,060
Retirement scheme contributions RIRE SR 126 H

2,029 6,294
The emoluments of the individual who is not director or supervisor and S EWIEAEREESRETBEMNR AL RS &
who is amongst the five highest paid individuals of the Group is within MALTZIBALTHESER DT -

the following band:

2023 2022
2023 20225
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 78 7T 2 1,500,000 7T 2 -
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 BICZE7,500,000/ 7T -
For the years ended 3| December 2023 and 2022, no emoluments were HZE2023FR202F12A3IBLEFE - A&H
paid by the Group to these individuals as an inducement to join or upon BMEOZEALINEAMSIESRSIEMNA
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. SR IARE R RS ERBEBMES -
10 LOSS PER SHARE 10 BRER
(a)  Basic loss per share () BREXEE
The calculation of the basic loss per share for the years ended BE2023F K2022F 1231 HIEFE -
31 December 2023 and 2022 is based on the loss attributable to RERBENAEDERRNRA AL BER
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted R R FE(G B3 18 R B = 20234 20224 12 A
average number of ordinary shares in issue or deemed to be in BRI FEEBETRRBRERHTNER
issue for the years ended 3| December 2023 and 2022. AREYINEFHEE -
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10 LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

@

Basic loss per share (Continued)

The Company was converted into a joint stock limited liability
company and issued 99,445,074 shares with the par value of RMB/
each on 6 January 2023. For the purpose of computing basic
loss per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares
deemed to be in issue before the Company's conversion into a
joint stock limited liability company was determined assuming the
conversion into joint stock limited liability company had occurred
on | January 2022, at the conversion ratio established in the
conversion in January 2023 and takes into account of the share

split at a one-for-ten basis immediately upon listing.

The financial instruments issued to investors with preferential
rights were treated as treasury stock and debited to other reserve
before the termination of preferential rights as described in Note
21. Accordingly, before the termination of preferential rights, the
shares converted from related paid-in capital was deducted when

calculating the number of ordinary shares deemed in issue.

Loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the

B HRAR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

10 BREEB(E)

(@)

BREXEE(E)
RARBR2023F | A6 B HI B ER
AR 0 BETT99,445,074 R EEA R
THRMD - M EEREAREEMS @ &
ARSI ABRD AR A AT R A D BT
VE AR INE T8 - ISR R 2022
F1AIBERFIRRHERAR - 22023
FIANGIREINRREEREE - B&t
R EZRE gkt T EEETHRO T
T3 o

AREERTHHFELENSRITAR
BEBKIE AR SEFR D WA A
N2 1 Frat) - Bt - REBEER
AT - AMEESRAERBNEFTERED
BT E BB -

AR A E B R KR F AR

Company
2023 2022
2023F 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETFTT
Loss for the year attributable to all equity AN EFTA SRR (L N g8
shareholders of the Company (64,863) (564,219)
Allocation of (profit)/loss for the year FIREEBITHERITAREER
attributable to financial instruments issued to (FPE),/ BB (PHEE21)
investors (Note 21) (2,462) 156,878
Loss for the year attributable to ordinary RRAEBERRRIELEAEE
equity shareholders of the Company (67,325) (407,341)
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LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(@)  Basic loss per share (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% SR 7= B =

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BEBIERS -

10 BREB(E)
@) SREXFREE)

Weighted average number of shares R InkE-FE 8 H
2023 2022
20235 20224
No. of shares No. of shares
’000 '000
RGEE Lignt 4=
T TR
Ordinary shares deemed to be in issue at | R A BRAEZETHE B
January 994,450 924,840
Effect of ordinary shares deemed to be in issue  RABEEITEBIRNFZE 19,350 21,740
Effect of shares issued by initial public offering ERE X AFREEREITRID
7 11,706 -
Effect of the financial instruments issued to MIREERTERITANTE
investors (Note 21) (ME21) (226,656) (263,190)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (B R)IBEEITH T B METIIE
(deemed to be) in issue 798,850 683,390

(b) Diluted loss per share

(b) ER#@HEERE

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted BREEEEDREMEATEENELEE
BB SRR AEERTEERN
MEFHHBFEFE - BE20235F &2022
FRAZBLFE AEENEEEBRR
KERREERTOMNEELENSRT
A(MiEE21) - SHESREEEER LR
NEEEBR - TDHREFNEELBR
HEAERBEZE - At » BE2023F R
2022 12 A31 Bt FENESREEERE
BEENEREREIERAR -

average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. For the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group's potential
ordinary shares are from financial instruments issued to investors
with preferential rights (Note 21). The potential ordinary shares
were not included in the calculation of diluted loss per share as
their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. Accordingly, diluted loss per
share for the years ended 3| December 2023 and 2022 are the

same as basic loss per share for the respective years.
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(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1 Y% BERRE
Machinery
Plant and and other  Construction
buildings equipment in progress Total
AR R
BERETF HtRE EEIR et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AEEETE AEETr  AESTR AER

Cost:

At | January 2022
Additions
Transfers in/(out)

Disposals

A

2022 1 A 1B 162,762 206,062 209,388 578212
NE - 42,704 323942 366,646
BA(EH) 299,893 149,061 (448,954) -
HE (126) (3,502) - (3,628)

At 3| December 2022 and

R2022 12A31H &

| January 2023 202341 A1 B 462,529 394,325 84,376 941,230
Additions NE 231 27,974 138,787 166,992
Transfers in/(out) BA(8BH) 51,051 100,684 (151,735) -
Disposals He (1,352) (3,560) = (4912)
At 3| December 2023 720235 12 A31 R 512,459 519,423 71,428 1,103,310
Accumulated depreciation: 2iHFE -

At | January 2022 20224 1 A1 B (11,773) (29,772) = (41,545)
Charge for the year FAZH (11,539) (26,965) - (38,504)
Written back on disposals ] 37 1,342 - 1,379

At 3| December 2022 and

R2022F 128318 K&

| January 2023 20231 A1 H (23,275) (55,395) - (78,670)
Charge for the year FAZH (22,538) (47,256) = (69,794)
Written back on disposals &R E 193 2,829 = 3,022
At 31 December 2023 M2023F 128318 (45,620) (99.822) = (145,442)
Net book value BREFE
At 31 December 2023 2023512 A31 B 466,839 419,601 71,428 957,868
At 31 December 2022 720224 12 A31 B 439,254 338930 84,376 862,560
At 31 December 2023, certificates of certain plant and buildings of the M2023F 12A318 - AEBETEREEESA
Group with carrying amount of RMBI152.7 million (31 December 2022: REI1527887T(R2022F 128318 : ARE

RMB259.7 million) are yet to be obtained.

2597BEEL)NEEMEFHARSESE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% SR 7= B =

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 12 ERAEEE
Land-use-rights Properties Farm Total
TR L/ES B 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®F T ARETF T ARBFT ARETTT
Note (a) Note (b) Note (b)
it () i (b) HiEb)
Cost: B
At | January 2022 R2002%1 A8 63812 24811 - 88,623
Additions NE 50,731 19411 - 70,142
Reductions due to early termination EIRAIA TR - (15970) - (15,970)
Reductions due to expiration of leases 4 E| B iR 4> - (999) - (999)
At 31 December 2022 and R202612H31B K
| January 2023 203F 1 A1R 114,543 27,253 - 141,796
Additions N 51,383 12,144 15,849 79,376
Reductions due to early termination EiRAaR Emm > = (5,302) = (5,302)
Reductions due to expiration of leases  EAIZIER IR > - (3,060) - (3,060)
At 31 December 2023 M2023F 128318 165,926 31,035 15,849 212,810
Accumulated depreciation: ZIE .
At | January 2022 K001 A8 (4060) (7.922) . (11982)
Charge for the year FAX M (2,220) (8,986) - (11,206)
Reductions due to early termination BRI TR - 9,945 - 9,945
Reductions due to expiration of leases  E7H 45 B s 4> = o) = 999
At 3| December 2022 and M2002F12A31A K
| January 2023 202341 A 1A (6,280) (5.964) - (12,244)
Charge for the year FRZH (3,016) (11,634) (2.261) (16911)
Reductions due to early termination EfRAI R TR = 2,500 = 2,500
Reductions due to expiration of leases ~ EFVE|EAmR A = 3,060 = 3,060
At 31 December 2023 72023 12H31H (9,296) (12,038) (2,261) (23,595)
Net book value BREFE
At 31 December 2023 K023 128318 156,630 18997 13,588 189,215
At 31 December 2022 72022 12A31 5 108,263 21,289 - 129,552
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12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

@

®)

Land-use-right premiums were paid by the Group for land situated
in the PRC. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
these land-use-rights, there are no ongoing payments to be made

under the terms of the land lease.

At 31 December 2023, certificates of certain land-use-rights of the
Group with carrying amount of RMBI 1.9 million (31 December
2022: RMB23.6 million) are yet to be obtained.

The Group has obtained the right to use the properties as its
warehouse and offices and to use the farm to plant through
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an initial period of

| to 5 years.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an additional
period after the end of the contract term. Where practicable, the
Group seeks to include such extension options exercisable by
the Group to provide operational flexibility. The Group assesses
at lease commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. If the Group is not reasonably
certain to exercise the extension options, the future lease payments
during the extension periods are not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities. For existing leases as at 31 December 2023,
the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise any extension
options therefore did not include future lease payments during the

extension periods in the measurement of lease liabilities.

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in

the Group's profit or loss is as follows:

B HRAR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

12 FHRESEE)

(@)

(b)

AREB AL A B 3 S 3t (5 A
HES - EREMEL —RIENFKAREZ
FriERE  RETWHEEFRRERE
BB -

M2023F 12A318 ' A&EBEETEREES
ARE 198 &m(M2022F 128318 :
AR®23.6F & IT) H) L 55 4 18 R ERAS

s
Ei——4
igs °

AEEEEEAHEBRESNE(ERRE
BEEMAE)EREARES(RIEER)
ERE - BH—RVT BB IESF -

BArEEBREARPEREBENTER
—BREHEAEEREE  EUTHBAT
AEBAKMAREE A ITE R EHIE 2
o NREKEEEE - AKRERESERM
HBHREEEEAEREETHETHER
o MRAEETRAERERGITHELT
HEEg - AEHBRENRRESNIT
BREAMEERENED - HREE2023
FRABMNEABHEE AEEEESE
BERDTEEMTELEEE - FAitaEl
A ERARKEHMENREEEN
REEEA °

BEASEBETRANEEEROMAX
HE DM

2023 2022

2023 20226

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT NERSTIE

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EREEETESE 16,911 I'1,206
Expense relating to short-term leases g5 I ER MR 2,057 2491
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) HE B EFNE (Hi6(a)) 1,522 609
20,490 14,306

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of

lease liabilities are set out in Notes 7(c) and 27(b), respectively.

HEReRHRBEREEaENIHO T
FHIED RIERKITE17(c) &R27(b) °
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I3 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RMEQFNERS
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which TRENFTEXERKEXE  BEEXEREL
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. B AR -
Proportion of
Place of Particulars of ownership
establishment  Kind of registered/ interest held
Company name and business  legal entity paid-in capital by the Company  Principal activities
B3 K EARRE i3 ENNGIES )
NEEMH X 08 BREAHE MAERESHH IEXK
Wuchang City Caigiao Rice Industry Co, Ltd. i~ The PRC Company with RMB100,000,000/ 100%  Production and sale of rice
BHRRREERRA limited liability RMB100,000,000 and other products
ERMYRREERAR PE Bin R AR#100000,0007T,/ 100% AEBEAKREMER
NS AER#1000000007T
Shenyang Xinchang Grain Trade Co, Ltd. The PRC Company with RMB 100,000,000/ 100%  Production and sale of rice,
(“Shenyang Xinchang") EIGEERREHE limited liability RMB 100,000,000 grains, beans, dried food
RAE] and other products
EHEERRESERAR(NERREER]) T i BR AR H100,0000007T, 100% AEHEAK R
A AR H100,000,0007C OB uERAME
m
Shiyue Daotian Songyuan Agricultural Technology ~ The PRC Company with RMB30,000,000/ 100%  Production and sale of rice
Co, Lid TABHRREREREBRAR limited liability RMB30,000,000
TARERREXMRARAF B Bin AR AR#30,0000007T, 100% AEEHEAK
NS AR#30,000,0007T
Shiyue Daotian (Aohangj) Agricultural Technology ~ The PRC Company with RMB30,000,000/ 100%  Production and sale of
Co, lid T ATBHEGEUER) BERBAERA limited liability RMB30,000,000 grains
7l
T ARH(GER) BEMBEARARF Ef B ER AR#30,0000007T, 100% EEHERD
] AR#30,000,0007T
Shiyue Daotian (Beijing) Technology The PRC Company with RMB2,000,000/ 100%  Technology services
Development Co, Ltd. +ARBHILR)BHE limited liability RMB2,000,000
ERERRA
TABHGLR)MEERBR AR i iR AR #2,00000070, 100% AR
NS AR#2,0000007T
Tonghe County Caigiao Rice Industry Co,, Ltd. The PRC Company with RMB35,000,000/ 100%  Production and sale of rice
BAGTBAEERAT limited liability RMB35,000,000
BARTVREAEERAR PE BinBR AR #350000007T,/ 100% EEHEAK
NG| AR 35,0000007T
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(BRERIERN  eEENAARYET)
4 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 14 HMFERBEE
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETTT ARBFT
Prepayments for construction in progress and R TR R (s TR 58
land-use-rights 20,490 12,293
I5 INVENTORIES 15 =F&
2023 2022
2023F 20226F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Raw materials FRATE 1,183,751 838,544
Work in progress RS 57,100 47921
Finished goods B 343,286 25475
Packaging materials BEME 33,613 33,225
1,617,750 1,375,165
Less: write-down of inventories B TEEMOR (12,922) (2,494)
1,604,828 1,372,671
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and EEZARY ABSNGEESES AT :
included in profit or loss is as follows:
2023 2022
20235 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEMNEREE 4,237,882 3,752,500
Write-down of inventories FEMR 10,428 873
4,248,310 3753373
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

TN SRENAARET)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

16 EZREMERFIE

2023 2022
20235 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Trade receivables from: REATATHE ZREKEE :
— third parties =y 245,634 402,344
Less: loss allowance W ER (2,882) (8232)
242,752 Boo 1| 2]
Bills receivables e 92,406 16,634
Prepayments to suppliers [ e ) TR AN FROE 25,041 33,803
Prepayments for costs incurred in connection B R & BB AN P A BV TR RUIA
with the financing - 3,302
Prepayments for costs incurred in connection BEARRTRNERARAFREE
with the proposed initial public offering BB AN FTEE A Y TR 5RIR
of the Company's shares - €113
25,041 46018
Value added tax recoverable A EIE(ET 125,970 84,021
Deposits and amounts due from B ERE T ARES RRIA
the e-commerce platforms 9,890 7,839
Deposits for bidding and purchase of land-use-rights T Hb{F FHEIRIE KB BIREF S 1,657 3304
Other receivables H A fEURIE 364 21
Other deposits HARE S 7,112 8,157
144,993 103,352
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A e IR 505,192 565,116

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or

recognised as expenses or transferred to equity within one year.
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of the Group's

trade receivables (net of loss allowance), based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

B HRAR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

16 BZRHMEWREE)
BR 8 AT
RIERBR AEBERERZAHNESE
Wk IE (F0BR BB B R DTN T

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AERWTIT

Within 3 months MEAR 218,773 390,539
4 to 6 months 4268 A 15,174 7.2
7 to 12 months 7% 1218 A 8,714 1,256
Over | year 1A E 91 205

242,752 399,112

Details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk arising from trade

receivables are set out in Note 27(a).

17 RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AND OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@) Cash and cash equivalents

ERAAEBEEERRARE HRUGRAELD
EERROFIEHRNME273) °

17 ERHEAEFENK  HERASEEYRHEME
() BHERREZEY

2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 1,457,218 120,360
Less: restricted deposits (Note) B R EIER (M) (30,000) =
1,427,218 120,360

Note: The restricted deposits represent the bank deposits frozen by court
due to a litigation against certain subsidiaries of the Group (see

Note 31).

BSE : IR GIFRIERHAEEE THE AR RER
AT BOEBTR AR RIT R (2R3 -
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17 RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 ZR&IEN  HRERBELEZEBYREME

AND OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) EREZER(E)
(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (b) BMEFHELENEEHR
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from TERFANRNEERE THNAEES @ &

financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. HESKIERELES - EX@EEHHN
BEREAEZREERAARKRRERES
REEEGAREREXRSPBRARERD
FIRRERENERE -

Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

146

Financial
Bank and Lease instruments issued
other loans liabilities to investors Total
RITR MREERT
HitE R HEEE WemMIA act
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR¥TT ARBTR ARBTR
(Note 20) (Note 22) (Note 21)
(Hf20) (Ht22) (Hfi21)
At | January 2023 R0BEIAIR 394,905 20,006 2,380,161 2,795,072
Changes from financing cash flows: BEREHELE .
Proceeds from bank and other loans PITREMERMEFTE 1,100,010 - - 1,100,010
Proceeds from the issuance of financial MREEETERIAMS
instruments to investors, net of OB - R SRR
transaction costs - - 285,292 285,292
Repayment of bank and other loans RITREMEFER (484,498) - - (484,498)
Finance costs paid BEREBRA (9,136) - - (9,136)
Capital element of lease rentals paid - (12,795) - (12,795)
Interest element of lease rentals paid - (1,522) - (1,522)
Total changes from financing cash flows 606,376 (14,317) 285,292 877,351
Other changes: Hitv2 g
Increase in lease liabilities MEEBEM - 27993 - 27993
Reductions in lease liabilities MEARARAA LTS
due to early termination - (2,838) - (2,838)
Changes in the carying amount of financial ~ MIREZETH SR T ABRRE
instruments issued to investors 25 - - 181,141 181,141
Exchange adjustments BT - - 422 422
Expiration of the redemption rights upon RORRG FikBEESE
the listing of the Company's shares - - (2,847,016) (2,847,016)
Finance costs BB 9,790 1522 - 1312
Total other changes A Eens 9,790 26,677 (2,665,453) (2,628,986)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%F12A31R 1,011,071 32,366 - 1,043,437
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(BERIZRN  ¢HEELAARET)
I7 RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 EZRHEFEN - RERRESEEYRAMER
AND OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) EREER(E)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (b) RMEFTBHEENEEBHIRE)
(Continued)
Financial
Bank and Dividend Lease  instruments issued
other loans payable liabiltes to investors Total
I AREERTT
A3 EfiRE HEAG HEMTA 5t
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Note 20) (Note 22) (Note 21)
(Hiitz0) (Hit22) (Hit21)
At | January 2022 RUNEIAIR 50000 - 16015 GTp4 193899
Changes from financing cash flows: HERSTERS.
Proceeds from bank and other loans R REERAETE 417418 - = B 417418
Repayment of bank and other loans RREETEN (72930) - - - (72930)
Dividends paid EffRE E (200000) - - (200000)
Finance costs paid ERHBRA (2883) = = = (2883)
Capital element of ease rentals paid EffEEReNALH - - (7928) - (7928)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EffRERSMHEH - - (609) - (609)
bedetaonetng GEe LS Al e Gl =
Other changes: -0,
Increzse in lease [abiites HEakEn - - 19411 - 19411
Reductions in lease liabiftes due to early temnination & & ERIRAALLMHD - - 749 - (7492)
lssuance of financial nstruments to investors RAEREWEARRLBEENRE
by transfer of paid-in capital and granting FRTERIER
redemption nghts - - - 1209%! 1209%!
Issuance of financial nstruments to investors by BREEA BEREARREERAN
transfer of Series A-| paid-in capital with EROESRTA
redemption nghts - - - 207760 207760
Changes in the caying amount of financial mREEEIHCRIARAERD
nstruments issued to investors = = = 7859 17859
Dividends declred EERRE - 200000 - - 200000
Finance costs BBRA 3300 - 6 - 3909
Total other changes ApEaes 0 om0 e e T
At 31 December 2022 RNNENA3IB 394905 - 20006 2380161 279507
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T (BEYEW - SEEGAARER)
I7 RESTRICTED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 EZRHEFN - RERBRESESEYRHEMER
AND OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) EREZER(E)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HENRERLEE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows FAGREReRERNEEAENEEMR
represent leases rental paid and comprise the following; W BEATIER :
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Within operating cash flows REEREREN (2,057) (2491)
Within investing cash flows RIEEREREN (66,951) (28,738)
Within financing cash flows REEREREA (14,317) (8,537)
(83,325) (39,766)
I8 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18 BEZRHEMESRKE
2023 2022
20235 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT
Trade payables H S ERRIE
- el = 0 137,566 S0 e
Payables for staff related costs & 8 TARRIA AR 38,365 66,193
Payables for construction and purchase of property, eI - BRE REREER
plant and equipment BEIA 25,970 43,603
Payables for costs incurred in connection with the HRARABRODBZEERAREE
proposed initial public offering of the Company's FFr 2 A B FE ST B AR
shares 6,224 12,12
Others HAth 8,474 5910
79,033 127,835
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost REHEKATENSHARE 216,599 299,461
Provision for an outstanding legal claim FHRAREERR 20,000 =
Refund liabilities RHREE 1,634 949
Payables for miscellaneous taxes JETHETRR 3,628 3,138
241,861 303,548
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(BRGNS SRENAAREL) kY
18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 18 EBEZRHMESREGE)
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of the Group's RBEHER  AEEREZAHFNETE
trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: NFIBHEREASITAT
2023 2022
2023 20225
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARKETT

Within one year or on demand —FRHIRER 137,566 171,626
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one BEAEE S REMENRIEZR -—FRER
year or are repayable on demand. YRR ESREE -
19 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 19 &REE
2023 2022
2023 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBTT

Contract liabilities due to third parties ERNE=F&H8E 13,571 31,564
All of the contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as revenue FEHEALARBER—ERNER AW o

within one year.

Movements in contract liabilities EREERE
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Balance at | January R A BRAER 31,564 18,580
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising & 4B ERFRERFIT AR
revenue during the year that was included in the B BEHWE MR
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (31,564) (18,580)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receipts in ER =N ECSREL e Tl
advance 13,571 31,564
Balance at 31 December R12831 Beviass 13,571 31,564
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20 BANK AND OTHER LOANS 20 RTRHEMER
(@) The Group’s bank and other loans comprised: () TEENRITREMEREE :
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT NE

Bank loans: RITER
Guaranteed by related parties (Note 20(d)) FR BAR 5 AR (B 5E20(d)) - 224,769
Guaranteed by related parties and secured by R RAES 5 IR R R A A S E R - 120,136
property, plant and equipment and land-use- * BB RERERIER
rights of the Group (Notes 20(c) and 20(e)) TEVERE IR (FI7E20(c) ®220(e))
Secured by property, plant and equipment and AASEYE - BERF 750,763 =
land-use-rights of the Group (Note 20(c)) VAR 58 FRHE & EE YRR AR
(F#E20(c))
Unsecured st 260,308 =
1,011,071 344,905
Other loans: HMER :
Secured by trade receivables of the Group BB E 5 YT Ia(EE R - 50,000
(Note 20(c)) (B E20(0))
1,011,071 394,905
(b)  The Group’s bank and other loans are repayable as follows: (b) AEENRTREMERZATHTXHE
iz
2023 2022
2023%F 20026
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT NERlE e
Within | year or on demand R—FASRIEEK 1,011,071 394,905
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20 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

(9)

(d)

(®

(8

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by the

B HRAR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

20 BRORHEMER(E)

() AEENETRITREMERASEBRN

following assets of the Group: LT EEFEET

2023 2022
2023F 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Property, plant and equipment M - BEKRH 322,822 [ 14,582
Land-use-rights b fE A 111,447 23,037
Trade receivables B S ERE - 106,004
434,269 243,623

The short-term bank loans are guaranteed by certain equity (d) RHRITERBARAE TEZBRRERAR

shareholders of the Company and close family members of the

equity shareholders of the Company.

The short-term bank loans are guaranteed by certain equity
shareholders of the Company and close family members of the
equity shareholders of the Company, and secured by property,

plant and equipment and land-use-rights of the Group.

At 31 December 2023, the Group's banking facilities amounting to
RMB1,550.0 million (31 December 2022: RMB520.0 million), were
utilised to the extent of RMBI,010.0 million (31 December 2022:
RMB344.5 million).

Certain of the Group's bank loans are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants, the
loans would become repayable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further details of
the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note 27(b).
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, none of the covenants relating

to the bank loans had been breached.

Aﬂﬁ%&ﬁﬂi%ﬂ”ﬂL%ﬁ%%ﬁkﬁ%% e

(e) RMHRITEFHARRE THEZREEAK

ﬂ%%ﬁ%?%Lﬁ%%ﬁﬁ#%'m

INAEEBNYE - WS KR E R HE A
TEVEHEAR o

() H2023F12A8318 ' AREMNRITRESR
AR 155008 8B r(20224 12A318 -
ARB52008&7T)  HAEHAARK
1,0100EE (20226 128318 : AR
3445B&7T) °

(5) AEEETROTERAXESBBBIIL
E’Jf%%ﬁ?xﬁ?%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ)@f WRWEEFTAR - WA

SEEREWRG - ABEMERARER
BE  AKEEREREBEZTZADN
BN - AEBEEERBHES ARHE—F

FIEEN M EE27(b) © %2022@&2023¢
12A318 - #EEREREBRITERL
B
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T (BEURW - 2EELAARSR)
20 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 20 WMITREMER(E)
(h) At 3| December 2023 and 2022, certain bank loans were (hy P2023FKR2022F12A31H - HEFRITE

guaranteed by the subsidiaries within the Group. HEASE AN B A RREER -

21  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ISSUED TO INVESTORS 21 MBREFRITHEHRIA
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETTT
Redemption liabilities EEEE - 2,380,161
The movements of the redemption liabilities are set out below: EOaEMEEHmT
Redemption
liabilities
BEAE
RMB’000
AR¥TT
At | January 2022 2022 1 A1 A 1,872,844
Effect of the paid-in capital transfer and granting redemption rights to the B & RN E K A1 EAR THE[D
transferee (Note 25(b)) R 2 (FiE25(b)) 120,961
Effect of the Series A-| paid-in capital transfer with redemption rights B E Bl R FOA- | S B0 AN
(Note 26(c)) H 2 (FiiaE26(c)) 207,760
Changes in the carrying amount of redemption liabilities fEo & EREEE S 178,596
At 3| December 2022 and | January 2023 20225 12 31 B 20231 A I B 2,380,161
Grant of redemption right in Series C financing R FCmat & )& 285,714
Changes in the carrying amount of redemption liabilities fEo & EREEES) 181,141
Expiration of the redemption rights upon the listing of the Company's
shares RA AR T4 E 5 HY (2,847,016)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ISSUED TO INVESTORS
(CONTINUED)

From July 2020 to February 2023, the Company conducted several
rounds of financing by issuing registered capital to investors and the
investors were granted a right to put back to the Company the registered
capital acquired upon the occurrence of any of the following events: (i)
no qualified initial public offerings has been consummated within five (5)
or six (6) years following the closing of series financing; (i) any material
breach of the agreements made with the financing investors under the
transaction documents; (iii) any founding shareholders resign or is unable
to act as the key management or core staff due to any subjective reasons
before a qualified initial public offerings; (iv) the other financing investors
required the Company to redeem their registered capital based on the

above events (i), (i) and (iii).

The redemption price is as follows:

. For the Series A-1 and A-2 investors, the redemption price is the
higher of (i) the investment amount paid by the investors, plus an
annual compound interest rate of 10% on the investment amount
for the period commencing from the relevant payment date of
the investment amount to the date on which the investors receive
payments for redemption, and any declared but undistributed
dividends; and (i) the market fair value of the paid-in capital with
redemption rights required to be redeemed. Upon the Series B
financing agreements dated on 12 April 2021, the redemption
rights of the Series A-l and A-2 investors were amended, such
that (i) above was removed. The changes in the carrying amount
of the redemption liabilities as a result of such modification was
charged to equity, since the modification is a transaction between

the Company and its shareholders in their capacity as owners.

. For the Series B and Series C investors, the redemption price
is the investment amount paid by the investors, plus an annual
simple interest rate of 10% on the investment amount for the
period commencing from the relevant payment date of investment
amount to the date on which the investors receive payments for

redemption, and any declared but undistributed dividends.

The redemption rights have automatically expired upon the listing of the
Company's shares on the Stock Exchange and the carrying amount of the

redemption liabilities was transferred to “‘other reserve” within equity.
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(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

MREEBRITHNEMITA(E

202057 A E2023F28  AARBBARIKE
BETEMERETZHREMBEERELE
AT EREGHEEERARRREMESHFE
MER : (R RIEELEREZ ()N (6)FA
BMEZKEGERBIAHABRE  (MBREXZX
HEMERNEREREREEFTEXRE (i)
REERERAAZEARNERNEBERRAST
AP R B T REEEEZEEE izl
AB i (vEMRERESEZRKAQRBE L
()~ (HR(i)VEEEBERFEENZMER -

BOENT :

. FA- I RALRIREEMS - BREAGE
BEMZMIRERE - NEREAKIEREA
S BERRR =R A B W EE A H
HENEERBENFEEEFEMN 0% K
FRBEEIRERDIEARE @ &) BE
THEENEDENHMTERNTSANE
BEzENESE - RAHAE2021F4812
HRBIRBE A% - A1 RABRIRE S
BB B4 T LMEET - BABUIBR £ 32 (ii) °
HEAETES3MER & EREEZ e
AEm RRERBITAARAGRIREINA
BEANRREZHANRS °

. HBRCHIREEME @ BEERKREEX
RERERIE - MEREREEBE A
HR SR E A B UER IR A AR A
FEFIENFEEENEE 0% RAEMRME
ERERDRABRE °

BOERARABRNRBXMA LT 2AKRES
A BOEEMNREESBREZEETHHE
] -
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i
§2

22 LEASE LIABILITIES 22 HEAE
The lease liabilities were repayable as follows as of the end of the HERSHARNHEEAGENUATHEEER
reporting period:

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBETT

e Bl e s et 0 . 12899 (00 =0 9

After | year but within 2 years S EVan 12,083 5,022

After 2 years but within 5 years DFRBESFER 7,384 6,027

L o . e L e 19467 i e
32,366 20,006

23  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 23 R&GEEHEMRARNWFAEH
FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial () REEFTHARRRNEHABIERE !

position represents:

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Net balance of income tax payable at | January A | BTSRRI AR

R 5,882 6814
Provision for the year (Note 7(a)) FriE (7)) 6,092 5,883
Income tax paid BEASFTEH (5,904) (6815)
Income tax payable at 31 December 12831 BERFTEH 6,070 5,882
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 23 RGEHBRRARWFABH(E)
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised (b) MHARERWELEREEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(r), BEME2(NFIE TR - BIE20234F
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of 12A318 @ "EBWARRARR RETFTH
cumulative unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences BAREAMB A AT IBEERE REN
arising from certain subsidiaries of the Group of RMBI31.7 million TRMEEEARE I3I7TEB (B E2022
as of 31 December 2023 (as of 3| December 2022: RMB52. F12A31H : AR BB BRIEL
million), as it is not probable that future taxable profits against MIBEE @ EcHNEHEBERBEREER
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax K B B8 T K AT 8 AT B FA R SR IE AR B
jurisdiction and entity. MAREHEE o
24  DEFERRED INCOME 24 RIEYEE
Various local government authorities have provided government grants to B0 B RS R AN R B IR BT B LARE B
the Group for the purchase of certain property, plant and equipment and ETOE BERRBRIMERE - E5RE
land-use-rights. Movements of the balances are as follows: T
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBETT

At the beginning of the year F1)) 32,858 32619
Government grants received during the year F NPT U ER BT 4 B 18,363 3,622
Amortisation during the year F 5 (4,859) (3,383)
At the end of the year FR 46,362 32,858

25 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 25 RO BEROLRK
2023 2022
20235 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT ARBETTT

Share awards (Note 25(a)) &t 5280 (F5E25(2)) - 690,986
Transfers of paid-in capital among the equity =R R 2 BB E AR

shareholders (Note 25(b)) (MI7E25(b)) - 48,583

- 739,569
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= (RERERA

SREMRARKT)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

@

(b)

Share awards

During the year ended 3| December 2022, RMB9,236,155 paid-
in capital of Shenyang Shiyue Zhongxin Enterprise Management
Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Shiyue Zhongxin”),
one of the Company's shareholders, were granted to Mr. Wang
Bing and Ms. Zhao Wenjun at a price of RMBI per unit paid-
in capital by allocation of the partnership interests of Shiyue
Zhongxin. The share awards were vested immediately at the grant

date.

The grant date fair value of the share-based payments is measured
at the difference between the fair value of RMB75.8 per unit paid-
in capital at the grant date and the price of RMBI per unit paid-in

capital.

Transfers of paid-in capital among the equity shareholders

Simultaneous with the Series C financing in October 2022, a
new investor purchased RMB955,000 paid-in capital at RMB126.7
per unit paid-in capital from Shenyang Shiyue Daotian Enterprise
Management Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (**Shiyue
Daotian Enterprise Management”), controlled by certain senior
managements of the Group. The new investor was immediately
granted redemption right after the paid-in capital transferred.
The difference of RMB48,583,000 between consideration of
RMB 120,961,000 paid to Shiyue Daotian Enterprise Management
and the fair value of RMB72,377,000 of the transferred paid-in
capital, was recognised as share-based compensation expenses in

profit or loss.
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(@)

(b)

%17 2E B

HZE2002F12A831BIEEE  XAFMH—
ERFESTARBELEEREASRED
X(BREE) [TAREDNEZEAA
R#9,236,I55miBmO L+ AREE B
TREEMNEMERNARE I THERE
BYEEEERBYXERT o R ZERN
RHBHSARE -

AR BERONRORERHRAAEE
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RETSSTRBEMEHEANEBAR
BITZRANERETE °

ERBRRCENEHELREE

FE2002F I0ACHREEITHRE » —
CREERBENERERNARKE 1267
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BEARANRHEIS5000TT - EHMEAER
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BEX - BERRE

AR IS K2 E

REBERTE SRS DK EY R ER
HAUHBRIHIINGAERZETHR - XAF]
BRI AR EB D B FFIEHIN T

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26
(@) Movements in components of equity (a)

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of

each component of the Group’s consolidated equity are set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the

changes in the Company's individual components of equity are set

out below:

Paid-in Capital Other Statutory ~ Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve losses Total
EREX  EARB  EtRE  AERKR RRER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
(Note 26(b)) ~ (Note 26(d)) ~ (Note 26(e))  (Note 26(f))
(Fit2em)  (Hist2e@) (Wiztose)) (Hiztosm)
At | January 2022 R202F 1A 1B 92484 1418087  (1335941) 16711 (137,639) 53,702
Changes in equity for 2022: 2002 F R e
Loss and total comprehensive FERERREEKA
income for the year Fit] - - - - Q71611 (@71611)
Capital contributions (Note 26(b))  tH& (Ki&E26(b)) (FfizE)
(Note) 6,961 21,449 - - - 28410
Transfer of paid-in capital among BEREAEHAR
the equity shareholders EH(F250))
(Note 25(b)) - - (72377) - - (72,377)
Share-based payments (Note 25(a)) WA BERRRF
(HizE25()) = 690986 = - = 690986
Dividends to shareholders MRFRA RS
(Note 26(c)) (PizE26(c)) - - - ~  (200000) (200,000
Deemed distribution (Note 26(c))  BRIEDR(HiFE26(c)) - ~ (207,760) = ~  (207.760)
At 31 December 2022 R202%12A31A 99,445 2130522 (1,616078) 6711 (609,250) 21,350
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26  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED) 26 EX - FERRE(AE)

(@) Movements in components of equity (Continued) () HERERIFIHBE(E)
(Accumulated
Paid-in capital/ Capital Statutory losses)/
share capital reserve  Other reserve reserve retained profits Total
B4Ex/ (REHER)/
ka  BXRfE  HtRE  iERE REER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTT ARETR
(Note 26(b)) ~ (Note 26(d))  (Note 26(e)) (Note 26(f))
(Hiitaep)  (Hiit26(d)  (Hitaee)  (Miate()
At | January 2023 R03F1 A1 99,445 2,130522  (1,616,078) 16,711 (609,250) 21,350
Changes in equity for 2023: W15 RS
Profit and total comprehensive FRBRERZAERA
income for the year - - - - 251,897 251,897
Capital contributions (Note 26(b)) & (MizE26()) 2,030 279,960 - - - 281,990
Issuance of shares by initial public ERBRAARAEEET
offering net of share issuance Bfn - MERRHET
expenses (Note 26(b)) R (MizE26(0)) 5,340 706,113 - - - 711453
Recognition of redemption liabilities ~ HRESENEREE
for the preferential rights (MzE21)
(Note 21) - - (285,714) - - (285,714)
Conversion into a joint stock limited Yl ARABR AR (H
liability company (Note 26(b)) #26(b)) - (L717,998) 1,335,941 (16,711) 398,768 -
Expiration of the redemption rights RORRG FhER
upon the listing of the Company's FER|E(PEE1)
shares (Note 21) - - 2,847,016 - - 2,847,016
Appropriation to reserves NEEGEE - - - 4,142 (4,142) -
At 3| December 2023 20235 12A318 106,815 1,398,597 2,281,165 4,142 3773 3,827,992

M5t : 20226 128278 - ETRERE— X
AR 1,449,0007T LAE B B B8 A&
NEEENMNEERE  MANNEE
H & 20054 B 20179188 KR8 :E T A
B R AN EERERASERS
RER - BINIAHRET ABERNGEE -

Note: On 27 December 2022, certain shareholders paid further
RMB21,449,000 to compensate their prior assets contributions as
paid-in capital which were invested and transferred to the Group
in 2005 and 2017. As the prior assets continued to be owned and
used by the Group, the additional paid amounts were credited to
the capital reserve.
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CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED) 26 EX - RBBERRE(E)
(b)  Paid-in capital/share capital (b) BHEX A
() Paid-in capital (i) EBHEX
For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the MEARMBRENS  AEEHE
paid-in capital of the Group represents the paid-in capital BOR RIS AN T R E ARG BERA
of the Company before it was converted into a joint stock TR BEEA o
company with limited liability. .
Paid-in capital
BRER
RMB'000
AR
At | January 2022 202251 B1H 92,484
Issuance of capital to Shiyue Zhongxin M+ ARBEITER 6961
At 3| December 2022 and | January 2023 M20225F 12831 B K2023F 1 A I H 99,445
Conversion into a joint stock company IR B R AR (99,445)
At 31 December 2023 720235128318 =
(i)~ Share capital (i) BE
Issued and fully paid ERITRAZ Number of
ordinary shares Share capital
ZERHE V&N
’000 RMB’000
TR AR®T
At | January 2023 M2023F 1A IR = =

Issue of ordinary shares upon conversion into

BRI AR ) 2 RIS 37T AR

a joint stock company (Note (i) (FFEEG)) 99,445 99,445
Issue of ordinary shares in series C financing Clm & A 3175 @ AR (PR Gi))

(Note (ii)) 2,030 2,030
Shares split upon listing (Note (iii)) _ETRREAI AR 1 HR AR (B (i) 913,271 =
Issuance of ordinary shares by initial public FREXNARBERITERR

offering (Note (iv)) (= (v)) 53,407 5,340
At 31 December 2023 M2023F12A31R 1,068,153 106,815
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SREMRARKT)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)
(b)  Paid-in capital/share capital (Continued)

(ii)

Share capital (Continued)

Notes:

0

(i

(i)

()

Issue of ordinary shares upon conversion into a joint stock
company

On 6 January 2023, the Company was converted into a joint
stock limited liability company and issued 99,445,074 shares
with a par value of RMB1.00 each.

Issue of ordinary shares in series C financing

On 17 January 2023, the Company completed the Series
C financing and 2,029,491 new shares of the Company
were issued to the Series C investor with a consideration
of USD42,333,000 (approximately RMB285,292,000), which
was fully paid in February 2023. The excess of the aggregate
consideration of RMB285,292,000 over the increase in the
share capital of RMB2,030,000, net of transaction costs of
RMB3,302,000, amounting to RMB279,960,000 was credited
to the capital reserve.

Shares split upon listing

On 12 October 2023, the Company's shares were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Immediately upon listing, the ordinary shares of the
Company has been split on a one-for-ten basis, and the
nominal value of the shares changed from RMBI.00 each to
RMBO.10 each.

Issuance of ordinary shares by initial public offering

On 12 October 2023, 53,407,500 ordinary shares of par
value of RMBO.10 each were issued at a price of HK$15.36
per ordinary share upon the listing of the shares of the
Company's shares. The proceeds of HK$5,820,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB5,340,000), representing the par value,
were credited to the Company's share capital. The remaining
proceeds, net of share issuance expenses of RMB41,274,000,
of approximately HK$769538000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB706,113,000) were credited to the
Company's capital reserve account.
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26  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED) 26 BEX - RBBERRE(E)
(c)  Dividends (0 BE
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (i) T EEEBREALNGEZRRNE
attributable to the year 1112
2023
2023
RMB'000
AERTT
Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting HIRIE Bk 3 2 REARR BT RR I B AR 83 13
period of RMBO.03| per ordinary share ARH00317T
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting REBERARBERIRE 2 REAKRER
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of MEMRARER R —BAE °

the reporting period.

The Company made the distributions of RMB200.0 million HZE2002F12A3IBLEEE @ &K
to the equity shareholders of the Company for the year REIAARBEERREDIEARE
ended 31 December 2022. 2000887 °

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (i) FAMBEILRTH L — BB EFEEF
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid BRAE L ez KR ETRE

during the year

No final dividend in respect of the previous financial year B E2023F 12A3IBIEFE - £
has been approved during the year ended 3| December —WRFENRGREMEELE
2023 (2022: RMBNIl). (2022%F : ARBZ L) ©
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CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

()

(d)

(©)

Dividends (Continued)
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid

during the year (Continued)

Simultaneous with the Series C financing in October 2022,
a new investor purchased RMBI,988,901 paid-in capital at
RMBI26.7 per unit paid-in capital from a series A-1 investor.
The difference of RMB207,760,000 between consideration
of RMB252,000,000 and the carrying amount of the
redemption liabilities of RMB44,240,000 of the transferred
paid-in capital, was recognised in the other reserve as

deemed distribution.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises: (i) the differences between the net
considerations received and the nominal amount of paid-in capital/
share capital issued by the Company; (i) the difference between
the grant date fair value and the exercise price of share awards
which have been granted to and exercised by certain managements
of the Group; and (iii) the differences between the net assets
received and the total amount of the par value of shares issued in
relation to the conversion into a joint stock company as disclosed

in Note 26(b)(ii)(i).

Other reserve

The other reserve includes reserve arising from the Group's
reorganisation, amounts in relation to the initial recognition,
modification and expiration of the redemption liabilities, transactions
with the Company's shareholders and deemed distribution as set

out in Note 26(c).
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)
(U] Statutory reserve
In accordance with relevant PRC laws and regulations and the
articles of association of subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC, these subsidiaries were required to set up certain
statutory reserves, which were non-distributable, to transfer 0%
of their net profit to their respective statutory reserves until the
respective reserves reach 50% of the respective registered capital.
The statutory reserves can only be utilised for predetermined

means upon approval by the shareholders’ meeting.

(g) Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to

finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes

in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to

externally imposed capital requirements.

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risk arises in the normal
course of the Group’s business. The Group is not exposed to significant

currency risk.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are

described below.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

@)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents and bills receivables is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial institutions with high
credit standing, for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk. Deposits and amounts due from the e-commerce
platforms, deposits for bidding and purchase of land-use- rights,
guarantee deposits, other receivables and deposits have been
classified as other receivables. For the purposes of intemal credit
risk management, the Group has applied the general approach in
IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at |2-month ECLs as there
is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The
Group determines the expected credit losses for these assets
by assessment of probability of default, loss given default and
exposure at default. As at end of each reporting period, in view
of the nature of these balances and historical settlement record,
the Group considers that the provision of ECL allowance for these

assets was not significant.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose

the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk management policy under
which individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer's past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Normally, the Group does not

obtain collateral from customers.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
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27 SRMIANMBEREERIAEBEGE)

Credit risk (Continued) () FFERRGE)
Trade receivables (Continued) BEZENEE)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by AEEEGRNEERBREIEXGEZREPK
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than the BRISETE MIEXELLEMEIT
industry or country in which the customers operate and therefore XA ERRNTE Bt EXREE
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the EEERFERAEEABREAEAAR
Group has significant exposure to individual customers. At 3| FPRBERESE - R2023F12A318 - #&
December 2023, 25% (31 December 2022: 27%) of the total Z S EYGRIER D RIH25% (2022412 A
trade receivables, respectively, were due from the Group's largest 318 27%) REAEBHZABEHA &
debtor, and 60% (31 December 2022: 74%) of the total trade 60% (20224 12 A31 8 : 74%) RE A KB
receivables, respectively, were due from the Group's five largest AREBA - REBZRERNZHEHRE
debtors. The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables EEBNSEAEE IR IENEEE
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a HUERRBREGE) - HRAEENE
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience CEEFEELRIUERATREFPEHNE
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for different BEATFEREZR  HEAKETREFP
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is HERBHRRNEEREREE— TR
not further distinguished between the Group's different customer o
bases.
The following table provides information about the Group's TREHEAANSEmRE S EKHRIER
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables; EERRLEREESBENER
2023
2023%F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
RHEER SREAE EREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥TT
Current (not past due) BUEA (R HA) 0.04% 62,343 23
Within 3 months past due BHEA R 0.15% 156,928 242
4 to 6 months past due w4 Z 6fF A 1.15% 15,116 174
7 to 12 months past due BER7E 1218 A 5.85% 9,255 541
| to 2 years past due B 22F 95.38% 1,950 1,860
Over 2 years past due BEEFA L 100.00% 42 o)
245,634 2,882
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 27 ZRIENHMBEBREERAABE(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(@)  Credit risk (Continued) ) EERRE)
Trade receivables (Continued) EBEEEWE(E)

2022

20226
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
AREIE R AREAR(E BEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000

AREoR AR Tor

Current (not past due) BUER (R HR) 0.06% 186,777 119
Within 3 months past due BEBEAR 0.45% 205,116 925
4 to 6 months past due B E4Z o1 A 17.96% 8712 1,565
7 to 12 months past due BER7E 1218 AR 35.70% 1,521 543
| to 2 years past due fatElEyks 36.70% 218 80
402,344 S
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the BHEBR AT HEENEREBL
past recent years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences ES A ELR o S WG R ke
between economic conditions during the period over which FF Sh e 0 B RS B AT B RTHASR B
the historic data has been collected, current conditions and the N E B Y E B TE B E B BRI E
Group's view of economic conditions over the expected lives of EVRERER o

the receivables.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 27 2R IENMBEBEERAAEBE(E)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

() FFERRGE)

Trade receivables (Continued) BEZENEE)
Movements in the loss allowance account in respect of trade FANBSRWHEBERZERBZHN
receivables during the year is as follows: iy
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTT

Balance at | January

Impairment losses (reversed)/charged

A | B4R 3,232 1,559
FR(EE), I HEREESE

during the year (213) 9,698
Write-off of impairment losses e R E RS 18 (137) (8,025)
Balance at 3|1 December RI2A31 BR&ER 2,882 330

(b)  Liquidity risk (b) REBELZRMR

The treasury function is centrally managed by the Group, which AREBEREEBEKEE  BERCARK
includes the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising HERKEREEEsUAmETERRESS
of funds to cover expected cash demands. The Group's policy is to Ko REBEHKRREEHELTHEREES
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with ERREBEZFENETER @ BRES
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of RENRSHEHERAARE BB RIEE
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial ERANEAGEELREE tmmeHESEH
institutions and investors to meet its liquidity requirements in the LEHRHESTE -

short and longer term.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 27 £RIENHMBEBREERAABE(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELZRR(E)
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at TRERAEESREBERSRERARD
the end of each reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, Fere&REEE - DIREBERRUIRERE S
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including e (BIERE R (i AF 8 F =G+
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, HIRWEARNBRITAERGFTHEHFER
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the B)RASEA A NIRRT HBRE:

earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

2023
2023%F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BEARBRAZRE

Within
| yearor | year to 2 years to Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount

K3k

BRER [F2F 2FFSHE st IREE
RMB'000  RMB000 RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARBTR AR%®TT AR%¥TRT AR%¥Tx

Bank and other loans SRITREMER 1,038,190 - - 1,038,190 1,011,071

Trade and other payables measured at BB AT BN E
amortised cost 5 K E A 5RE 216,599 - - 216599 216,599
Lease liabilities HERE 13,169 13,047 8,480 34,696 32,366
1,267,958 13,047 8480 1,289,485 1,260,036
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 27 2R IENHMBEBEERAAEBE(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELZRE(E)
2022
20226
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRRR SR
Within
[Pyeacer | Yearte 2 vears fo Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
| F A

BER |ER)F 256555 ®wit BREE
RMR0O00 RMBO000 RMB000 RMRO00 RMB00O
INEREEE T NIRRT N ESReis Nt or NERSET,

Bank and other loans RITREMER 408,393 - - 408393 394905
Trade and other payables measured at R HR AT 2 E
amortised cost HREMENFE 299461 - — 299461 29946l
Lease liabilities HERE 2153 5985 G713 2183l 20,006
716,987 5985 G713  PBESS 714372
In addition to the above, the Group was also exposed to liquidity B TR E SN - AREEJFEEE R 20224
risk arising from financial instruments issued to investors at 3| A3 BREEERITHERM T AFREL
December 2022, which are further disclosed in Note 21. BB AR | R — SIRE) o
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 27 £RIENHMBEBREERAABE(E)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (c)

() Interest rate profile

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest rate
risk arises primarily from interest-bearing borrowings issued
at variable rates and at fixed rates, which expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk,

respectively.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group's borrowings at the end of each reporting period.

2023
20234
Effective

interest rate

= BB
(i) FIEHXL

MERBRESMTIANARBHES
ARBRSRERATHHXEFH MK
AR  AEENNXERER
KB RFEHF R K EEF = E R
AAEER  FRERSTEAKESD S
HRRAERENERARRAABE
MEEB o

TRFNAKEERR S REHR
CORIES

2022
20224
Effective

RMB’000 interest rate RMB'000

BBRA=E  ARWTR ERFE  ARBTT
% %

Fixed rate borrowings: BT FII A
— Bank and other loans —RITREMER 3.50% ~ 4.00% 811,071 4.10% ~ 500% 274,769
— Lease liabilities -HEAE 43% ~ 4.75% 32,366 43% ~ 475% 20,006
843,437 294,775

Variable rate borrowings: FENMEERK -
— Bank and other loans —IRITREMER 3.40% 200,000 370% 120,136
Total borrowings EE 1,043,437 414911

Fixed rate borrowings as a B E FIEE I ER

percentage of total borrowings wEAN 81% 71%
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 27 2R IENHMBEBEERAAEBE(E)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(¢) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) HEEBRE)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BEBEZH

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of |00 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group's loss after tax and accumulated losses
by approximately RMB2,000,000 (31 December 2022:
approximately RMB1,201,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses
that would arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the
end of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s loss
after tax and accumulated loss is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a change in

interest rates.

72023F 128318 @ HEtFIREE
EF TR I00MEESS - MATHHEM
BERBITE  AEERTEER
RE2FAEBED R LA TEBRAOA
K #2,000,0007C(20224F 12 A318 :
#HAEREE|201,0007T) °

ERBRESWET  BRAME
BHERBERNRBELEIERAE
BN EZSFAKRERREMRE
B BESHEBRIABEMNXRER
MEMTE  AKRERHRREBEERER
R BENNEEE - iAKER
BERRTENIHNRIETET
AEAMRESRENERRRME
HAKEBRHREBRERRFTERY
FELARENEXEHELNTE
RS HBMARNFLRE -

+AEEEERGERAT FEEs03 171



Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% SR 7= B =

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

T2 (RERREN - SEELAARER)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 27 £RIENHMBEBREERAABE(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (d) EXEREKE
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily from cash RNE B GBS R E ERE AINES
balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency BN AL - BERSEHRNEBNI
other than the functional currency of the operations to which BEEB AN ES - slEZERREEE
the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are FEREZTHNAT - A5EHE—RARD
primarily USD and HK$. The Group manages this risk as follows: BIEIT -
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) EEHEEEE
The following table details the Group's exposure at the TR RSB ERE R AR
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from HAERO BRI EE
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency Eﬁ'ﬁE"JEﬁEu«UQF&ﬁLﬁﬁFiE@
other than the functional currency of the entity to which ¥R RREO o HRZIHRE
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the BeY - Bl O SEUARKERE
exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the spot rates ™ ERE&EE AR HIE RETIR
at the year end date. "o
Gross exposure arising from recognised assets and liabilities: HAEwmREERAGBEATARATE:
2023
20235
RMB’000
AR¥T
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEBY
usb X7 628,681
HKS BT 79811
708,492
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(d)  Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period
had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables

remained constant.

27

B HRAR M
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(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

ERIANMBABEERDAABEE)

d) E¥EE(E)
(i) BBESH

TRET  BREEXRARKAN
SMNEERERHEMRED - AR
BB EMEREERT T - K
SEBRBREREBR R ERIONE

&8 -
2023
20235
Decrease/
(increase) in
loss after tax
Increase/ and decrease/
(decrease) (increase) in
in foreign accumulated
exchange rates losses
BRBLR R
TR/(EHER
SMNEE R REtEE
A () R (BT
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥T T

usD ETT

HK$ BT

10% 62,868
(10%) (62,868)
10% 7,981
(10%) (7.981)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ loss after tax and accumulated
losses measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the end
of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

(e)  Fair value measurement
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair

value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost were not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

EREIMOMERERT AEE
BERMEBIENNEZENIAL
BMREEBAENRAER IR
BEPRNETBERARBET
IR

(e) ARMEEFFE
WIRAARBEINRNCREERAEBD
AREE

MN2023F 20224 12 A31 8 - REEIRK

R EHN AT RO SR T AMRAESR
HRARBEIESAER o
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Bt 7% SR 7= B =

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

T (BEYEW - SEEGAARER)
28 COMMITMENTS 28 &I
(a) Capital commitments () EXRERE
At 31 December 2023, the outstanding capital commitments of MR2023F 12A318 - REHMBHRERFIL
the Group not provided for in the consolidated financial statements REBEANEBREBERNFENT :

were as follows:

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR TIT

Commitments in respect of buildings, machinery — FLIET - #28 AR HI#FHE

and equipment

— Contracted for - EHald 97,546 115,186
As at 3| December 2023, the Group has not committed to enter M2023F 12A31 8 - REEWRFAFHF] L
into any lease contract that is not yet commenced. EREARFABEESL o
29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EXEBAERE
(@) Key management personnel remuneration () FEEEASHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, REEFEEEABNHM(BIEN A
including amounts paid to the Company's directors and supervisors BRERAARAEERES ALK
as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the highest paid employees FEERE TR EEXNNERE) WM
as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows: B
2023 2022
20235 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT Al T e

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e  EREREWET 8,093 6,100

Discretionary bonuses YIS TEAL 2,172 16,991
Contributions to defined contribution retirement

schemes FE M RGRIRET B A SR 422 285

Share-based payment expenses VARR 9 R EE R RN SR 2 - 739,569

10,687 762945

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 6(b)). FNmEt AT B TRA (R HsE6b)) °
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Transactions with related parties

Notes to the Financial Statements

B HRAR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

29 EABHBAIRZ(E)

(b) EFREBEMNRE

2023 2022
20235 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Receiving of services EER®E
An entity controlled by a close family member AN RIRR SR A R AT B —
of a shareholder of the Company T 1,270 550
Purchases of paddy BEREXK
Entities controlled by a close family member of  ZNA RIIRER AT FETIEHIM B BS
a shareholder of the Company - 785
Entities controlled by a shareholder of the NN AR R PR il a E RS
Company - 6,504
- 7,289
Sales of goods HEEm
An entity controlled by a close family member 2N RIRR SR A R AT ) —
of a shareholder of the Company TEE - )
Shareholders, directors and supervisor of the AARIRE EFRES
Company 40 139
Close family members of directors or a RNRRIE RS EE R TR EK
supervisor of the Company = - 54
Entities controlled by directors of the Company ~ ANAR]E E1EHIH EFE 199 218
239 440
Repayment of advances received EEREBBEBHTNER
from related parties
An entity controlled by a shareholder of the RNATIRERFTE S — [ E S
Company - 1,500
Guarantees provided by related parties at the BB A AR & AR IZHIER
end of the reporting period
Shareholders of the Company RATIRER - 224,769
A shareholder and his close family membership — B R H AR - 120,136
- 344,905
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BERERIN  2REMAARET)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 29 EBEAXBHE XS (#)

(c) Balances with related parties as at the end of each reporting (c) MERESHIREBBESNER
period
2023 2022
20235 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETTT

Trade in nature: ESME:
Trade and other receivables ES RHMEWRRIE
— Prepayments to an entity controlled by a — [AIZR X RIAR BR A3 AR P e il 19
close family member of a Shareholder of the —HE BTN
Company 138 138

30 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 30 ATFEEMEMRRE

2023 2022
2023 20224F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Mtat ARET T ARETTT
Non-current assets REBEE

Property, plant and equipment W - BB RE&E 160,374 147,663
Right-of-use assets ERERE 32,140 32,902
Interests in subsidiaries NS oy 2o 1,739,349 1,739,349
Other non-current assets HEMIEREBEE - 3,508
1,931,863 1,923,422

Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b EUWGRIA 1,109,522 507,528
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFED 799,334 5,020
1,908,856 512,548

Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 REMPERNRIE 12,604 BxSY)
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B 7S SRR B & &=

-
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) — ’rﬁ
(BERIZRN  ¢HEELAARET) N\

30 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 30 ZATEEMBMRRE(E)

(CONTINUED)
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Mtat ARET T ARETTT
Net current assets REBEEFRE - I :§?6252 478,089
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBAE 3,828,115 2,401,511
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Financial instruments issued to investors MIEEER TSR ITA - 2,380,161
Deferred income IRIE W 123 -
123 2,380,161
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,827,992 21,350
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXNHE
Paid-in capital/share capital BHER IR 26(b) 106,815 SRS
Reserves 5 26(a) 3,721,177 (78,095)
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 3,827,992 21,350
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

= (RERERA

SHENAARET)
31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

32

88

178

In March 2023, certain companies of the Group were named defendants
on a lawsuit in respect of disputes on trademarks infringement, and the
Group's bank deposits of RMB30.0 million has been frozen by the court
for this lawsuit. As at the date of this report, the lawsuit is still under
review by the court. Based on the assessment from the directors of the
Company and legal advices, the Group has made a provision of RMB20.0

million in respect of this claim.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
At 3| December 2023, the directors consider the immediate and ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be Mr. Wang Bing.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Company made several investments after the end of the reporting
period, including the cornerstone investment in Migao Group Holdings
Limited (“Migao”) with details as below, and the purchase of certain
wealth management products with the aggregate balance of RMB491.8

million as at the date of this report.

On || March 2024, Shenyang Xinchang as an investor entered into a
cornerstone investment agreement with Migao (as issuer), GF Capital
(Hong Kong) Limited, GF Securities (Hong Kong) Brokerage Limited and
CMB International Capital Limited, pursuant to which Shenyang Xinchang
agreed to subscribe for the investor shares of Migao (the “Investor
Shares”) at the offer price under and as part of Migao's international
offering (the “Cornerstone Investment Agreement”). The aggregate
subscription amount for the Investor Shares paid by Shenyang Xinchang
under the Comerstone Investment Agreement was USD20.9 million. The

shares of Migao were listed on the Stock Exchange on 2| March 2024.

SHIYUE DAOTIAN GROUP CO,, LTD 2023 Annual Report

31

32

33

HAREE
R2023F3A8 » AEEETRARE—REREIZ
REAUDNFATHIBEEA - MAEEH

RITHEARAREI00EETLE AZRFAE A
BLRAE c MAREBH AR NEZBEZZRH

o BREBEARBDEETNFERERER - A%
B ZBRARFRBEBARB2008ET °

BEERBARERAE
R2023F 128318 ' EEREAEENEER
BRIRER A ABERLE -

H&EE

ARBRARERRRIELHRIARE - 21
HABEEZRERAR(TARBDNELRERE
ARBEETEMEM

(FBWM T Ar) -
ERBBRASREHRENARE9I8HETT ©

MR2024F3R 118  EBHES(EARRER)HK
S(ERETAN)  BERE(EB)ERAR
BREH(BB)KCERARKBREARRE
BRABF L —MERREHE(TERZEW
) Bl BEBEEREUKSHNEBERE
E@%%@E*ﬁwﬁﬁ%mEﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%([&éﬁ%ﬁx
7] BEEERBEEARERZINNEE
ERMNABEEAIABET - KSHWBRHE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2023
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued
a number of amended standards, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 3| December 2023 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These developments include the following which may

be relevant to the Group.

B HRAR M

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRGNS SRENAAREL)

34 CEMEREZE2023F12831BILLEEEN
REMNERT - HEARBRENEESE

EPHHATZBEE  BEEReHERE
BiETHISEIEETER - ZF%ER|
REZ2023F 12A3IBIEFERARER - BH
ARZEVBERRPERNR  ZSEFHP A
HALEREBERENTSE -

W
m &

Effective for accounting

periods beginning on or after

AT B ISk AR B TR Y
B HEEN
Amendments to IAS |, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of liabilities as current or non-current | January 2024
BB GHERE R (ERTAK) - 2 BHX - RESERREYAINR. 202451 A1 B
Amendments to IAS |, Presentation of financial statements: Non-current liabilities with covenants | January 2024
B & ERIE (BRI - 25 BH % - HmRZEn g aE 2024 1 A1 H
Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback | January 2024
BB BREERE 65K (ERTA) - HE - ERHEMNHEERE 20241 A1 H
Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows and IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier finance
arrangements | January 2024
REHRERETRETR) B2 nEX KA KR ERE7 R (BETE) R TA - $5 -
HREBBEZ 202451 A 18
Amendments to IAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates: Lack of exchangeability | January 2025
BIRR st ERIR2 BRI X) - SNEEX LM E - R A 202551 A 18

Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements and IAS 28, Investments in associates and

Joint ventures: Sale or Contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture

AMAERRERE - REEH

(BB RRERRE 0% — & GBI @3 R R H20% - BB
R EDTSA BRI IR R S D0

To be determined

Based on the assessment on the impact of these developments, so far,
the Group has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

REHZSEHNTZENNGE - BAT  AKH
ERL&ER  RAZFEET LI ER T KA
HEAVBRRENEATE -

)
&=
i)
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“Articles of Association”

NI

"“associate(s)

R IN

“Audit Committee”
[EEEE]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[E%g]

"“"Company”

AN

“connected transaction(s)"”

[FER 5 |

""Controlling Shareholder(s)” or “Controlling

Shareholders Group”

[ 22 3R ) 3l A s SR A

"“"Corporate Governance Code”

[bEERTA

"“"CRM system”
[CRMZ#E]

"“Director(s)"”

[E%]

"“Domestic Share(s)"”

[RER

the Articles of Association of Shiyue Daotian Group Co., Ltd. (as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time)

(t AEREERNBRARERZ)EIEER - s AT MER)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB ETARAIM T &R

the audit committee of the Board

RN e o

the board of Directors of the Company

EANSIE =

Shiyue Daotian Group Co, Ltd, a joint stock company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability, the H Shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code of 9676

TABEKERNERAR  —KRPEEMAZIORNDBERAF - HHR
TRBERZ P BT (BRI SR R9676)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmRAIE T ARRE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and unless the context
otherwise requires, refers to Mr. Wang, Ms. Zhao, Shiyue Daotian Enterprise
Management, Shiyue Jinfeng, Shiyue Zhongxin and Shenyang Hongsheng
BAELETRAB TZANRE  BXESEREIN  BEILAE  BR
T TAEACEXERE  +A2E  tARSREGRTT

the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix Cl to the Listing Rules, as

amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

ERRIMSRCI B R EVATRIGETRHER] ~ AT sAE M B2

customer relationship management system

EFREEERS

the director(s) of the Company
AREESF

ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of
RMBO.10 each, which are subscribed for and paid up in RMB
RARBRATFREEARKEIOTHEBRR - UARERBILER
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“ERP system”
[ERPF At ]

“GI"OUP”, “We”, “us” or “our”

SN EAEEAN

“H Share(s)”

[HRx% ]

“H Share Registrar”
[HEXRE 77 & "Cka )

“Hong Kong" or "HK"
[E&%]

“Hong Kong dollars”, “HK dollars” or “HK$"

&t

“Latest Practicable Date”

[&RERATA]

“Listing Date”
[ A

“Listing Rules”

[ AR Al

“LKA(s)"

[LKA]

“Model Code”

[T Al ]

Definitions | |
B

enterprise resource planning system

EERRE R

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARBREKB AT

overseas listed foreign Shares in the share capital of the Company with a nominal
value of RMBO.10 each, which are traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the
Stock Exchange

AR BEARTEREEAREIOTHIRI EHINER - WETTE B
LR b

Tricor Investor Services Limited

SEESFELERAAF

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
I AR MBI E B RIITHE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BEEETER

April 17, 2024, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining
certain information in this report prior to its publication

2024F4 178 - BIRAARREHZERRTEFE TENNREERAIITHE

October 12, 2023
2023F 108 12H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BERABERGAARAAZES LR TREET - M A AR E
%)

regional supermarket, hypermarket and convenience store operator(s)

R T - KESRENELLR

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out
in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time
ETRRAMERC(EMBETARBFETESFRZHRETA) (ETEERT -
FRHARM T B2
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“Mr. WANG"

PETo

“Ms. ZHAO"

Fi-keeul

“NKA(s)”

[NKA ]

“Nomination Committee”

[fRREBE]

"OA system”
[OAZ#E]

“Prospectus”

[ ER

“Remuneration Committee”

[FHZEe

“Reporting Period”
[ H)

“RMB" or “Renminbi”
[AR]

“SFQ" or "Securities and Futures Ordinance”

[ &5 N B 15 ]

“Share(s)"”
[Rstn )

Mr. WANG Bing (£ £), spouse of Ms. ZHAO, the chairman of our Board, an
executive Director, the general manager and one of our Controlling Shareholders
FRALE  BREIRE  ARREER  PITEF ARERAQENER
Rz —

Ms. ZHAO Wenjun (83 #), spouse of Mr. WANG, an executive Director, the
deputy general manager, the chief marketing officer and one of our Controlling
Shareholders

BXEZL @ TRARE  ARRNTES - BIAEKE  BFTHERAR
NAHFEBBIR 2 —

national supermarket, hypermarket and convenience store operator(s)

2ENMET - KESRENELLR

the nomination committee of the Board

E=gTHRERERS

office automation system

MABECER

the prospectus issued by the Company on September 28, 2023 in relation to our
global offering and listing
RATGEHEE R AR R EI 5202399 A28 HH MR E 12

the remuneration committee of the Board

ExgTEFMERS

from January |, 2023 to December 31, 2023
20234F | A IHE20235F 124318

the lawful currency of the PRC
hEEEEY

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as

amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BREDIFEST I ECGES MAEIRDD (B TRHER] - Tt sAE T g

Domestic Share(s) and H Share(s)
ME R K HAX
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““Shareholder(s)"
MR

““Shenyang Hongsheng”

D&

“Shenyang Shengxin”

“Shenyang Xinchang”

“Shiyue Daotian Enterprise Management”

[+AEACEER]

“Shiyue Jinfeng”

[t+A2%]

"“Shiyue Zhongxin”

[tARE]

Definitions
E=

holder(s) of our Share(s)
BirFEA

Shenyang Hongsheng Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (&8 %
EEFERBR A, a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of the
PRC on March 20, 2023 and one of our Controlling Shareholders
BEBITEEERBABTRDR - —HKRN20235F3 A20 B RIFP BEEEM
RIZEBRAR] - REFIIZERBIR 2 —

Shenyang Shengxin Enterprise Management Consultation Co, Ltd. (EfZER 1%
EEFERBR AR, a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of the
PRC on February 20, 2023

BEREEXEETRARAAF - —RN2023F2 4208 REF BUAE A
DAVAEOES1(-YNE]

Shenyang Xinchang Grain Trade Co, Ltd. (ZfZE 2R EESHEMRAF)), a limited
liability company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on June 27, 2005 and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

BHEERRESERAR - —RN200556 527 AR EH BUAE ML
BBERAR - RARFNZENRBAR

Shenyang Shiyue Daotian Enterprise Management Consulting Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (&l + ATBHCETEZNEGBEEEREE)) a limited
partnership incorporated under the laws of the PRC on July 24, 2020 and one of
our Controlling Shareholders

BETABACEEREZRAGRERE(BRAE)  —FHKMN202057A24A 1R
BREEREMAINERABEE - REPIHIERRRZ —

Shenyang Shiyue Jinfeng Enterprise Management Consulting Company Limited (/&5
TRSELEEEFHABMRATA), a limited liability company incorporated under
the laws of the PRC on July 8, 2020 and one of our Controlling Shareholders
EETASEMXERFERNERAF - —FKN2020F7 A8 B REHBERE
MARCZH AR AR - ARFIFIERRR 2 —

Shenyang Shiyue Zhongxin Enterprise Management Consulting Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (&G T ARBLEEEE NGB EEAREE)), a limited
partnership incorporated under the laws of the PRC on July 24, 2020 and one of
our Controlling Shareholders

BETARBLEEERRAGREE(BRAR)  —FKR2020F7H24A1R
BREEFEMAINERABEE - REPIHIERRRZ —
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“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 FA

““subsidiary” or “subsidiaries”

)Nl

“‘substantial shareholder(s)"
[EZERER

“Supervisor(s)”

[Bi%=]

“Supervisory Committee”

[EEe)]

“TMS”
[T™MS ]

“US dollars”, “US. dollars”, “US$" or “USD"
Em

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERBMERSERAA]

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB ETARAM T ZARHRE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB ETARAM T ZARHRE

the supervisor(s) of the Company

ARREEE

supervisory committee of the Company

ARFEEE

transportation management system
EHERRR

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

X XBEEER
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